
California Environmental Laboratory 
Accreditation Program (ELAP) 

Environmental Laboratory Technical Advisory 
Committee (ELTAC) Meeting

December 6, 2017 



NOTICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL LABORATORY TECHNICAL ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE (ELTAC) MEETING 

December 6, 2017
10:30 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. 

(or until completion of business) 

Location 1   Location 2
California Environmental 
Protection Agency Building 

  Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
  California  

1001 I Street, Conference Room 2540   700 North Alameda Street, Room US2-145 

Sacramento, CA 95814   Los Angeles, CA 90012 

The Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP) will host a meeting of its 
technical advisory committee, as noted above. The notice and agenda for this meeting and 
others can be found at  www.waterboards.ca.gov/elap. For further information regarding 
this agenda, see below or contact ELAP at elapca@waterboards.ca.gov or (916) 323-3431. 

This meeting is available via webcast at https://video.calepa.ca.gov/. 

AGENDA 

ITEM #1 - Call to Order/Roll Call

ITEM #2 - Public Comments on Items Not on Agenda
(The Committee will not take any action but will consider placing any item 
raised on the agenda at a future meeting.) 

ITEM #3 – Summary of July 13, 2017 Meeting and Approval of Minutes

ITEM #4 – DELAPO Report/Regulations Update

ITEM # 5 – Fields of Accreditation

ITEM # 6 – Stakeholder Fee Workgroup Update

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/elap
mailto:elapca@waterboards.ca.gov
https://video.calepa.ca.gov/


ELTAC Meeting December 6, 2017 
ITEM # 7 – Informational Items

ITEM # 8 – Close

Action may be taken on any item on the agenda. The time and order of agenda items are 

subject to change at the discretion of the ELTAC Chair and may be taken out of order. The 

meeting will be adjourned upon completion of the agenda, which may be at a time earlier or 

later than posted in this notice.  

In accordance with the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act, all meetings of ELTAC are open to 

the public.  

Government Code section 11125.7 provides the opportunity for the public to address each 

agenda item during discussion or consideration by ELTAC prior to ELTAC taking any action 

on said item. Members of the public will be provided appropriate opportunities to comment 

on any issue before ELTAC, but the ELTAC Chair may, at his or her discretion, apportion 

available time among those who wish to speak. Individuals may appear before ELTAC to 

discuss items not on the agenda; however, ELTAC can neither discuss nor take official 

action on these items at the time of the same meeting [Government Code sections 11125 

and 11125.7(a)].  

The meeting locations are accessible to the physically disabled. A person who needs a 

disability-related accommodation or modification in order to participate in the meeting may 

make a request by contacting Katelyn McCarthy at (916) 322-7902 or emailing 

katelyn.mccarthy@waterboards.ca.gov. Providing your request at least five business days 

before the meeting will help to ensure availability of the requested accommodation. 

Webcast Information 

Webcast https://video.calepa.ca.gov/ 

mailto:katelyn.mccarthy@waterboards.ca.gov
https://video.calepa.ca.gov/


                                                                                
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL LABORATORY ACCREDITATION PROGRAM 
ELTAC MEETING 

Wednesday, December 6, 2017 – 10:30 a.m. 
1001 I Street, Conference Room 2540 

Sacramento, CA 95814 
And 

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
700 North Alameda Street, Room US2-145 

Los Angeles, CA 90012 
 

 
 

Meeting Agenda 
 
 

TIME AGENDA ITEM PRESENTER(S) 
10:30am Call to Order 

 
Objective: Roll call. 
 

Andy Eaton, Chairperson 

10:35am Public Comments on Items not on 
Agenda 
 
 

Open 

10:45am Summary of July 13, 2017 Meeting & 
Approval of Minutes 

 
Objective: Amend or approve minutes. 
 

Andy Eaton 
 

10:50am Vote for new ELTAC Chairperson  
 
Objective: Vote for new chairperson. 

Voting members 

11:00am DELAPO Report 
 

Objective: Update members on recent 
developments and activities. 
 

Christine Sotelo, DELAPO 

11:30am Regulations Update 
 
Objective: Update members on the 
regulations development process. 
 

Christine Sotelo, DELAPO 
Jacob Oaxaca, ELAP 
 



11:45am Fields of Accreditation 

Objective: Discuss and provide feedback 
on ELAP’s proposal for the reorganization 
of the Fields of Accreditation. 

Jacob Oaxaca, ELAP

12pm-1pm Lunch 

1:00pm Stakeholder Fees Workgroup Update 

Objective: Update members on progress of 
fee structure development. 

David Ceccarelli, State 
Water Board, Division of 
Administrative Services

1:30pm Informational Item: Laboratory 
Intercalibration Exercises 

Objective: Provide information to 
committee members. 

Dr. Stephen Weisberg, 
Southern California 
Coastal Water Research 
Project

2:00pm Informational Item: Transition to SDWIS-
PRIME 

Objective: Provide information to 
committee members. 

Paul Williams, Division of 
Drinking Water

2:15pm Informational Item: Perchlorate 
Workgroup  

Objective: Review ELTAC/Agency Partner 
coordination process. 

Dr. Eric Miguelino, 
Division of Drinking Water 
Andy Eaton, Chairperson
Miriam Ghabour, Member
David Kimbrough, 
Member

2:45pm Close – Review Action Items 

Objective: Review any assignments 
generated during the meeting.

Andy Eaton 

3:00pm Adjourn 



ELTAC Meeting
December 6, 2017

Sacramento and Los Angeles

1



ROLL CALL

2



ENVIRONMENTAL LABORATORY ACCREDITATION PROGRAM 
ELTAC MEETING 

 Thursday, December 6, 2017 – 10:30 a.m. 
1001 I Street, Conference Room 2540 

Sacramento, CA 95814 
And 

700 North Alameda Street, Room US2-145 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 

MEETING PACKET 

Roll Call 

Name Affiliation Member Type Present 
Diane Anderson APPL, Inc. Rep 

Mindy Boele CWEA Rep 

Jill Brodt Brelje and Race Laboratories Rep 

Bruce Burton Division of Drinking Water SRAE 

Gail Cho CA Dept. of Fish and Wildlife SRAE 

Stephen Clark Pacific EcoRisk Rep 

Ronald Coss CWEA Rep 

Huy Do CASA Rep 

Andy Eaton Eurofins Eaton Analytical Rep 

Miriam Ghabour Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California 

Rep 

Bruce Godfrey ACIL Rep 

Anthony Gonzales CAPHLD Rep 

Rich Gossett Physis Environmental Rep 

David Kimbrough Pasadena Water and Power Rep 

Mark Koekemoer Napa Sanitation District Rep 

Bruce LaBelle Dept. of Toxic Substances Control SRAE 

Allison Mackenzie Babcock Laboratories Rep 

Christine Sotelo CA ELAP DELAPO 

Renee Spears State Water Resources Control Board SRAE 

Abbreviation Member Type 
DELAPO Designated ELAP Officer, nonvoting 

Scribe Minutes (non-member) 

SRAE State Regulatory Agency Employee, nonvoting 

Rep Representative Member, voting 



PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT ON 

AGENDA

3



Public Comments on Items Not on Agenda 

Members of the public may address the Environmental Laboratory Technical Advisory 
Committee (ELTAC) regarding items that are not contained in the meeting agenda at 
this time.  

However, ELTAC may not discuss or take action on any item raised during this public 
comment session, except to decide whether to place the matter on the agenda of a 
future meeting [Government Code sections 11125 and 11125.7(a)].



APPROVAL OF JULY 13, 2017 MEETING 

MINUTES
Andy Eaton, Chairperson

4



CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL LABORATORY TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE (ELTAC) 
COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

JULY 13, 2017

More information on the Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP) and previous ELTAC meetings 

can be found at http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/elap. 

CALL TO ORDER
Chairperson Andy Eaton called the meeting to order on July 13, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. at the California 

Environmental Protection Agency Headquarters, 1001 I Street, Sierra Hearing Room, Sacramento, CA 95814 and 

the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California – La Verne, Weymouth Room, 700 Moreno Avenue, La 

Verne, CA 91750. 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT
DELAPO: Christine Sotelo  

Representatives (voting): 

Mindy Boele 

Jill Brodt 

Stephen Clark 

Huy Do 

Andy Eaton 

Miriam Ghabour 

Anthony Gonzalez 

Rich Gossett 

David Kimbrough 

Allison Mackenzie 

Guilda Neshvad 

State Regulatory Agency Employees (non-voting): 

Bruce Burton  

Gail Cho 

Renee Spears 

Alternates: 

John Quinn (for Bruce LaBelle – non-voting)

Not Present: 

Ronald Coss 

Bruce Godfrey 

Mark Koekemoer 

Bruce LaBelle (non-voting) 

OTHER STAFF PRESENT
Scribe: Katelyn McCarthy 

ELAP: Maria Friedman, Maryam Khosravifard, Jacob Oaxaca 

ANNOUNCEMENT
 Evacuation information in case the fire alarm goes off during the meeting.

 The Committee meeting is being webcast and recorded.

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/elap


Page 2 of 3 

COMMITTEE MEETING 

PUBLIC FORUM
Any member of the public may address and ask question of the Committee relating to any matter within ELTAC’s 

scope provided the matter is not on the agenda, or pending before the Advisory Committee. 

COMMITTEE BUSINESS 

Call to Order/Roll Call 

Public Comments on Items Not on Agenda 
(The Committee will not take any action but will consider placing any item raised on the agenda at a future 

meeting.) 

 Josie Tellers – City of Davis – Requested future meeting items on the status of Assembly Bill 1438

and the Revision of ELTAC’s By-Laws

Approval of Amended Minutes from March 29, 2017 Meeting 

Motion: Member Clark motioned to adopt the minutes.

Seconded by: Member Boele

MOTION CARRIED: July 13, 2017

Aye: Member Boele 
Member Brodt 
Member Clark 
Member Do 
Member Eaton 
Member Ghabour 
Member Gonzales 
Member Gossett 
Member Kimbrough 
Member Mackenzie 
Member Neshvad 

Nay: None 
Absent: Member Coss 

Member Godfrey 
Member Koekemoer 

Abstain: None 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DELAPO Report 

 DELAPO Christine Sotelo updated committee members on the program’s progress since last

meeting:

o Assessor training through contractor NV5/Dade Moeller begins in August

o August 1st Board Meeting item will ask the State Water Board (the State Board) to allocate

funding for small laboratory training contract

o ELAP is currently drafting preliminary text for new regulations

o The State Board supported ELAP’s proposal to accept third-party assessments to reduce

backlog. ELAP is developing minimum qualifications.



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 DELAPO Christine Sotelo presented informational items: 

o ELAP participated in Beach Water Quality Monitoring Workgroup to inquire if Agency 

Partners want the program to accredit for new method - quantitative polymerase chain 

reaction (QPCR). The workgroup believe it is premature at this time since the method is 

still changing. 

o US EPA asked ELAP to distribute clarifying information on detection limits for 

radionuclides. The draft announcement was included in meeting materials for committee 

comment.  

 Division of Drinking Water (DDW) gave an update informing the committee of their intent to revise 

regulations by lowering the detection limit for purposes of reporting (DLR) for perchlorate. DDW 

requested a workgroup of ELTAC members to assist in determining the community’s capacity.  

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Fees Stakeholder Workgroup Update 
  

Chairperson Andy Eaton gave committee members a summary presentation of the progress of the Fees 

Stakeholder Workgroup, including a summary of the nine preliminary proposals. No formal action was taken 

by the committee. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Proficiency Testing Workgroup Update 
 

DELAPO Christine Sotelo gave committee members a summary presentation of the progress of the 

Proficiency Testing Workgroup, including a summary of the issues discussed. No formal action was taken by 

the committee. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Enforcement Implementation Discussion 
 

Member Kimbrough discussed concerns with current proficiency testing requirements. No formal action was 

taken by the committee. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Draft Regulations 
 

Maryam Khosravifard, ELAP, presented information on the timeline for development of new regulations and 

outlined the anticipated major changes. The committee discussed the proposed changes. A video of 

comments is available at: https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/certlic/labs/events_calendar.shtml. 

No formal action was taken by the committee. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Adjournment 
The Committee adjourned at 4:30pm. 

 

 

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/certlic/labs/events_calendar.shtml


VOTE FOR ELTAC CHAIRPERSON
Voting Members

5



Voting Procedure

 Each candidate’s qualifications are in the meeting materials

 Secret ballot – three candidates

 Stephen Clark, Pacific EcoRisk

 Ron Coss, Orange County Sanitation District

 Bruce Godfrey, American Council of Independent Laboratories (ACIL)

 We will collect votes and notify members of the results following the
meeting

 Darrin Polhemus, Deputy Director of the Division of Drinking Water, makes the
final decision

6



ELTAC By-Laws, Article V, Section C, Electing the Chairperson 

Each [voting] Representative shall be allowed one vote. The Chairperson shall 
be decided by a simple majority vote. Voting is not binding and the Deputy 
Director may appoint a different Chairperson if he/she deems it necessary. 

Candidate # 1 - Stephen Clark, Pacific EcoRisk 

I received a B.S. in biology with a focus in marine biology from CSU, Stanislaus, 
and performed my doctorate work in ecotoxicology in the UC Davis 
Pharmacology and Toxicology Graduate Group. For over 28 years, I have been
directing and participating in aquatic ecotoxicology and environmental chemistry 
research and testing, as well as large-scale monitoring programs. In 1999, I 
joined Pacific EcoRisk (PER), an environmental consulting and testing company 
in Fairfield, CA. I have served as PER’s Laboratory Director, QA Officer, am 
currently one of PER’s Vice Presidents, and was instrumental in transitioning 
PER’s laboratory to obtain NELAP accreditation in 2004. I also have extensive 
experience serving as a member of technical committees, including the Technical 
Issues Committee and Pesticide Evaluation Advisory Group for Central Valley 
Regional Board’s Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program, both of which provided 
me with insights regarding both toxicity and analytical chemistry issues related to 
ELTAC’s lab accreditation role. I also have professional experience leading 
scientific organizations (e.g., past President of NorCal SETAC) and community 
organizations (e.g., past President of the Stockton Youth Soccer Association). I 
look forward to the opportunity to bring both my technical experience and 
organizational coordination experience to serve as the ELTAC chair, specifically 
working to facilitate effective meeting planning/execution, as well as a smooth 
plan to transition CA labs from ELAP to NELAP accreditation.

Candidate # 2 - Ron Coss, Orange County Sanitation District 

Based on my broad experience, I feel I would be a very good fit for the Chair of 
ELTAC, especially in this time of change.   Having managed environmental labs 
on both sides of the pipe has given me a unique perspective in helping to focus 
this prestigious group of laboratory professionals in providing technical guidance 
and support to ELAP in this process of adopting laboratory accreditation 
standards and improving data quality.  ELTAC is an important bridge to the 
laboratory community, and serves the critical function of bringing feedback and 
recommendations to ELAP to improve this process.   

Over my 30 plus year career, I have overseen the monitoring of source water, 
drinking water treatment, water reclamation and cross-connection control, to the 
discharge of treated effluent.  I have managed laboratories in large municipal 
agencies with large staffs and a small private lab with no dedicated staff.  My 
accomplishments include obtaining ELAP accreditation for a completely new lab, 



leadership of several laboratories though renewal audits, and acquiring NELAP 
accreditation for my current laboratory at OCSD.  
   
I believe my background gives me the diverse experience and perspective to 
represent the issues of the laboratories accredited by ELAP, to effectively focus 
ELTAC and assist ELAP during this time of change.  I believe we have the 
opportunity to aid in the creation of a program that will insure data quality, and 
serve the needs of the laboratory community well into the future. I am excited to 
be part of this process.   
 
 

Candidate #3 - Bruce Godfrey, Montrose Environmental 
 
I want to be the ELTAC Chair because I am passionate about the value of 
standards based laboratory accreditation for chemical testing laboratories. I’ve 
either operated, or was deeply involved in the operation of chemical testing 
laboratories accredited to international standards of practice for 30 years. I am 
committed seeing the value of standards based laboratory accreditation systems 
brought to benefit CA regulatory programs. I have been a strong and consistent 
advocate of/for ELAP in the years I’ve served on ELTAC, and I want to see the 
changes we’ve made to the program implemented efficiently and effectively. I 
believe I am uniquely qualified by experience and abilities to keep ELTAC aware 
of, and working on, the key policy and technical issues we are assembled to 
advise ELAP on. 
 
Dr. Godfrey leads interdisciplinary teams in business and organizational 
development, process improvement, and quality assurance for Montrose’s 
Environmental Laboratory Services Division, a significant national provider of 
environmental tests & measurements including; drinking and wastewater, air and 
stack testing, industrial hygiene, radiochemistry, contaminated site remediation, 
waste characterization, aquatic toxicity, and environmental microbiology. 
  
In addition to 38 years managing & directing large commercial environmental 
laboratories, Dr. Godfrey is immediate past President of the Pacific Southwest 
Section of the Association of Official Analytical Chemists (AOAC), Chairman 
elect of the American Council of Independent Laboratories (ACIL), the nation’s 
trade association for independent scientific, testing and engineering firms; and a 
voting representative on California’s Environmental Laboratory Technical 
Advisory Committee (ELTAC) overseeing California’s environmental laboratory 
accreditation program. Dr. Godfrey is a six time recipient of the Preston S. Millar 
award for outstanding service to the nation’s testing inspection and certification 
community. Dr. Godfrey earned BA, and Ph.D. Degrees in Biochemistry from the 
University of California. 



7

DELAPO REPORT
Christine Sotelo, ELAP



Perspective

 I’ve had the opportunity to step back and evaluate how far we have 

come

 We have accomplished A LOT

 We’re not where we’d like to be on a few things

 But, we are on the right path

8



Major Accomplishments

 Expert Review Panel

 Internal management system

 NV5/Dade Moeller training and assessment contract

 Monitoring Proficiency Testing

 ELTAC and State Agency Partner relationships

 Communication
9



Expert Review Panel

 We would not be where we are now had we not undertaken this 

review

 This is our biggest accomplishment

 It gave us a roadmap on how to improve

 Despite differences, we see this as having brought the community 

together as well

10



Internal Management System

 We are implementing TNI Volume 2 for Accreditation Bodies

 Benefits

 Improved service to internal and external stakeholders

 More consistency

 Improved employee morale

 This is our mechanism for continuous improvement

 We are deeply committed to this

11



Training and Assessment Contract

 Major milestone 

 The Board has invested $1.17 million dollars in this contract

 ELAP assessors are being trained by experts

 They are learning how to perform method and quality systems 

assessments

 Laboratories are learning from these experts as well

 They are chipping away at the backlog of drinking water laboratories

 This frees up some resources for non-DW laboratories

12



Proficiency Testing

 We are now evaluating both Renewal and Annual Proficiency Testing results

 This wasn’t happening at all before

 This monitoring is important 

 And there have been instances where we’ve had to take action against 

laboratories who have not been able to pass PTs 

 It’s clear there is a long way to go – many laboratories are not completing 

required tests, or do not understand which tests are required

 We’re committed to working with the community to resolve these issues

13



ELTAC and Agency Partner Relationships

 Our relationships were broken or nonexistent before

 Now we have functional, positive relationships with both advisory bodies

 You have both played a huge role in our progress

 Thank you for your commitment 

14



ELTAC Accomplishments

 Made recommendations on laboratory standards and an implementation time frame

 Designed Agency Partner/ELTAC coordination process for new monitoring needs

 Recommended a format for ELAP’s Fields of Testing

 Guidance on fee structure development 

 Provided technical assistance to ELAP

 Enhanced communication with your community

15



Communication

 Established communication with the laboratory community

 Did not exist before

 There is always room for improvement

 But we have come a long way

16



There’s More to Do

 Technology

 Assessments

 Regulations

 We’ll talk more about this after program updates

17



Technology

 We’re still in the process of obtaining a new database

 To analyze PTs

 Online application

 This will make the accreditation process more efficient for both

laboratories and ELAP

 We’re making slow, but significant progress

18



Assessments

 We’re still working through an assessment backlog

 Anticipate NV5 contract clearing the DW backlog

 ELAP staff are tackling the non-DW laboratories

 However, this is our biggest challenge

 Limited resources

 We’re working on a contract to accept third-party assessments to

provide an alternative to laboratories

19



PROGRAM UPDATES

20



Staffing Updates

 New assessor in the Glendale office – Ali Hossain

 Biologist

 Ample inspection experience

 We have a new vacancy – Supervisor of the Program Development,

Research and Enforcement Unit

 Maryam Khosravifard has accepted a position with the California

Department of Food and Agriculture – Congratulations!

21



US EPA Audit

 US EPA conducted a program audit of ELAP November 15th-17th

 Initial verbal feedback was positive

 Pleased with the improvement in documentation

 We’re waiting on the audit report

 And are prepared to take corrective action once received

 It’s early, but we are seeing the outcome of this audit as a confirmation of

the progress we’ve made

 As well as the value of our management system

22



MUR Methods

 2017 Methods Update Rule was effective September 27th

 We anticipate being able to update our FOTs within the next few

months

 We’re looking into the possibility of doing a courtesy update for some

methods on existing certificates

 Those without significant QA/QC changes

 We would add the updated version and distribute updated FOT lists

 We will notify the community via email
23



Early Implementation Contract Proposal

 Original proposal was for six laboratories to receive consulting services to

implement the 2016 TNI Standard in one year

 Due to available funding, we have revised to two laboratories

 There will be a time commitment required for the two laboratories selected

 There will also be a “pay-it-forward” component

 Participant laboratories will pass on the knowledge they gain during the process

 Anticipate selection process beginning in early 2018

 Criteria are under development

24



Small Laboratory Training Contract

 This training will build on the knowledge gained from the Early

Implementation Contract

 We anticipate it being focused on documentation development with a

consultant

 Expect release as we near adoption of the regulations package

25



Assembly Bill 1438

 Governor Brown signed Assembly Bill 1438 into law on September 28,

2017, which:

 Updates outdated references

 Updates the appeals process for when a laboratory disagrees with ELAP’s

decision

 Modifies the process for suspending or revoking accreditation to provide for

a hearing before the State Water Resources Control Board

 No additional accreditation requirements

 The law goes into effect on January 1, 2018

26



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( ���+

,-./012�34546�75468�96:;<8=6:�>;?48;@�-;58AB�6?CD8;?E6?45@�@5F;854;8D6:B�G<F@D=�H5468�:I:46E:B�=684DJD=546:�5?AG68ED4:B�G8;=6A<86:KLMNOPQMNORSTUVWXYZ�[\�]̂ _̀abc�ONNRMd�be�̀f̂�ĝ hìf�hcj�]hê k̀�lbĵ�am�hn ĉĵj�̀b�ôhjp[qqrst\�LhS�ufam�hòa_î�mfhii�v̂�wcbxcy�hcj�nhk�v̂�_à̂ jy�hm�̀f̂�zc{aobcn ĉ̀hi�|hvboh̀bok�}__ôjàh̀abc�}_̀~LvS�|hvboh̀boâm�̀fh̀��̂oebon�hchikm̂m�bc�hck�_bnvach̀abc�be�̂c{aobcn ĉ̀hi�mhn�îmy�bo�ohx�bo��ob_̂mm̂jh�oa_�ì�ohi��obj�_̀m�ebo�ô��ih̀bok���o�bm̂m�mfhii�bv̀hac�h�_̂òaea_h̀ �̂be�h__ôjàh̀abc���om�hc̀�̀b�̀fam�hòa_î~L_S��cîmm�̀f̂ �̂��ômm�ihc��h�̂�bo�_bc̀ �̂̀�ô��aôm�b̀f̂oxam̂y�̀f̂�ĵeacàabcm�ac�̀fam�hòa_î�mfhii��b{̂oc�̀f̂_bcm̀o�_̀abc�be�̀f̂�hòa_î~LOS��}__ôjàh̀abc��n ĥcm�̀f̂�ô_b�càabc�be�h�ihvboh̀bok�vk�̀f̂�ĵ�hòn ĉ̀���������������̀b�_bcj�_̀�hchikm̂m�beĉ{aobcn ĉ̀hi�mhn�îm�ebo�ô��ih̀bok���o�bm̂m~LMS��}mm̂mmbo�vbjk��n ĥcm�̀f̂�bo�hca�h̀abc�̀fh̀�h_̀�hiik�̂�̂_�̀ m̂�̀f̂ �h__ôjàh̀abc��ob_̂mmy�ac_i�jac��ô_̂a{ac�hcj�ô{âxac��h��ia_h̀abcmy�jb_�n ĉ̀my��u�mhn�î�ôm�ìmy�hcj�bcmà̂ �hmm̂mmn ĉ̀m~L�S��l̂ òaea_h̀ �̂�n ĥcm�h�jb_�n ĉ̀�amm�̂j�vk�̀f̂�ĵ�hòn ĉ̀���������������̀b�h�ihvboh̀bok�̀fh̀�fhm�ô_̂a{̂jh__ôjàh̀abc���om�hc̀�̀b�̀fam�hòa_î~L�S���̂ �hòn ĉ̀��n ĥcm�̀f̂�]̀h̀ �̂�̂ �hòn ĉ̀�be�ĝ hìf�]̂ o{a_̂m~��������������������������������������  ���¡���¡���¢��£���������¤¡�¥���¦������¥¡�����¡ ¤��LdS��§����zc{aobcn ĉ̀hi�mhn�îm��n ĥcm��b̀hvî�hcj�cbc�b̀hvî�m�oeh_̂�xh̀ ôm�bo��ob�cjxh̀ ômy�mbaim�hcjm̂jan ĉ̀my�fh�hojb�m�xhm̀ m̂y�vabib�a_hi�nh̀ ôahimy�bo�hck�b̀f̂o�mhn�î�ĵma�ch̀ ĵ�ebo�ô��ih̀bok���o�bm̂m~L̈S��©z|}l��n ĥcm�̀f̂�©h̀abchi�zc{aobcn ĉ̀hi�|hvboh̀bok�}__ôjàh̀abc�lbcêôc_̂~LPS��©z|}l�m̀hcjhojm��ôêom�̀b�̀f̂�ô��aôn ĉ̀m�eb�cj�ac�z�}���via_h̀abc�c�nv̂o�̈NNª«Q¬RªOdOy�©b{̂nv̂oO¬¬Ry�hcj�hck�m�vm̂��̂ c̀�hn ĉjn ĉ̀m�̀fh̀�hô�hjb�̀ ĵ�vk�z�}�bo�̀f̂�ch̀abchi��ob�ohn~LRS��©z|}���n ĥcm�̀f̂�©h̀abchi�zc{aobcn ĉ̀hi�|hvboh̀bok�}__ôjàh̀abc��ob�ohn�̂m̀hviamf̂j�vk�©z|}l~L¬S��©z|}��h__ôjàh̀abc��n ĥcm�̀f̂�h__ôjàh̀abc�be�h�ihvboh̀bok�̀fh̀�fhm�n^̀�̀f̂�ô��aôn ĉ̀m�be�̀f̂�©z|}lm̀hcjhojmy�hcj�̀f̂�ô��aôn ĉ̀m�be�̀fam�hòa_î~LONS��©z|}��h__ôjà̂ j�ihvboh̀bok��n ĥcm�h�ihvboh̀bok�̀fh̀�fhm�n^̀�̀f̂�m̀hcjhojm�be�©z|}l�hcj�fhm�v̂ ĉh__ôjà̂ j�vk�h��oanhok�bo�m̂_bcjhok�©z|}�Qô_b�ca�̂j�h__ôjàac��h�̀fboàk~LOOS��©z|}�Qô_b�ca�̂j�h__ôjàac��h�̀fboàk��n ĥcm�h�m̀h̀ �̂h�̂c_k�̀fh̀�am�h�̀fboa�̂j�vk�©z|}��̀b�h__ôjàihvboh̀boâm~LOMS��©z|}�Qô_b�ca�̂j��oanhok�h__ôjàac��h�̀fboàk��n ĥcm�h�m̀h̀ �̂h�̂c_k�̀fh̀�am�ôm�bcmavî�ebo�̀f̂h__ôjàh̀abc�be�̂c{aobcn ĉ̀hi�ihvboh̀boâm�xàfac�̀fh̀�m̀h̀ �̂bo�̀fh̀��̂oebonm�̀f̂��oanhok�h__ôjàh̀abc�be�h�ihveobn�h�cbcQ©z|}��m̀h̀ �̂bo�xf̂ ô�̀f̂�ihvboh̀bokm�fbn �̂m̀h̀ �̂jb̂m�cb̀�beêo�h__ôjàh̀abc�ac�h��a{̂c�eâij�beh__ôjàh̀abc~LO�S��©z|}�Qô_b�ca�̂j�m̂_bcjhok�h__ôjàac��h�̀fboàk��n ĥcm�h�m̀h̀ �̂h�̂c_k�̀fh̀�am�h�̀fboa�̂j�vk�©z|}��̀bh__ôjà�̂c{aobcn ĉ̀hi�ihvboh̀boâm�xàfac�̀fh̀�m̀h̀ �̂̀fh̀�fh{̂�v̂ ĉ�h__ôjà̂ j�vk�h�©z|}�Qh��ob{̂j�h__ôjàac�h�̀fboàk�ac�hcb̀f̂o�m̀h̀ ~̂LO�S��®�����obea_âc_k�̀ m̂̀ac��L�uS��am�h�n ĥcm�be�̂ {hi�h̀ac��h�ihvboh̀bokm��̂oebonhc_̂��cĵo�_bc̀obiîj_bcjàabcm�ôih̀a{̂ �̀b�h��a{̂c�m̂ �̀be�_oà̂ oah�̀fob��f�hchikmam�be��cwcbxc�mhn�îm��ob{aĵj�vk�hc�̂�̀ ôchi�mb�o_̂~

�̄�� )����°�����
���� #
�������
��
� ±�"�� 
���� ²�����³���� � �́�µ�" ������� �́�¶
!�����



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( ���+

,-./�012��345�6789:;<�8;7=6�7�6789:;�>6;?�@AB�9BA@CDC;=DE�F;6FC=GH,-I/�0J2��3K;G>:7FABE�9>B9A6;6<�8;7=6�7�6F7F>FABE�AB�B;G>:7FABE�B;L>CB;8;=F�A@�7�6F7F;�MA7B?N�A@@CD;N�AB?;97BF8;=FN�AB�A@�7�?COC6CA=�AB�9BAGB78�FP7F�B;L>CB;6�7�:7MAB7FABE�D;BFC@C;?�>=?;B�FPC6�7BFCD:;�AB�A@�7=E�AFP;B�6F7F;AB�@;?;B7:�7G;=DE�FP7F�B;L>CB;6�7�:7MAB7FABE�FA�M;�7DDB;?CF;?H,-Q/�0RS2��3K;OAD7FCA=<�8;7=6�FP;�9;B87=;=F�:A66�A@�7�D;BFC@CD7F;�A@�7DDB;?CF7FCA=N�C=D:>?C=G�7::�>=CF6�7=?�@C;:?6�A@7DDB;?CF7FCA=�@AB�6F7F;�7DDB;?CF7FCA=�7=?�7::�@C;:?6�A@�7DDB;?CF7FCA=�@AB�TUVW4�XYZ��7DDB;?CF7FCA=H,-[/�0RR2��3\F7F;�7DDB;?CF7FCA=<�8;7=6�7DDB;?CF7FCA=�A@�7�:7MAB7FABEN�FP7F�P76�8;F�FP;�B;L>CB;8;=F6�A@�FPC6�7BFCD:;7=?�B;G>:7FCA=6�7?A9F;?�ME�FP;�?;97BF8;=F��]̂_̂ �̀ab_cd��9>B6>7=F�FA�FPC6�7BFCD:;H0Re2�fĝ_̂ �̀ab_cdh�i _̀j]�̂k̀�ĝ_̂ �̀l_̂ c̀�m̀ ]bncò]�pbĵcbq�rb_cds,-t/�0Ru2��3\>69;=6CA=<�8;7=6�FP;�F;89AB7BE�:A66�A@�7�D;BFC@CD7F;�A@�7DDB;?CF7FCA=�AB�7�>=CF�AB�@C;:?�A@7DDB;?CF7FCA=H0Rv2�fXYZh�i _̀j]�Xk̀�Ywxyp�Zj]̂ẑn̂ {̀�_�jbj|cb}ẑ�obc|bc_̂zbj�oc̀_̂ d̀�̂b�obiazj̀ �̂k̀�}njôzbj]�b}�̂k̀�Y_̂zbj_qwj~zcbji j̀̂_q�x_abc_̂bc��yooc̀dẑ_̂zbj�pbj}̀c̀jò�_jd�̂k̀�Zj]̂ẑn̂ �̀}bc�Y_̂zbj_q�wj~zcbji j̀̂_q�x_abc_̂bc�yooc̀dẑ_̂zbjs0R�2�fXYZ�_ooc̀dẑ_̂zbjh�i _̀j]�̂k̀�_ooc̀dẑ_̂zbj�b}�_�q_abc_̂bc��̂k_̂�k_]�i`̂�̂k̀�c̀�nzc̀i j̀̂]�b}�XYZ�]̂_jd_cd]{_jd�̂k̀�c̀�nzc̀i j̀̂]�b}�̂kz]�_ĉzoq̀s0R�2�fXYZ�_ooc̀dẑ̀ d�q_abc_̂bc�h�i _̀j]�_�q_abc_̂bc��̂k_̂�k_]�i`̂�̂k̀�]̂_jd_cd]�b}�XYZ�_jd�k_]�à j̀�_ooc̀dẑ̀ da��_�|czi_c��bc�]̀objd_c��XYZ�c̀ob�jz�̀d�_ooc̀dẑzj��abd�s0R�2�fXYZ�c̀ob�jz�̀d�_ooc̀dẑzj��abd�h�i _̀j]�_�]̂_̂ �̀_�̀jo��̂k_̂�z]�_n̂kbcz�̀d�a��XYZ�̂b�_ooc̀dẑ�q_abc_̂bcz̀]s0R12�fXYZ�c̀ob�jz�̀d�|czi_c��_ooc̀dẑzj��_n̂kbcẑ�h�i _̀j]�_�]̂_̂ �̀_�̀jo��̂k_̂�z]�c̀]|bj]zaq̀�}bc�̂ k̀_ooc̀dẑ_̂zbj�b}�̀j~zcbji j̀̂_q�q_abc_̂bcz̀]��ẑkzj�̂k_̂�]̂_̂ �̀bc�̂k_̂�|̀c}bci]�̂k̀�|czi_c��_ooc̀dẑ_̂zbj�b}�_�q_a}cbi�_�jbj�XYZ�]̂_̂ �̀bc��k̀ c̀�̂k̀�q_abc_̂bc��]�kbi �̀]̂_̂ �̀db̀]�jb̂�b}}̀c�_ooc̀dẑ_̂zbj�zj�_��z~̀j�}z̀qd�b}_ooc̀dẑ_̂zbjs0RJ2�fXYZ�c̀ob�jz�̀d�]̀objd_c��_ooc̀dẑzj��_n̂kbcẑ�h�i _̀j]�_�]̂_̂ �̀_�̀jo��̂k_̂�z]�_n̂kbcz�̀d�a��XYZ�̂b�_ooc̀dẑj̀~zcbji j̀̂_q�q_abc_̂bcz̀]��ẑkzj�̂k_̂�]̂_̂ �̀̂k_̂�k_~̀�à j̀�_ooc̀dẑ̀ d�a��_�XYZ�_||cb~̀d�_ooc̀dẑzj��_n̂kbcẑ�zj�_jb̂k̀c�]̂_̂ s̀0eS2�fXYZ�]̂_jd_cd]h�i _̀j]�̂k̀�q_abc_̂bc��]̂_jd_cd]�_db|̂ d̀�a��XYZs��������\;DFCA=�-��[�t�A@�FP;��;7:FP�7=?�\7@;FE��A?;�C6�78;=?;?�FA�B;7?���������5P;�\F7F;��7F;B�K;6A>BD;6��A=FBA:��A7B?�87E�?A�7::�A@�FP;�@A::A�C=G�B;:7F;?�FA�7DDB;?CFC=G�;=OCBA=8;=F7::7MAB7FABC;6�C=�FP;�6F7F;�,7/��@@;B�MAFP�6F7F;�7DDB;?CF7FCA=�7=?�TUVW4�XYZ��7DDB;?CF7FCA=N��PCDP�6P7::�M;�DA=6C?;B;?�;L>CO7:;=F�@ABB;G>:7FABE�7DFCOCFC;6�DAO;B;?�ME�FPC6�7BFCD:;H,M/�W?A9F�B;G>:7FCA=6�FA�;6F7M:C6P�FP;�7DDB;?CF7FCA=�9BAD;?>B;6�@AB�MAFP�FE9;6�A@�7DDB;?CF7FCA=H,D/�K;F7C=�;�D:>6CO;�7>FPABCFE�FA�GB7=F�TUVW4�XYZ��7DDB;?CF7FCA=H,?/�WDD;9F�D;BFC@CD7F;6�A@�7DDB;?CF7FCA=�@BA8�:7MAB7FABC;6�FP7F�P7O;�M;;=�7DDB;?CF;?�ME�AFP;B�TUVW4�B;DAG=C�;?�XYZ�c̀ob�jz�̀d��7DDB;?CFC=G�7>FPABCFC;6H,;/�W?A9F�B;G>:7FCA=6�FA�;6F7M:C6P�9BAD;?>B;6�@AB�B;DAG=C�C=G�FP;�7DDB;?CF7FCA=�A@�:7MAB7FABC;6�:AD7F;?�A>F6C?;�7:C@AB=C7�@AB�7DFCOCFC;6�B;G>:7F;?�>=?;B�FPC6�7BFCD:;H,@/�,-/�W?A9F�7�6DP;?>:;�A@�@;;6�FA�B;DAO;B�DA6F6�C=D>BB;?�@AB�FP;�7DDB;?CF7FCA=�A@�;=OCBA=8;=F7:�:7MAB7FABC;6H�A=6C6F;=F��CFP�\;DFCA=���A@�WBFCD:;��   �W�A@�FP;��7:C@AB=C7��A=6FCF>FCA=N�FP;�]̂_̂ �̀�MA7B?�6P7::�6;F�FP;�@;;6�>=?;BFPC6�6;DFCA=�C=�7=�78A>=F�6>@@CDC;=F�FA�B;DAO;B�7::�B;76A=7M:;�B;G>:7FABE�DA6F6�C=D>BB;?�@AB�FP;�9>B9A6;6�A@�FPC67BFCD:;H,�/�5P;�]̂_̂ �̀�MA7B?�6P7::�6;F�FP;�78A>=F�A@�FAF7:�B;O;=>;�DA::;DF;?�;7DP�E;7B�FPBA>GP�FP;�@;;�6DP;?>:;�7F�7=78A>=F�;L>7:�FA�FP;�78A>=F�799BA9BC7F;?�ME�FP;�V;GC6:7F>B;�C=�FP;�7==>7:��>?G;F�WDF�@BA8�FP;�U=OCBA=8;=F7:V7MAB7FABE� 89BAO;8;=F�¡>=?�@AB�;�9;=?CF>B;�@AB�FP;�7?8C=C6FB7FCA=�A@�FPC6�7BFCD:;N�F7¢C=G�C=FA�7DDA>=F�FP;



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( ���+

,-.-,/-.�01�23-�41/0,516-1278�97:5,725,;�<6=,5/-6-12�>?1@A�B3-�CDEDF��:57,@�.3788�,-/0-G�71@�,-/0.-�23-�H--.-7I3�H0.I78�;-7,�7.�1-I-..7,;�25�I51H5,6�G023�23-�765?12.�7==,5=,072-@�:;�23-�9-J0.872?,-A�<H�23-�CDEDF��:57,@@-2-,601-.�2372�23-�,-/-1?-�I588-I2-@�@?,01J�23-�=,-I-@01J�;-7,�G7.�J,-72-,�2371K�5,�8-..�2371K�23-�765?12.7==,5=,072-@�:;�23-�9-J0.872?,-K�23-�CDEDF��:57,@�67;�H?,23-,�7@L?.2�23-�H--.�25�I56=-1.72-�H5,�23-�5/-,�5,?1@-,�I588-I2051�5H�,-/-1?-AMNO�B3-�CDEDF��:57,@�.3788�7@5=2�23-�.I3-@?8-�5H�H--.�:;�-6-,J-1I;�,-J?872051A�B3-�-6-,J-1I;�,-J?872051.�67;01I8?@-�=,5/0.051.�I51I-,101J�23-�7@6010.2,72051�71@�I588-I2051�5H�23-�H--.A�P1;�-6-,J-1I;�,-J?872051.�7@5=2-@=?,.?712�25�230.�.-I2051K�71;�76-1@6-12�25�235.-�,-J?872051.K�5,�.?:.-Q?-12�7@L?.26-12.�25�23-�711?78�H--.K.3788�:-�7@5=2-@�:;�23-�CDEDF��:57,@�01�7II5,@71I-�G023�R37=2-,�NAS�MI566-1I01J�G023�T-I2051�UUNVWO�5H�X7,2�U5H�Y0/0.051�N�5H�B028-�Z�5H�23-�[5/-,16-12�R5@-A�B3-�7@5=2051�5H�23-.-�,-J?872051.�0.�71�-6-,J-1I;�71@�.3788�:-I51.0@-,-@�:;�23-�\HH0I-�5H�P@6010.2,720/-�97G�7.�1-I-..7,;�H5,�23-�066-@072-�=,-.-,/72051�5H�23-�=?:80I�=-7I-K3-7823K�.7H-2;K�71@�J-1-,78�G-8H7,-A�]52G023.271@01J�R37=2-,�NAS�MI566-1I01J�G023�T-I2051�UUNVWO�5H�X7,2�U�5HY0/0.051�N�5H�B028-�Z�5H�23-�[5/-,16-12�R5@-K�71;�-6-,J-1I;�,-J?872051.�7@5=2-@�:;�23-�CDEDF��:57,@K�5,7@L?.26-12.�25�23-�711?78�H--.�67@-�:;�23-�CDEDF��:57,@�=?,.?712�25�230.�.-I2051K�7,-�152�.?:L-I2�25�,-/0-G�:;23-�\HH0I-�5H�P@6010.2,720/-�97G�71@�,-6701�01�-HH-I2�?1208�,-/0.-@�:;�23-�CDEDF��:57,@AMVO�>--.�.3788�:-�.-2�H5,�23-�2G5�2;=-.�5H�7II,-@0272051�=,5/0@-@�H5,�01�.?:@0/0.051�M7OK�01I8?@01J�7==80I72051�H--.AMSO�X,5J,76.�5=-,72-@�?1@-,�230.�7,20I8-�.3788�:-�H?88;�H--̂.?==5,2-@A_̀ ab�cb�T-I2051�UWWdNe�5H�23-�f-7823�71@�T7H-2;�R5@-�0.�76-1@-@�25�,-7@ghiijckb�B3-�@-=7,26-12��CDEDF�lmEno��67;�I512,7I2�G023�7==,5/-@�230,@̂=7,2;�87:5,725,;�7..-..5,�:5@0-.�017II5,@71I-�G023�23-�I,02-,07�@-/-85=-@�:;�23-�]49PR�pqr��5,�523-,�E��H-@-,78�7J-1I0-.A�EsFtuvw�_̀ ab�xb�T-I2051�UWWdVW�5H�23-�f-7823�71@�T7H-2;�R5@-�0.�76-1@-@�25�,-7@ghiijxib�P1;�87:5,725,;�,-Q?-.201J�49PX�I-,20H0I72051�5,�]49PX�pqr��7II,-@0272051�?1@-,�230.�7,20I8-�.3788�H08-�G02323-�@-=7,26-12��CDEDF�lmEno��71�7==80I72051�51�H5,6.�=,-.I,0:-@�:;�23-�@-=7,26-12��CDEDF�lmEno��I51270101J�788�5H23-�H5885G01JgM7O�B3-�176-.�5H�23-�7==80I712�71@�23-�87:5,725,;AM:O�B3-�85I72051�5H�23-�87:5,725,;AMIO�P�80.2�5H�H0-8@.�5H�2-.201J�H5,�G30I3�23-�87:5,725,;�0.�.--y01J�I-,20H0I72051K�.-8-I2-@�H,56�23-�7I20/020-.�80.2-@�01T-I2051�UWWdzWAU�5,�UWWdzZA��uFnD{|{uED{mtw�M@O�4/0@-1I-�.720.H7I25,;�25�23-�@-=7,26-12��CDEDF�lmEno��2372�23-�7==80I712�37.�23-�7:0802;�25�I56=8;�G023�230.7,20I8-�71@�23-�,-J?872051.�7@5=2-@�?1@-,�230.�7,20I8-AM-O�P1;�523-,�01H5,672051�,-Q?0,-@�:;�23-�@-=7,26-12��CDEDF�lmEno��H5,�7@6010.2,72051�5,�-1H5,I-6-12�5H�230.7,20I8-�5,�,-J?872051.�7@5=2-@�?1@-,�230.�7,20I8-A_̀ ab�}b�T-I2051�UWWdVe�5H�23-�f-7823�71@�T7H-2;�R5@-�0.�76-1@-@�25�,-7@ghiijxkb�M7O�B3-�=-,05@�5H�7II,-@0272051�H5,�]49PX�pqr��7II,-@02-@�87:5,725,0-.�.3788�:-�UZ�65123.A�P1�7==80I72051H5,�,-1-G78�.3788�:-�H08-@�G023�23-�@-=7,26-12��CDEDF�lmEno��=,05,�25�23-�-~=0,72051�@72-�5H�23-�7II,-@0272051A>708?,-�25�67y-�206-8;�7==80I72051�H5,�,-1-G78�.3788�,-.?82�01�-~=0,72051�5H�23-�7II,-@0272051AM:O�B3-�7II,-@0201J�7?235,02;�.3788�:-�1520H0-@�01�G,0201J�G02301�NW�I78-1@7,�@7;.�5H�23-�.78-�5,�523-,�2,71.H-,�5H5G1-,.30=�5H�7�]49PX�pqr��7II,-@02-@�87:5,725,;AMIO�B3-�7II,-@0201J�7?235,02;�.3788�:-�1520H0-@�01�G,0201J�G02301�NW�I78-1@7,�@7;.�5H�23-�I371J-�01�85I72051�5H�7]49PX�pqr��7II,-@02-@�87:5,725,;K�523-,�2371�7�65:08-�87:5,725,;AM@O�B3-�7II,-@0201J�7?235,02;�.3788�:-�1520H0-@�G02301�NW�I78-1@7,�@7;.�G3-1-/-,�23-,-�0.�7�I371J-�5H�87:5,725,;@0,-I25,K�5,�523-,�01@0/0@?78�01�I37,J-�5H�23-�87:5,725,;AM-O�]49PX�pqr��7II,-@02-@�87:5,725,0-.�.3788�I51.=0I?5?.8;�@0.=87;�23-0,�65.2�,-I-12�]49PX�pqr��7II,-@0272051I-,20H0I72-�5,�23-0,�7II,-@0272051�H0-8@.�5H�2-.201JK�5,�:523K�01�7�=-,671-12�=87I-�01�23-0,�87:5,725,;AMHO�]49PX�pqr��7II,-@02-@�87:5,725,0-.�.3788�152�?.-�23-0,�]49PX�pqr��7II,-@0272051�@5I?6-12�5,�23-0,7II,-@0272051�.272?.�25�06=8;�71;�-1@5,.-6-12�:;�23-�7II,-@0201J�7?235,02;A



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( *��+

,-./�0/�1234567�899:;9�6<�4=2�>2?@4=�?7A�1?<24B�C6A2�5D�?E27A2A�46�F2?AGHIIJKI/�L?M�NO67�4=2�<5@57P�6<�?7�?OO@53?4567�<6F�QRST�32F45<53?4567�6F�UQRST�VWX��?33F2A54?4567�?7A�?<42F�?�<57A57PYB�4=2�A2O?F4E274��Z[\[]�̂_\̀a��4=?4�4=2F2�5D�<b@@�36EO@5?732�c54=�4=5D�?F453@2�?7A�F2Pb@?4567D�?A6O42A�b7A2F�4=5D?F453@2d�4=2�A2O?F4E274��Z[\[]�̂_\̀a��D=?@@�5DDb2�46�4=2�6c72F�32F45<53?4567�6F�?33F2A54?4567�57�4=2�<52@AD�6<�42D457P5A2745<52A�57�1234567�899:e9f8�6F�899:egf��h_̀�ijklj�[j]�m\̂ _̀\[_̀n�kZ�Z]]okpq�l]̀[khkl\[k_p�\pa�ik[j�̀]Zr]l[�[_ijklj�[j]�Z[\[]�̂_\̀a�j\Z�a][]̀skp]a�[j]̀]�kZ�htmm�l_srmk\pl]u�LYM�v=2�A2O?F4E274��Z[\[]�̂_\̀a��D=?@@�A27B�6F�F2w6x2�?�32F45<53?42�5<�54�<57AD�?7B�6<�4=2�<6@@6c57PGL8M�v=2�@?Y6F?46FB�<?5@D�46�F2O6F4�?332O4?Y@2�F2Db@4D�57�4=2�?7?@BD5D�6<�OF6<535273B�42D457P�D?EO@2DfLgM�v=2�@?Y6F?46FB�<?5@D�46�?7?@By2�OF6<535273B�42D457P�D?EO@2DfLzM�v=2�@?Y6F?46FB�DbYE54Dd�?D�54D�6c7d�OF6<535273B�42D457P�D?EO@2�F2Db@4D�P272F?42A�YB�?764=2F�@?Y6F?46FBfL{M�v=2�@?Y6F?46FB�<?5@D�46�O?DD�?7�67D542�?DD2DDE274fL;M�v=2�@?Y6F?46FB�5D�764�57�36EO@5?732�c54=�?7B�64=2F�OF6w5D567�6<�4=5D�?F453@2�6F�F2Pb@?4567D�?A6O42A�b7A2F�4=5D?F453@2fL3M��TF6w5A2A�4=?4�4=2F2�5D�36EO@5?732�c54=�?@@�64=2F�OF6w5D567D�6<�4=5D�?F453@2d�4=2�A2O?F4E274�E?B�F2D4F534�?32F45<53?42�46�4=2�<52@AD�6<�42D457P�6<�1234567�899:e9�6F�899:eg�6F�DbYPF6bOD�4=2F26<�?D�A2<572A�YB�F2Pb@?4567�<6Fc=53=�?332O4?Y@2�OF6<535273B�42D457P�F2Db@4D�=?w2�Y227�OF6Ab32A�?7A�4=2�67D542�?DD2DDE274�c?D�O?DD2AfLAM��|l}��NO67�4=2�<5@57P�6<�?�36EO@242�?OO@53?4567�<6F�32F45<53?4567�6F�?33F2A54?4567�ObFDb?74�46�DbYA5w5D567�L?M�?7A1234567�899:~9d�4=2�A2O?F4E274��Z[\[]�̂_\̀a��E?B�5DDb2�46�?�@?Y6F?46FB�5742F5E�32F45<53?4567�6F�?33F2A54?4567O27A57P�4=2�36EO@24567�6<�67D542�?DD2DDE274�5742F5E�\ZZ]ZZs]p[u�Xp[]̀ks��32F45<53?4567�?7A�?33F2A54?4567�D=?@@�Y2767F272c?Y@2�?7A�D=?@@�F2E?57�57�2<<234�b745@�32F45<53?4567�?7A�?33F2A54?4567�5D�254=2F�PF?742A�b7A2F�DbYA5w5D567L?M�6F�A2752A�b7A2F�DbYA5w5D567�LYMd�Yb4�764�@?42F�4=?7�672�B2?F�?<42F�4=2�A?42�6<�5DDb?732f,-./��/�1234567�899:;8�6<�4=2�>2?@4=�?7A�1?<24B�C6A2�5D�?E27A2A�46�F2?AGHIIJKH/�L?M�S7�?OO@53?4567�<6F�UQRST�VWX��?33F2A54?4567�6F�F272c?@�6<�UQRST�VWX��?33F2A54?4567�D=?@@�Y2�A2752A�YB4=2�?33F2A5457P�?b4=6F54B�̂_an��<6F�?7B�6<�4=2�<6@@6c57P�F2?D67DGL8M��?5@bF2�46�DbYE54�?@@�57<6FE?4567�7232DD?FB�46�A242FE572�4=2�@?Y6F?46FB�D�2@5P5Y5@54B�<6F�54D�?33F2A54?4567�6F367457b2A�36EO@5?732�c54=�4=5D�D234567�6F�F2Pb@?4567D�?A6O42A�4=2F2b7A2FfLgM��?5@bF2�6<�4=2�@?Y6F?46FB�D4?<<�46�E224�UQRSC�VWX��D4?7A?FAD�<6F�O2FD6772@�F2�b5F2E274Df�v=2D2��b?@5<53?4567DE?B�573@bA2�2Ab3?4567d�4F?5757Pd�?7A�2�O2F52732�F2�b5F2E274DfLzM��?5@bF2�46�Db332DD<b@@B�?7?@By2�?7A�F2O6F4�OF6<535273B�42D457P�D?EO@2DfL{M��?5@bF2�46�F2DO67A�46�?�A2<535273B�F2O6F4�<F6E�4=2�67D542�?DD2DDE274�c54=�?�36FF2345w2�?34567�F2O6F4�c54=57�z93?@27A?F�A?BD�6<�4=2�F2325O4�6<�4=2�F2O6F4fL;M��?5@bF2�46�5EO@2E274�4=2�36FF2345w2�?34567D�A24?5@2A�57�4=2�36FF2345w2�?34567�F2O6F4�c54=57�4=2�DO235<52A?E6b74�6<�45E2fLeM��5DF2OF2D274?4567�6<�?7B�E?42F5?@�<?34�O2F457274�46�F2325w57P�6F�E?574?5757P�UQRST�VWX��?33F2A54?4567fLYM�v=2�UQRST�?OOF6w2A�VWX�̀]l_qpk�]a��?33F2A5457P�?b4=6F54B�̂_an��E?B�DbDO27A�4=2�?33F2A54?4567�6<�?UQRST�VWX��?33F2A542A�@?Y6F?46FBd�57�c=6@2�6F�57�O?F4d�<6F�<?5@bF2�46�36FF234�4=2�A2<53527352Dd�c54=57�?�DO235<52A?E6b74�6<�45E2d�?D�5A2745<52A�57�4=2�67D542�?DD2DDE274f�v=2�@?Y6F?46FB�D=?@@�F24?57�4=6D2�?F2?D�6<�?33F2A54?4567c=2F2�54�367457b2D�46�E224�4=2�F2�b5F2E274D�6<�4=2�?33F2A5457P�?b4=6F54Bf�̂_anu��S�DbDO27A2A�UQRST�VWX�?33F2A542A�@?Y6F?46FB�D=?@@�764�Y2�F2�b5F2A�46�F2?OO@B�<6F�?33F2A54?4567�5<�4=2�3?bD2D�<6F�DbDO27D567�?F2�36FF2342Ac54=57�D5��E674=DfL3M�v=2�UQRST�VWX��?OOF6w2A�?33F2A5457P�?b4=6F54B�̂_an��D=?@@�DbDO27A�?�UQRST�VWX��?33F2A54?4567�57�c=6@2�6F�57O?F4�<6F�4=2�<6@@6c57P�F2?D67DGL8M��?5@bF2�46�36EO@242�OF6<535273B�42D457P�D4bA52DfLgM��?5@bF2�46�E?574?57�?�=5D46FB�6<�?4�@2?D4�4c6�Db332DD<b@d�6b4�6<�4=2�E6D4�F23274�4=F22d�OF6<535273B�42D457PD4bA52D�<6F�2?3=�?<<2342A�?33F2A54?4567�<52@A�6<�42D457Pd�DbYPF6bOd�6F�?7?@B42�\p\mn�]��<6F�c=53=�4=2�@?Y6F?46FB�5D



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( +��,

-../0123014567�8-29:/0�3;�<:..0<<=:99>�-?-9>@0�-?1�/0A;/3�A/;=2.20?.>�30<32?B�<-CA90�/0<:93<�A:/<:-?3�3;�DE-A30/�F�;=�3E0GHIJD��KLM��<3-?1-/1<45N7�8-29:/0�3;�<:OC23�-?�-..0A3-O90�.;//0.32P0�-.32;?�/0A;/3�2?�/0<A;?<0�3;�-�10=2.20?.>�/0A;/3�-?1�=-29:/0�3;2CA90C0?3�.;//0.32P0�-.32;?�/09-301�3;�-?>�10=2.20?.20<�=;:?1�1:/2?B�9-O;/-3;/>�-<<0<<C0?3<�Q23E2?�3E0�/0R:2/0132C0�A0/2;1S�-<�/0R:2/01�O>�3E0�GHIJD�KLM��<3-?1-/1<45T7�8-29:/0�3;�?;32=>�3E0�-../01232?B�-:3E;/23>�UVWX��;=�-?>�.E-?B0<�2?�Y0>�-../0123-32;?�./230/2-S�-<�/0R:2/01�O>DE-A30/�N�;=�3E0�GHIJD��KLM��<3-?1-/1<45Z7�8-29:/0�3;�A0/=;/C�-99�-../012301�30<3<�2?�-..;/1-?.0�Q23E�GHIJD�KLM��<3-?1-/1<45[7�8-29:/0�3;�C003�-99�;=�3E0�/0R:2/0C0?3<�;=�DE-A30/�T�;=�3E0�GHIJD��\]]̂_̀\Ûa�bc\̂_dX�eXedaf�gabc_gafahde�_hKLM��<3-?1-/1<4517�J�<:<A0?101�9-O;/-3;/>�<E-99�?;3�O0�/0R:2/01�3;�/0-AA9>�=;/�-?>�GHIJi�KLM��-../0123-32;?�2=�3E0�.-:<0<�=;/<:<A0?<2;?�-/0�.;//0.301�Q23E2?�<2j�C;?3E<4�J�<:<A0?101�9-O;/-3;/>�C->�?;3�.;?32?:0�3;�-?-9>@0�<-CA90<�=;/�3E0-==0.301�=2091<�;=�30<32?B�=;/�QE2.E�23�E;91<�-../0123-32;?4�J�<:<A0?101�9-O;/-3;/>�<E-99�/0C-2?�<:<A0?101�Q23E;:3-�/2BE3�3;�-AA0-9�2=�3E0�<:<A0?<2;?�2<�.-:<01�O>�:?-..0A3-O90�A/;=2.20?.>�30<32?B�<-CA90�/0<:93<4507�k=�-�9-O;/-3;/>�2<�:?-O90�3;�.;//0.3�3E0�/0-<;?�=;/�<:<A0?<2;?S�3E0�9-O;/-3;/>l<�-../0123-32;?�<E-99�O0�/0P;Y012?�QE;90�;/�2?�A-/345=7�J�9-O;/-3;/>l<�-../0123-32;?�C->�?;3�O0�<:<A0?101�Q23E;:3�3E0�/2BE3�3;�1:0�A/;.0<<S�-<�<03�=;/3E�2?�DE-A30/�N;=�3E0�GHIJD��KLM��<3-?1-/1<4mnop�qp�r0.32;?�sttuTF�;=�3E0�v0-93E�-?1�r-=03>�D;10�2<�-C0?101�3;�/0-1wxyyqz{p�5-7�G;3Q23E<3-?12?B�-?>�;3E0/�A/;P2<2;?�;=��9-QS�3E0�10A-/3C0?3��ed\da�UV\gW��C->�2<<:0�-�.0/32=2.-30�3;3E0�;Q?0/�;=�-�9-O;/-3;/>�2?�-�=2091�;=�30<32?B�;/�C03E;1�-1;A301�O>�3E0�=010/-9�H?P2/;?C0?3-9�i/;30.32;?�JB0?.>A:/<:-?3�3;�i-/3�s6Z�;=�|2390�Nt�;=�3E0�D;10�;=�8010/-9�}0B:9-32;?<S�-<�-C0?101�r0A30CO0/�ssS�s~~FS�-<A:O92<E01�2?�3E0�8010/-9�}0B2<30/�5T[�8}�Nsu6t7S�;/�i-/3�sNs�;=�|2390�Nt�;=�3E0�D;10�;=�8010/-9�}0B:9-32;?<S�-<-C0?101��:9>�s[S�s~~FS�-<�A:O92<E01�2?�3E0�8010/-9�}0B2<30/�5T[�8}�6s[[Z7S�-?1�-<�<:O<0R:0?39>�-C0?101�-?1A:O92<E01�2?�3E0�D;10�;=�8010/-9�}0B:9-32;?<45O7�J<�-�GHIJi�-AA/;P01�-../0123-32?B�-:3E;/23>S�3E0�10A-/3C0?3��KLM�gàV�h_�aW�\̀ g̀aW_d_h��UVWX��d�a�ed\daUV\gW��<E-99�-..0A3�A0/=;/C-?.0�O-<01�C0-<:/0C0?3�<><30C�C03E;1<S�QE0?�C-?1-301�C03E;1<�-/0�2?12.-3014�J=00S�-<�<A0.2=201�2?�/0B:9-32;?<�-1;A301�O>�3E0�10A-/3C0?3S��ed\da�UV\gW���C->�O0�.E-/B01�=;/�3E0�/0P20Q�;=�0-.EA0/=;/C-?.0�O-<01�C0-<:/0C0?3�<><30C�C03E;145.7�G;3Q23E<3-?12?B�-?>�;3E0/�A/;P2<2;?�;=�9-QS�3E0�10A-/3C0?3��ed\da�UV\gW��<E-99�?;3�O0�/0R:2/01�3;�C003�3E0/0R:2/0C0?3<�;=�DE-A30/�64T�5.;CC0?.2?B�Q23E�r0.32;?�ss6Nt7�;=�3E0��;P0/?C0?3�D;10�2?�;/10/�3;�2<<:0�-.0/32=2.-30�A:/<:-?3�3;�<:O12P2<2;?�5-74mnop��p�r0.32;?�sttuTT�;=�3E0�v0-93E�-?1�r-=03>�D;10�2<�/0A0-9014xyyqzzp��A;?�3E0�10?2-9�;=�-?>�-AA92.-32;?�=;/�HIJi�.0/32=2.-32;?�;/�GHIJi�-../0123-32;?S�;/�3E0�/0P;.-32;?�;/<:<A0?<2;?�;=�HIJi�.0/32=2.-32;?�;/�GHIJi�-../0123-32;?S�3E0�10A-/3C0?3�<E-99�2CC012-309>�?;32=>�3E0�-AA92.-?3�;/;/B-?2@-32;?�O>�.0/32=201�C-29S�/03:/?�/0.02A3�/0R:0<301S�;=�3E0�-.32;?�-?1�3E0�/0-<;?<�=;/�3E0�-.32;?4��23E2?�Ft.-90?1-/�1-><�;=�/0.02A3S�3E0�-AA92.-?3�;/�;/B-?2@-32;?�C->�A/0<0?3�3E0�10A-/3C0?3�Q23E�-�Q/2330?�A03232;?�=;/�-E0-/2?B4��A;?�/0.02A3�2?�A/;A0/�=;/C�O>�3E0�10A-/3C0?3S�3E0�A03232;?�<E-99�O0�<03�=;/�E0-/2?B4�|E0�A/;.0012?B<<E-99�O0�.;?1:.301�2?�-..;/1-?.0�Q23E�r0.32;?�stts[s�-?1�3E0�10A-/3C0?3�E-<�-99�3E0�A;Q0/<�B/-?301�2?�3E-3<0.32;?4����������àd_Vh��������_e�\WWaW�dV�d�a��a\̂d��\hW��\�adX��VWa��dV�ga\W����������]Vh�d�a�Wah_\̂�V��\h�\]]̂_̀\d_Vh��Vg������̀agd_�_̀\d_Vh�Vg�KLM�\̀ g̀aW_d\d_Vh��d�a�ed\da�UV\gW�e�\̂^_ffaW_\dâX�hVd_�X�d�a�\]]̂_̀\hd�Vg�Vg�\h_�\d_Vh�UX�̀agd_�_aW�f\_̂��gadcgh�gàa_]d�gabcaedaW��V��d�a�\̀d_Vh�\hW�d�aga\eVhe��Vg�d�a�\̀d_Vh��K�a�V�hag�V��\�̂\UVg\dVgX�f\X�]ad_d_Vh��Vg�gàVhe_Wag\d_Vh�chWag��àd_Vh��� ¡���mnop�xxp�r0.32;?�sttuZF�;=�3E0�v0-93E�-?1�r-=03>�D;10�2<�-C0?101�3;�/0-1w



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( +��+

,--./01�234�56�678�69:8�;<�3==>9?369;@�<;A�BCD5E�FGH��3??A8I96369;@�3@I�3@@J3>>K�678A83<68AL�<A;:�678�I368�;<�6789MMJ3@?8�;<�678�3??A8I96369;@L�3�>3N;A36;AK�M73>>�=3K�3�BCD5E�FGH��3??A8I96369;@�<88L�3??;AI9@O�6;�678�<88�M?78IJ>88M63N>9M78I�NK�678�P6368�Q368A�R8M;JA?8M�S;@6A;>�T;3AI��UVWVX�YZW[\��=JAMJ3@6�6;�P8?69;@�]̂ _̂̀ ab2N4�c@�3II969;@�6;�678�=3K:8@6�;<�<88M�3J67;A9d8I�NK�P8?69;@�]̂ _̂̀ aL�>3N;A36;A98M�3??A8I968I�;A�3==>K9@O�<;A3??A8I96369;@�M73>>�=3K�I9A8?6>K�6;�678�I8M9O@368I�=A;<9?98@?K�68M69@O�=A;e9I8A�678�?;M6�;<�678�=A;<9?98@?K�68M69@OM6JI98Mbfgh1�,01�P8?69;@�]̂ _̂ij�;<�678�k83>67�3@I�P3<86K�S;I8�9M�3:8@I8I�6;�A83Il,--./m1�234�c@�;AI8A�6;�?3AAK�;J6�678�=JA=;M8�;<�679M�3A69?>8L�3@K�IJ>K�3J67;A9d8I�A8=A8M8@6369e8�;<�678�I8=3A6:8@6�UVWVX�YZW[\��:3K�I;�678�<;>>;n9@Ol2]4�C@68A�3@I�9@M=8?6�3�>3N;A36;AK�6736�9M�CD5E�?8A69<98I�;A�BCD5E�FGH��3??A8I968I�=JAMJ3@6�6;�679M�3A69?>8�;A�673673M�3==>98I�<;A�CD5E�?8A69<9?369;@�;A�BCD5E�FGH��3??A8I96369;@b2̀4�c@M=8?6�3@I�=7;6;OA3=7�3@K�=;A69;@�;<�678�>3N;A36;AKL�8oJ9=:8@6L�3@K�3?69e96KL�;A�3@K�M3:=>8M�63p8@L�;A�?;=K3@I�=7;6;OA3=7�3@K�A8?;AIML�A8=;A6ML�68M6�A8MJ>6ML�;A�;678A�9@<;A:369;@�A8>368I�M;>8>K�6;�?8A69<9?369;@�J@I8A�679M3A69?>8�;A�A8OJ>369;@M�3I;=68I�=JAMJ3@6�6;�679M�3A69?>8bqrs�tXuvw[X�Wx�ZyxX[�Zz�W�{WYZ[WVZ[|�VZ�}[Z~w\X��ywV�wx����\W|U�Zz�[X�Xw~wx��W�[XuvXUV�z[Z��W�\v{|�WvV�Z[w�X\[X}[XUXxVWVw~X�Zz�V�X�UVWVX�YZW[\��[X}Z[VU��VXUV�[XUv{VU��Wx\�ZV�X[�wxzZ[�WVwZx�[Xuvw[X\�VZ�w�}{X�XxV�V�wU�W[Vw�{X�wx�{v\wx���YvV�xZV�{w�wVX\�VZ��W}}{w�WY{X�UVWx\W[\�Z}X[WVwx��}[Z�X\v[XU��uvW{wV|��ZxV[Z{�Z[�uvW{wV|�WUUv[Wx�X�WxvW{U��uvW{wV|��ZxV[Z{�Z[�uvW{wV|�WUUv[Wx�X�\WVW��X�}{Z|XX�uvW{wzw�WVwZxU��V[Wwxwx��[X�Z[\U��Z[�wxzZ[�WVwZx[X{WVwx��VZ�W��[X\wVWVwZx�ywV��WxZV�X[�UVWVX�Z[�W�Xx�|��F�X�UVWVX�YZW[\��W|�[Xuvw[X�W�{WYZ[WVZ[|�VZ��Zx\v�V}[Zzw�wXx�|�VXUVwx��wx�Wx|�Zz�V�X�{WYZ[WVZ[|�U�W��[X\wVX\�zwX{\U�Zz�VXUVwx��2N4�c6�M73>>�N8�3�:9MI8:83@;A�<;A�3@K�=8AM;@�6;�=A8e8@6L�9@68A<8A8�n967L�;A�3668:=6�6;�9:=8I8�9@�3@K�n3KL�3@KIJ>K�3J67;A9d8I�A8=A8M8@6369e8�;<�678�I8=3A6:8@6��UVWVX�YZW[\��<A;:�J@I8A63p9@O�678�3?69e9698M�3J67;A9d8I�NK�679MM8?69;@b2?4�c<�3�>3N;A36;AK�6736�9M�M88p9@O�CD5E�?8A69<9?369;@L�BCD5E�FGH��3??A8I96369;@L�CD5E�A8?8A69<9?369;@L�;A�BCD5E�FGH�A83??A8I96369;@�A8<JM8M�8@6AK�;<�3�IJ>K�3J67;A9d8I�A8=A8M8@6369e8�IJA9@O�@;A:3>�NJM9@8MM�7;JAM�<;A�89678A�3@3@@;J@?8I�;A�J@3@@;J@?8I�;@M968�3MM8MM:8@6L�678�?8A69<9?369;@L�3??A8I96369;@L�A8?8A69<9?369;@L�;A�A83??A8I96369;@M73>>�N8�I8@98I�;A�A8e;p8Ib2I4�R8<JM3>�;<�3�A8oJ8M6�NK�3�BCD5E�FGH��3==A;e8I�3??A8I969@O�3J67;A96KL�678�I8=3A6:8@6L��UVWVX�YZW[\���;A�3@K8:=>;K88L�3O8@6L�;A�?;@6A3?6;A�;<�678�I8=3A6:8@6L��UVWVX�YZW[\���<;A�=8A:9MM9;@�6;�9@M=8?6L�=JAMJ3@6�6;�679MM8?69;@L�678�>3N;A36;AK�3@I�96M�;=8A369;@M�3@I�=8A69@8@6�A8?;AIM�IJA9@O�678�7;JAM�678�>3N;A36;AK�9M�9@�;=8A369;@M73>>�A8MJ>6�9@�I8@93>�;A�A8e;?369;@�;<�CD5E�?8A69<9?369;@�;A�BCD5E�FGH��3??A8I96369;@bfgh1�,�1�P8?69;@�]̂ _̂�̂ �;<�678�k83>67�3@I�P3<86K�S;I8�9M�3:8@I8I�6;�A83Il,--.�-1�234�5@K�>3N;A36;AK�6736�9M�CD5E�?8A69<98I�;A�7;>IM�BCD5E�FGH��3??A8I96369;@�;A�73M�3==>98I�<;A�CD5E?8A69<9?369;@�;A�BCD5E�FGH��3??A8I96369;@�;A�<;A�A8@8n3>�;<�CD5E�?8A69<9?369;@�;A�BCD5E�FGH��3??A8I96369;@�J@I8A679M�3A69?>8�M73>>�3@3>Kd8�=A;<9?98@?K�68M69@O�M3:=>8ML�9<�678M8�68M69@O�M3:=>8M�3A8�3e39>3N>8b��78�I8=3A6:8@6�UVWVX�YZW[\��M73>>�73e8�678�3J67;A96K�6;�?;@6A3?6�n967�679AI�=3A698M�<;A�678�=A;e9M9;@�;<�=A;<9?98@?K�68M69@OM3:=>8M�<;A�67;M8�>3N;A36;A98M�6736�7;>I�;A�3A8�3==>K9@O�<;A�CD5E�?8A69<9?369;@b��78�M3:=>8M�M73>>�N8�68M68I�NK�678>3N;A36;AK�3??;AI9@O�6;�:867;IM�M=8?9<9?3>>K�3==A;e8I�<;A�679M�=JA=;M8�NK�678��@968I�P6368M�O;e8A@:8@6�;A�678I8=3A6:8@6L��UVWVX�YZW[\���;A�3>68A@368�:867;IM�;<�I8:;@M6A368I�3I8oJ3?K�;A�8oJ9e3>8@?8L�3M�I868A:9@8I�NK�678I8=3A6:8@6b��UVWVX�YZW[\���EA;<9?98@?K�68M69@O�M3:=>8�M86M�M73>>�N8�=A;e9I8IL�n78@�3e39>3N>8L�@;6�>8MM�673@�6n9?8L@;A�:;A8�673@�<;JA�69:8ML�3�K83A�6;�83?7�?8A69<98I�>3N;A36;AK�6736�=8A<;A:M�3@3>KM8M�;<�<;;I�<;A�=8M69?9I8A8M9IJ8Mb2N4�2]4��78�I8=3A6:8@6��UVWVX�YZW[\��:3K�=A;e9I8L�I9A8?6>K�;A�9@I9A8?6>KL�=A;<9?98@?K�68M69@O�M3:=>8M�6;�3>3N;A36;AK�<;A�678�=JA=;M8�;<�I868A:9@9@O�?;:=>93@?8�n967�679M�3A69?>8�n967�;A�n967;J6�9I8@69<K9@O�678�I8=3A6:8@6b�UVWVX�YZW[\��2̀4�Q78@�678�I8=3A6:8@6��UVWVX�YZW[\��9I8@69<98M�96M8><L�3>>�;<�678�<;>>;n9@O�M73>>�3==>Kl254��78�A8MJ>6M�;<�678�68M69@O�M73>>�N8�MJN:9668I�6;�678�I8=3A6:8@6��UVWVX�YZW[\��;@�<;A:M�=A;e9I8I�NK�678I8=3A6:8@6��UVWVX�YZW[\��;@�;A�N8<;A8�678�I368�M=8?9<98I�NK�678�I8=3A6:8@6L��UVWVX�YZW[\���3@I�M73>>�N8�JM8I�9@I868A:9@9@O�678�?;:=868@?K�;<�678�>3N;A36;AKb



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( ���+

,-.�/0121�30455�61�78�9042:1�;8�;01�<1=42;>17;��?@A@B�CDAEF��G82�;01�4745H3I3J,K.�L017�;01�<1=42;>17;��?@A@B�CDAEF��<813�78;�I<17;IGH�I;315GM�;01�<1=42;>17;��?@A@B�CDAEF��30455�=4H�;01�=2I9121NO13;1<�6H�;01�546824;82H�G82�;01�4745H313J,9.�PG�4�912;IGI1<�82�QRSTU�VWX��49921<I;1<�546824;82H�3O6>I;3�=28GI9I179H�;13;I7:�34>=51�213O5;3�:17124;1<�6H478;012�546824;82H�43�I;3�8Y7M�;01�912;IGI94;I87�82�QRSTU�VWX��49921<I;4;I87�30455�61�I>>1<I4;15H�21Z8[1<J,<.�S46824;82I13�30455�86;4I7�;01I2�=28GI9I179H�;13;I7:�34>=513�G28>�=28GI9I179H�;13;I7:�34>=51�=28ZI<123�;04;>11;�QRST\�VWX��3;47<42<3J�S46824;82I13�30455�6142�;01�983;�8G�47H�=28GI9I179H�;13;I7:�3;O<H�G11�9042:1<�G82=42;I9I=4;I87J�R490�546824;82H�30455�4O;082I]1�;01�=28ZI<123�8G�=28GI9I179H�;13;I7:�34>=513�;8�2151431�;01�21=82;�8G;01�3;O<H�213O5;3�<I219;5H�;8�;01�<1=42;>17;M��?@A@B�CDAEF̂��43�Y155�43�;8�;01�546824;82HJ_̀ ab�cdb�e19;I87�fgghij�8G�;01�k145;0�47<�e4G1;H�\8<1�I3�4>17<1<�;8�214<lcmmnopb�,4.�T7�RSTU�912;IGI1<�546824;82H�30455�3O99133GO55H�4745H]1�=28GI9I179H�;13;I7:�34>=513�G82�;0831�GI15<3�8G;13;I7:�G82�Y0I90�;01H�421�912;IGI1<M�78;�5133�;047�8791�4�H142M�Y0121�4==5I94651J�U28GI9I179H�;13;I7:�=2891<O21330455�61�4==28Z1<�6H�;01�q7I;1<�e;4;13�:8Z127>17;�82�6H�;01�<1=42;>17;J��?@A@B�CDAEFr�,6.�T�QRSTU�VWX��49921<I;1<�546824;82H�30455�=42;I9I=4;1�I7M�47<�>11;�;01�3O99133�24;1�G82M�=28GI9I179H�;13;I7:3;O<I13�43�21NOI21<�I7�;01�QRSTU�VWX��3;47<42<3J,9.�/01�RSTU�912;IGI1<�82�QRSTU�VWX��49921<I;1<�546824;82H�30455�<I3987;I7O1�;01�4745H313�8G�34>=513�G82�;01�GI15<38G�;13;I7:�82�3O6:28O=3�Y0I90�04Z1�6117�3O3=17<1<�G82�G4I5O21�;8�98>=5H�YI;0�;01�=28GI9I179H�;13;I7:21NOI21>17;3�I7�;0I3�319;I87J_̀ ab�csb�e19;I87�fgghit�8G�;01�k145;0�47<�e4G1;H�\8<1�I3�4>17<1<�;8�214<lcmmnosb�L0171Z12�;01�<1=42;>17;��?@A@B�CDAEF��<1;12>I713�;04;�47H�=12387�uACDEA@DEv��043�ZI854;1<�82�I3ZI854;I7:�;0I3�42;I951�82�47H�912;IGI94;1M�21:O54;I87M�82�3;47<42<�I33O1<�82�4<8=;1<�=O23O47;�;8�;0I3�42;I951M�;01<I219;82��Awv�DxxyzBE�DE�B{|uDvBB�Dx�@}B�?@A@B�CDAEF�FBuB~A@BF�?�z}�A�@}DEy@v��>4H�I33O1�47�82<12�<I219;I7:98>=5I4791�G82;0YI;0�82�<I219;I7:�98>=5I4791�I7�49982<4791�YI;0�4�;I>1�3901<O51�31;�6H�;01�<1=42;>17;J�?@A@BCDAEFr�V}B�D�wBE�Dx�A�uACDEA@DEv�y??�BF�Aw�DEFBE��wFBE�@}y?�?Bz@yDw�{Av�|B@y@yDw�xDE�EBzDw?yFBEA@yDw��wFBE�Bz@yDw�������r�_̀ ab�c�b�e19;I87�fgghhg�8G�;01�k145;0�47<�e4G1;H�\8<1�I3�4>17<1<�;8�214<lcmmnnmb�PG�;01�<1=42;>17;��?@A@B�CDAEF��<1;12>I713�;04;�4�546824;82H�I3�I7�ZI854;I87�8G�;0I3�42;I951�82�47H21:O54;I87�82�82<12�I33O1<�82�4<8=;1<�=O23O47;�;8�;0I3�42;I951M�;01�<1=42;>17;��?@A@B�CDAEF��>4HM�I7�4<<I;I87�;83O3=173I87M�<17I45M�82�21Z894;I87�8G�;01�912;IGI94;1�82�QRSTU�VWX��49921<I;4;I87M�I33O1�4�9I;4;I87�;8�;01�8Y712�8G;01�546824;82HJ�P;�30455�61�;01�GO79;I87�8G�;01�4==28Z1<�EBzD~wy�BF��49921<I;I7:�4O;082I;H�;8�I33O1�9I;4;I873J�/01S1:I354;O21�GI7<3�47<�<1954213�;04;�3I791�QRST\�VWX��I3�4�3;47<42<�31;;I7:�68<HM�I;�94778;M�43�3O90M�17G8291�9IZI582�92I>I745�=1745;I13J,4.�/01�9I;4;I87�30455�61�312Z1<�=12387455H�82�6H�21:I3;121<�>4I5J,6.�R490�9I;4;I87�30455�61�I7�Y2I;I7:�47<�30455�<1392I61�YI;0�=42;I9O542I;H�;01�74;O21�8G�;01�ZI854;I87M�I795O<I7:�421G121791�;8�;01�3;4;O;82H�=28ZI3I87M�82<12M�82�21:O54;I87�4551:1<�;8�04Z1�6117�ZI854;1<J,9.�/01�9I;4;I87�30455�GI��;01�1425I13;�G143I651�;I>1�G82�15I>I74;I87�82�982219;I87�8G�;01�987<I;I87�9873;I;O;I7:�;01ZI854;I87J,<.�\I;4;I873�I33O1<�=O23O47;�;8�;0I3�319;I87�30455�3=19IGH�4�9IZI5�=1745;H�G82�1490�ZI854;I87M�78;�;8�1�911<�871;08O347<�<855423�,�fMggg.M�G82�1490�<4H�;04;�;01�ZI854;I87�899O221<J,1.�PG�;01�8Y712�G4I53�;8�982219;�4�ZI854;I87�YI;0I7�;01�;I>1�3=19IGI1<�I7�;01�9I;4;I87M�;01�<1=42;>17;��?@A@B�CDAEF�>4H�433133�4�9IZI5�=1745;H�43�G8558Y3l,f.��82�G4I5O21�;8�98>=5H�YI;0�47H�9I;4;I87�I33O1<�G82�4�ZI854;I87�8G�;0I3�42;I951�82�4�21:O54;I87M�47�4>8O7;�78;�;81�911<�;Y8�0O7<21<�GIG;H�<855423�,�jtg.�G82�1490�<4H�;04;�;01�ZI854;I87�987;I7O13�61H87<�;01�<4;1�3=19IGI1<�G82982219;I87�I7�;01�9I;4;I87J,j.��82�G4I5O21�;8�98>=5H�YI;0�47H�9I;4;I87�I33O1<�G82�ZI854;I87�8G�47H�<1=42;>17;�I33O1<��?@A@B�CDAEF�y??�BF�82<12M�47�4>8O7;�78;�;8�1�911<�;Y8�0O7<21<�<855423�,�jgg.�G82�1490�<4H�;01�ZI854;I87�987;I7O13�61H87<�;01�<4;1



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( (��+

,-./010.2�134�/344./5036�06�57.�/05850369:;<�=>?�@AB?C�@;�D�EDF@CDG@CH�IJJK?L�D�MIGDGI@B�KBL?C�G>IJ�J?MGI@B�@C�DJJ?JJ?L�D�N?BDEGH�KBL?C�JKFLIOIJI@B�:?<PDH�N?GIGI@B�;@C�C?M@BJIL?CDGI@B�KBL?C�Q?MGI@B�RRSTURVWXYZ�[\Z�]./5036�̂__̀ à�31�57.�b.8c57�862�]81.5d�e32.�0,�8f.62.2�53�4.82g[hhiijZ�k8l�m6d�-.4,36�n73�3-.485.,�8�c8o348534d�5785�-.4134f,�n34p�5785�4.qr04.,�/.45010/85036�34�stume�=vw�8//4.20585036�r62.4�]./5036�xâ ỳ z�xaxỳ 9az�xa{à 9|z�̂ _̂|y_z�34�̂ }̂{y_�31�570,�/32.z�34�]./5036�̂{̂ ~}�31�57.�85.4�e32.z�n73�0,�635�/.45010.2�34�stume�=vw��8//4.205.2�53�23�,3z�f8d�o.�.6�306.2�143f�,3�2306��od�86d�/3r4531�/3f-.5.65��r40,20/5036�r-36�,r05�od�57.�2.-845f.659��JGDG?�F@DCLV�kol��7.6�57.�2.-845f.65��JGDG?�F@DCL��2.5.4f06.,�5785�86d�-.4,36�78,�.6�8�.2�06z�34�0,�.6�8�.2�06z�86d�8/5�34-48/50/.�5785�/36,505r5.,�8��03c85036�31�570,�8450/c.z�34�86d�4.�rc85036�34�342.4�0,,r.2�34�823-5.2�57.4.r62.4z�57.2.-845f.65��JGDG?�F@DCL��f8d�o406��86�8/5036�06�57.�,r-.4034�/3r45�134�86�342.4�.6�30606��57.,.�-48/50/.,�34�13486�342.4�204./506��/3f-c086/.�862�81134206��86d�1r457.4�4.c0.1�5785�f8d�o.�4.qr04.2�53�.6,r4.�/3f-c086/.�n057570,�8450/c.9WXYZ�[iZ�]./5036�̂__̀ y_�31�57.�b.8c57�862�]81.5d�e32.�0,�8f.62.2�53�4.82g[hhi�hZ�k8l�m6d�-.4,36�n73�p63n06�cd�f8p.,�86d�18c,.�,585.f.65�34�4.-4.,.6585036�06�86d�8--c0/85036z�4./342z�34357.4�23/rf.65�,rof055.2z�f8065806.2z�34�r,.2�134�-r4-3,.,�31�/3f-c086/.�n057�570,�8450/c.z�f8d�o.�c08oc.z�8,2.5.4f06.2�od�57.�/3r45z�134�8�/0�0c�-.68c5d�635�53�.�/..2�10�.�573r,862�23cc84,�k�az___l�134�.8/7�,.-8485.�03c85036�34z�134�/36506r06���03c85036,z�134�.8/7�28d�5785��03c85036�/36506r.,9kol�m6d�-.4,36�n73�3-.485.,�8�c8o348534d�134�-r4-3,.,�,-./010.2�-r4,r865�53�]./5036�xâ ỳ z�xaxỳ 9az�xa{à 9|z^̂ _|y_z�34�̂ }̂{y_�31�570,�/32.z�34�]./5036�̂ {̂ ~}�31�57.��85.4�e32.�5785�4.qr04.,�/.45010/85036z�n73�0,�635/.45010.2�od�57.�2.-845f.65�-r4,r865�53�570,�8450/c.z�f8d�o.�c08oc.z�8,�2.5.4f06.2�od�57.�/3r45z�134�8�/0�0c�-.68c5d635�53�.�/..2�10�.�573r,862�23cc84,�k�az___l�134�.8/7�,.-8485.��03c85036�34z�134�/36506r06���03c85036,z�134�.8/7�28d5785��03c85036�/36506r.,9k/l�m�c8o348534d�5785�82�.450,.,�34�73c2,�05,.c1�3r5�53�57.�-roc0/�34�05,�/c0.65,�8,�78�06��o..6�/.45010.2�134�86d�3157.�10.c2,�31�5.,506��4.1.44.2�53�06�]./5036�̂__̀ }_�34�̂__̀ }x��;I?EL�@;�G?JGIB���n0573r5�78�06��8��8c02�862�/r44.65/.45010/85.�06�.8/7�10.c2�31�5.,506��02.65010.2�od�57.�82�.450,.f.65�34�357.4�4.-4.,.6585036�f8d�o.�c08oc.z�8,2.5.4f06.2�od�57.�/3r45z�134�8�/0�0c�-.68c5d�635�53�.�/..2�36.�573r,862�23cc84,�k�̂ z___l�34z�134�/36506r06��03c85036,z�134�.8/7�28d�5785��03c85036�/36506r.,9k2l�t8/7�/0�0c�-.68c5d�0f-3,.2�134�86d�,.-8485.��03c85036�-r4,r865�53�570,�,./5036�,78cc�o.�,.-8485.�862�0682205036�53�86d�357.4�/0�0c�-.68c5d�0f-3,.2�-r4,r865�53�570,�,./5036�34�86d�357.4�-43�0,036�31�c8n9WXYZ�[�Z�]./5036�̂__̀ ya�31�57.�b.8c57�862�]81.5d�e32.�0,�8f.62.2�53�4.82g[hhi�jZ�k8l�m6d�-.4,36�n73�p63n06�cd�23.,�86d�31�57.�13cc3n06��8/5,�f8dz�r-36�/36�0/5036z�o.�-r60,7.2�od�8�106.31�635�f34.�5786�5n.65d�10�.�573r,862�23cc84,�k�xaz___l�134�.8/7�28d�31��03c85036z�od�0f-40,36f.65�06�8�/3r65d�80c�635�53�.�/..2�36.�d.84z�34�od�o357�5785�106.�862�0f-40,36f.65gk̂l��8p.,�86d�18c,.�,585.f.65�34�4.-4.,.6585036�06�86d�8--c0/85036z�4./342z�4.-345z�34�357.4�23/rf.65�,rof055.2zf8065806.2z�34�r,.2�134�57.�-r4-3,.,�31�/3f-c086/.�n057�570,�8450/c.9kxl�b8,�06�70,�34�7.4�-3,,.,,036�86d�4./342�4.qr04.2�53�o.�f8065806.2�-r4,r865�53�570,�8450/c.�5785�78,�o..68c5.4.2�34�/36/.8c.29k{l��.,543d,z�8c5.4,z�34�/36/.8c,�86d�4./342�4.qr04.2�53�o.�f8065806.2�-r4,r865�53�570,�8450/c.9k|l��05773c2,�06134f85036�4.�84206��86�0ff06.65�862�,ro,586508c�286�.4�53�57.�-roc0/�7.8c57�34�,81.5d�n7.6�57.06134f85036�78,�o..6�4.qr.,5.2�od�57.�2.-845f.65��JGDG?�F@DCL��06�n40506��862�0,�4.qr04.2�53�/844d�3r5�57.2.-845f.65�,��JGDG?�F@DCL�J��4.,-36,0o0c050.,�-r4,r865�53�570,�8450/c.9kol�m�,./362�34�,ro,.qr.65��03c85036�31�,ro20�0,036�k8l�0,�-r60,78oc.�od�0f-40,36f.65�-r4,r865�53�,ro20�0,036k7l�31�]./5036�̂ ~̂_�31�57.��.68c�e32.�134�̂}z�x_z�34�x|�f3657,�34�06�8�/3r65d��80c�134�635�f34.�5786�36.�d.84z�od8�106.�31�635�c.,,�5786�5n3�573r,862�23cc84,�k�xz___l�34�f34.�5786�1015d�573r,862�23cc84,�k�a_z___l�-.4�28d�31�03c85036z�34�od�o357�5785�0f-40,36f.65�862�106.9



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( +��,

-./�01�2304�.5678985:�;6�<2304�=>?��@..65:875:�A@B;6@7;6CD�EF;1�GEGF51G8;1D�65H;.@78;1D�;6�I87J:6@I@A�;9�87G�2304.567898.@78;1�;6�<2304�=>?��@..65:87@78;1D�GJ@AA�:;�@AA�;9�7J5�9;AA;I81KL-M/�N8G.;1781E5�EG5�;9�@AA�.@7@A;KGD�@:H5678G81KD�BEG815GG�G;A8.87@78;1GD�F6;F;G@AGD�OE;7@78;1GD�;6�7J586�P@7568@AG7J@7�.;17@81�6595651.5�7;�7J586�F@G7�.567898.@78;1�;6�@..65:87@78;1�G7@7EGQ-R/�S57E61�87G�2304�.567898.@75�;6�87G�<2304�=>?��@..65:87@78;1�7;�7J5�:5F@67P517Q�TUVUW�XYVZ[\�-]/�̂5@G5�@AA�75G781K�;9�G@PFA5G�9;6�65KEA@7;6C�FE6F;G5GQ-:/�_J5�F51@A785G�.875:�81�GEB:8H8G8;1G�-@/�@1:�-B/�GJ@AA�@AG;�@FFAC�7;�<2304�=>?��@..65:875:�A@B;6@7;685GQàbc�dec�f5.78;1�Mgghgi�;9�7J5�j5@A7J�@1:�f@957C�̂;:5�8G�@P51:5:�7;�65@:Lkeelemc�-@/�_J5�:5F@67P517��TUVUW�XYVZ[��GJ@AA�65H;n5D�81�IJ;A5�;6�81�F@67D�7J5�@..65:87@78;1�;9�@�<2304�=>?�@..65:875:�A@B;6@7;6C�9;6�587J56�;9�7J5�9;AA;I81K�65@G;1GL-M/�o@8AE65�7;�GEBP87�@1�@..5F7@BA5�.;665.78H5�@.78;1�65F;67�81�65GF;1G5�7;�@�:598.851.C�65F;67D�@1:�9@8AE65�7;8PFA5P517�.;665.78H5�@.78;1�65A@75:�7;�@1C�:598.851.85G�9;E1:�:E681K�@�A@B;6@7;6C�@GG5GGP517Q�_J5�A@B;6@7;6CP@C�GEBP87�7I;�.;665.78H5�@.78;1G�I87J81�7J5�78P5�A8P87G�GF5.8985:�BC�7J5�@..65:8781K�@E7J;687CQ-R/�o@8AE65�7;�GE..5GG9EAAC�@1@ACp5�@1:�65F;67�F6;98.851.C�75G781K�G@PFA5�65GEA7G�FE6GE@17�7;�̂J@F756�R�;9�7J5<230̂ ��=>?��G7@1:@6:GQ-B/�_J5�:5F@67P517��TUVUW�XYVZ[��GJ@AA�65H;n5D�81�IJ;A5D�7J5�@..65:87@78;1�;9�@�<2304�=>?��@..65:875:�A@B;6@7;6C9;6�@1C�;9�7J5�9;AA;I81K�65@G;1GL-M/�o@8AE65�7;�65GF;1:�I87J�@�.;665.78H5�@.78;1�65F;67�I87J81�7J5�65OE865:�]gq:@C�F568;:Q-R/�o@8AE65�7;�F@678.8F@75�81�7J5�F6;98.851.C�75G781K�F6;K6@PD�@G�65OE865:�BC�̂ J@F756�R�;9�7J5�<230̂ ��=>?�G7@1:@6:GQ-]/�fEBP877@A�;9�F6;98.851.C�75G7�G@PFA5�65GEA7G�K5156@75:�BC�@1;7J56�A@B;6@7;6C�@G�87G�;I1Q-r/�s8G65F65G517@78;1�;9�@1C�P@7568@A�9@.7�F56781517�7;�65.58H81K�;6�P@817@8181K�@..65:87@78;1Q-t/�N518@A�;9�5176C�:E681K�1;6P@A�BEG815GG�J;E6G�9;6�@1�;1G875�@GG5GGP517D�@G�65OE865:�BC�̂J@F756�]�;9�7J5<230̂ ��=>?��G7@1:@6:GQ-u/�̂;1H8.78;1�;9�.J@6K5G�9;6�7J5�9@AG898.@78;1�;9�@1C�65F;67�;9D�;6�7J@7�65A@75G�7;D�@�A@B;6@7;6C�@1@ACG8GQ-./�_J5�:5F@67P517��TUVUW�XYVZ[��P@C�@AG;�65H;n5D�81�IJ;A5D�@�A@B;6@7;6CvG�@..65:87@78;1�9;6�9@8AE65�7;�65P87�7J5@..65:87@78;1�955G�I87J81�7J5�78P5�A8P87�5G7@BA8GJ5:�BC�7J5�@..65:8781K�@E7J;687CQ-:/�09756�.;665.781K�7J5�65@G;1�;6�65@G;1G�9;6�65H;.@78;1D�7J5�<2304�=>?��@..65:875:�A@B;6@7;6C�P@C�65@FFAC�9;6@..65:87@78;1�1;�G;;156�7J@1�G8w�P;17JG�96;P�7J5�;998.8@A�:@75�;9�65H;.@78;1Q-5/�0�A@B;6@7;6CvG�<2304�=>?��@..65:87@78;1�GJ@AA�1;7�B5�65H;n5:�I87J;E7�7J5�68KJ7�7;�:E5�F6;.5GGD�@G�65OE865:�BCĴ@F756�r�;9�7J5�<230̂ �G7@1:@6:GQ��xy�VzzYZ[VyzW�{xU|�}WzUxYy�~���~�\�àbc�dkc�f5.78;1�MgghMg�;9�7J5�j5@A7J�@1:�f@957C�̂;:5�8G�65F5@A5:Qkeelkec�46;.55:81KG�9;6�7J5�GEGF51G8;1�;6�65H;.@78;1�;9�@�.567898.@75�E1:56�7J8G�@678.A5�GJ@AA�B5�.;1:E.75:�81@..;6:@1.5�I87J�f5.78;1�MggMiMD�@1:�7J5�:5F@67P517�GJ@AA�J@H5�@AA�F;I56G�K6@175:�FE6GE@17�7;�7J@7�G5.78;1Q���������}WzUxYy�~���~��xT�V[[W[�UY�U|W��WV�U|�Vy[�}V�WU���Y[W��UY�ZWV[����������V��=|W�TUVUW�XYVZ[��V�UWZ��ZY�x[xy��yYUxzW�UY�U|W�Y{yWZ�Y��U|W��VXYZVUYZ��Vy[�Y��YZU�yxU���YZ�V�|WVZxy���V��T�T�Wy[�YZ�ZW�Y�W�Vy������zWZUx�xzVUxYy�YZ�=>?�VzzZW[xUVUxYy�xTT�W[���ZT�VyU�UY�U|xT�VZUxz�W\�=|W�yYUxzW�T|V��xy�YZ��U|W�Y{yWZ�Y��U|W��VXYZVUYZ��U|VU�U|W�Y{yWZ��V��ZW��WTU�V�|WVZxy��yYU��VUWZ�U|Vy����[V�T��ZY��U|W�[VUWYy�{|xz|�U|W�yYUxzW�xT�ZWzWx�W[��Vy[�T|V���zYyUVxy�V�TUVUW�WyU�Y���VzUT�Vy[�xy�YZ�VUxYy�U|VU�T|Y{�V�XVTxT��YZ�U|WT�T�WyTxYy�YZ�ZW�YzVUxYy\�?��U|W�Y{yWZ�T�X�xUT�V�Ux�W���ZW��WTU��YZ�V�|WVZxy���U|W�|WVZxy��T|V���XW�XW�YZW�U|WTUVUW�XYVZ[�YZ�V��W�XWZ�Y��U|W�TUVUW�XYVZ[��xy�VzzYZ[VyzW�{xU|�}WzUxYy�~���Y��U|W� VUWZ��Y[W�Vy[�U|W�Z��WT��YZV[¡�[xzVUx�W��ZYzWW[xy�T�V[Y�UW[��y[WZ�}WzUxYy�~�¢�Y��U|W� VUWZ��Y[W\�?��U|W�Y{yWZ�[YWT�yYU�T�X�xU�V�Ux�W��ZW��WTU��YZ�V�|WVZxy���U|W�TUVUW�XYVZ[��V��T�T�Wy[�YZ�ZW�Y�W�U|W��WZ�xU�{xU|Y�U�V�|WVZxy�\



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( ����+

,-.�/0�123�4351606471689�85�74453:6171689�71�6;;<3�27;�-339�13=>85756?@�;<;>39:3:�><5;<791�18�A341689�BCCDBEF�123981643�;27??�-3�>58G6:3:�H61269�BE�:7@;�80�123�3003416G3�:713�80�123�13=>8575@�;<;>39;689�85:35I�J23�237569K�;27??-3�48==3943:�7;�;889�7;�>5741647-?3F�-<1�98�?7135�1279�LC�:7@;�70135�123�3003416G3�:713�80�123�13=>8575@;<;>39;689�85:35F�<9?3;;�123�8H935�53M<3;1;�79�3N139;689�80�123�LCO:7@�>3568:IPQRS�TUS�VWXYZ[\�]̂ _̂]̀ �[a�YbW�cWdeYb�d\f�VdaWYg�h[fW�Zi�jWkWdeWflmnnompS�qdr��sbW�fWkdjYtW\Y�tdg�YWtk[jdjZeg�iuikW\fv�Z\�wb[eW�[j�Z\�kdjYv�xyz{�XWjYZaZXdYZ[\�[j�|xyz{dXXjWfZYdYZ[\�kjZ[j�Y[�d\g�bWdjZ\}v�wbW\�ZY�bdi�fWYWjtZ\Wf�YbdY�YbZi�dXYZ[\�Zi�\WXWiidjg�Y[�kj[YWXY�YbW�ku~eZXl�sbWfWkdjYtW\Y�ibdee�\[YZag�YbW�[w\Wj�[a�YbW�YWtk[jdjg�iuikW\iZ[\�d\f�YbW�WaaWXYZ�W�fdYW�YbWjW[a�d\f�dY�YbW�idtWYZtW�ibdee�iWj�W�YbW�[w\Wj�wZYb�d\�dXXuidYZ[\l��k[\�jWXWZkY�[a�d�\[YZXW�[a�fWaW\iW�~g�YbW�[w\Wjv�YbW�tdYYWj�ibdee~W�iWY�a[j�bWdjZ\}�wZYbZ\�]̀ �XdeW\fdj�fdgil�sbW�bWdjZ\}�ibdee�~W�bWef�di�i[[\�di�k[iiZ~eW�~uY�\[�edYWj�Ybd\��̂XdeW\fdj�fdgi�daYWj�jWXWZkY�[a�YbW�\[YZXWl�sbW�YWtk[jdjg�iuikW\iZ[\�ibdee�jWtdZ\�Z\�WaaWXY�u\YZe�YbW�bWdjZ\}�ZiX[tkeWYWf�d\f�YbW�fWkdjYtW\Y�bdi�tdfW�d�aZ\de�fWYWjtZ\dYZ[\�[\�YbW�tWjZYil�c[wW�Wjv�YbW�YWtk[jdjgiuikW\iZ[\�ibdee�~W�fWWtWf��dXdYWf�Za�YbW�fWkdjYtW\Y�adZei�Y[�td�W�d�aZ\de�fWYWjtZ\dYZ[\�[\�YbW�tWjZYi�wZYbZ\��̂XdeW\fdj�fdgi�daYWj�YbW�[jZ}Z\de�bWdjZ\}�bdi�~WW\�X[tkeWYWflq~r���ujZ\}�YbW�iuikW\iZ[\v�YbW�ed~[jdY[jg�ibdee�fZiX[\YZ\uW�YbW�d\degiZi�[a�idtkeWi�a[j�YbW�ikWXZaZWf�aZWefi�[aYWiYZ\}l���������A341689�BCCDBE�6;�7::3:�18�123��37?12�79:�A7031@��8:3F�18�537:���������,7.�,B.�J23�;1713�-875:�=7@�13=>85756?@�;<;>39:F�69�H28?3�85�69�>751F������4351606471689�85�J�/74453:6171689�>5685�18�79@�237569KF�H239�61�27;�:3135=693:�1271�126;�741689�6;�9343;;75@�18�>581341�123�><-?64I�J23;1713�-875:�;27??�98160@�123�8H935�80�123�13=>8575@�;<;>39;689�79:�123�3003416G3�:713�80�123�;<;>39;689I�J23981643�;27??�69085=�123�8H935�80�123�?7-857185@�1271�123�8H935�=7@�53M<3;1�7�237569K�981�?7135�1279��C�:7@;�058=123�:713�89�H2642�123�981643�6;�53436G3:F�79:�;27??�4891769�7�;1713=391�80�0741;�79:�69085=71689�1271�;28H�7�-7;6;085�123�;<;>39;689I,�.�,�.�/0�123�8H935�;<-=61;�7�16=3?@�53M<3;1�085�7�237569KF�123�237569K�;27??�-3�48==3943:�7;�;889�7;�>8;;6-?3-<1�98�?7135�1279��C�47?39:75�:7@;�70135�53436>1�80�123�981643�85�BE�47?39:75�:7@;�70135�123�53M<3;1�085�7�237569K6;�;<-=6113:F�H26423G35�6;�?7135F�<9?3;;�123�8H935�53M<3;1;�7�?7135�:713�085�123�237569KI�J23�237569K�;27??�:37?89?@�H612�123�6;;<3�80�H231235�123�13=>8575@�;<;>39;689�;27??�53=769�69�>?743�>39:69K�7�237569K�<9:35�A341689BCCDBCI,�.�J23�237569K�;27??�-3�489:<413:�<9:35�123�5<?3;�085�7:�<:64716G3�>58433:69K;�7:8>13:�-@�123�;1713�-875:<9:35�A341689�B�E�80�123��7135��8:3I,�.�J23�13=>8575@�;<;>39;689�;27??�53=769�69�300341�<916?�123�237569K�6;�48=>?313:�79:�123�;1713�-875:�27;�=7:37�0697?�:3135=6971689�89�123�=3561;�<9:35�A341689�BCCDBCI��8H3G35F�123�13=>8575@�;<;>39;689�;27??�-3�:33=3:G74713:�60�123�;1713�-875:�076?;�18�=7�3�7�0697?�:3135=6971689�89�123�=3561;�H61269�LC�47?39:75�:7@;�70135�123237569K�<9:35�A341689�BCCDBC�27;�-339�48=>?313:I��7471689�80�123�13=>8575@�;<;>39;689�:83;�981�:3>56G3�123;1713�-875:�80��<56;:641689�18�>58433:�H612�7�237569K�89�123�=3561;�<9:35�A341689�BCCDBCI,-.��<569K�123�;<;>39;689F�123�?7-857185@�;27??�:6;489169<3�123�797?@;6;�80�;7=>?3;�085�123�063?:;�80�13;169K;>346063:�69�123�981643I���������A341689�BCCD�CIE�6;�7::3:�18�123��37?12�79:�A7031@��8:3F�18�537:�����������,7.��61269��C�:7@;�70135�;35G643�80�7�48>@�80�7�:346;689�85�85:35�6;;<3:�-@�123�;1713�-875:�<9:35�126;427>135F�79�7KK563G3:�>751@�=7@�06?3�H612�123�;<>35685�48<51�7�>3161689�085�7�H561�80�=79:713�085�53G63H�80�12385:35I,-.��N43>1�7;�81235H6;3�>58G6:3:�69�126;�;341689F�;<-:6G6;689;�,3.�79:�,0.�80�A341689�BCD IE�80�123��8:3�80��6G6?�5843:<53�;27??�K8G359�>58433:69K;�><5;<791�18�126;�;341689I�¡85�123�><5>8;3;�80�;<-:6G6;689�,4.�80�A341689BCD IE�80�123��8:3�80��6G6?��5843:<53F�123�48<51�;27??�<>28?:�123�069:69K;�80�123�;1713�-875:�60�128;3�069:69K;�753;<>>8513:�-@�;<-;179167?�3G6:3943�69�?6K21�80�123�H28?3�53485:I,4.�/0�98�7KK563G3:�>751@�>3161689;�085�7�H561�80�=79:713�H61269�123�16=3�>58G6:3:�-@�126;�;341689F�123�:346;689�8585:35�80�123�;1713�-875:�6;�981�;<-�341�18�53G63H�-@�79@�48<51IPQRS�T¢S�VWXYZ[\�]]�£¤]�[a�YbW�cWdeYb�d\f�VdaWYg�h[fW�Zi�dtW\fWf�Y[�jWdf¥



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( ����+

,,-./,0�123�456�78286�9286:�;6<=>:?6<�@=A8:=B�C=2:D��EFGFH�IJGKL��<>??66D<�8=�2AD�M<�N6<86D�OM85�2BB�=P�8562>85=:M8QR�D>8M6<R�S=O6:<R�S>:S=<6<R�P>A?8M=A<R�:6<S=A<MTMBM8M6<R�2AD�U>:M<DM?8M=A�=P�856�78286�V6S2:8W6A8�=P�X>TBM?Y62B85R�M8<�S:6D6?6<<=:<R�2AD�M8<�DM:6?8=:�P=:�S>:S=<6<�=P�2BB�=P�856�P=BB=OMAZ[1\3�456�]ANM:=AW6A82B�̂2T=:28=:Q�_??:6DM828M=A�_?8�1_:8M?B6�̀�1?=WW6A?MAZ�OM85�76?8M=A�\aabcd3�=P�@52S86:�e�=PX2:8�\�=P�VMNM<M=A�\a\3f1c3�_:8M?B6�̀�1?=WW6A?MAZ�OM85�76?8M=A�\agbhd3�=P�@52S86:�e�=P�X2:8�\f1̀3�_:8M?B6�\�1?=WW6A?MAZ�OM85�76?8M=A�\\dbcd3�=P�@52S86:�d�=P�X2:8�\af1e3�45M<�?52S86:�2AD�856�72P6�V:MAiMAZ�9286:�78286�;6N=BNMAZ�j>AD�̂2O�=P�\kkh�1@52S86:�efd�1?=WW6A?MAZ�OM8576?8M=A�\\ghga33f1d3�_:8M?B6�c�1?=WW6A?MAZ�OM85�76?8M=A�\\gbaa3R�_:8M?B6�̀�1?=WW6A?MAZ�OM85�76?8M=A�\\gbcd3R�2AD�_:8M?B6�e1?=WW6A?MAZ�OM85�76?8M=A�\\gbhd3�=P�@52S86:�df1g3�@52S86:�h�1?=WW6A?MAZ�OM85�76?8M=A�\\gkhd3f1h3�456�72P6�V:MAiMAZ�9286:R�9286:�l>2BM8Q�2AD�7>SSBQR�jB==D�@=A8:=BR�;MN6:�2AD�@=2<82B�X:=86?8M=A�C=AD�_?8�=Pcaag�1VMNM<M=A�è �1?=WW6A?MAZ�OM85�76?8M=A�hdaa\3�=P�856�X>TBM?�;6<=>:?6<�@=D63f1b3�456�9286:�;6?Q?BMAZ�̂2O�1@52S86:�h�1?=WW6A?MAZ�OM85�76?8M=A�\̀ daa3�=P�VMNM<M=A�h�=P�856�9286:�@=D63f1k3�@52S86:�hf̀�1?=WW6A?MAZ�OM85�76?8M=A�\̀ dga3�=P�VMNM<M=A�h�=P�856�9286:�@=D6f1\a3�456�@2BMP=:AM2�72P6�V:MAiMAZ�9286:�C=AD�̂2O�=P�\khg�1@52S86:�\afd�1?=WW6A?MAZ�OM85�76?8M=A�\̀ bda3�=PVMNM<M=A�h�=P�856�9286:�@=D63f1\\3�95=B6<2B6�;6ZM=A2B�9286:�7Q<86W�76?>:M8Q�2AD�;6BM2TMBM8Q�_?8�1VMNM<M=A�cafd�1?=WW6A?MAZ�OM85�76?8M=Ah̀ daa3�=P�856�9286:�@=D63f1\c3�9286:�76?>:M8QR�@B62A�V:MAiMAZ�9286:R�@=2<82B�2AD�C62?5�X:=86?8M=A�_?8�=P�caac�1VMNM<M=A�cgfd�1?=WW6A?MAZOM85�76?8M=A�hkdaa3�=P�856�9286:�@=D63f1T3�456�78286�9286:�;6<=>:?6<�@=A8:=B�C=2:D��EFGFH�IJGKL��<52BB�W2MA82MA�2�D:MAiMAZ�O286:�S:=Z:2W�2AD�?2::Q�=>8856�D>8M6<R�:6<S=A<MTMBM8M6<R�2AD�P>A?8M=A<�D6<?:MT6D�MA�85M<�<6?8M=Af�7828>8=:Q�:6P6:6A?6�8=�mD6S2:8W6A8Rn�m<8286D6S2:8W6A8Rn�=:�mDM:6?8=:n�:6Z2:DMAZ�2�P>A?8M=A�8:2A<P6::6D�8=�856�78286�9286:�;6<=>:?6<�@=A8:=B�C=2:D��EFGFHIJGKL��<52BB�:6P6:�8=�856�78286�9286:�;6<=>:?6<�@=A8:=B�C=2:Df��EFGFH�IJGKLo��45M<�<6?8M=A�D=6<�A=8�MWS2M:�8562>85=:M8Q�=P�2�B=?2B�562B85�=PPM?6:�8=�6AP=:?6�85M<�?52S86:�=:�2�?=>A8Qp<�6B6?8M=A�A=8�8=�6AP=:?6�85M<�?52S86:R�2<S:=NMD6D�MA�76?8M=A�\\gdaaf1?3�456�78286�9286:�;6<=>:?6<�@=A8:=B�C=2:D��EFGFH�IJGKL��<52BB�<>??66D�8=�856�<828><�=P�Z:2A866�=:�2SSBM?2A8R�2<2SS:=S:M286R�P=:�2AQ�P6D6:2B�V:MAiMAZ�9286:�78286�;6N=BNMAZ�j>AD�?2SM82BMq28M=A�Z:2A8<�8528�856�78286�V6S2:8W6A8=P�X>TBM?�Y62B85�2AD�2AQ�=P�M8<�S:6D6?6<<=:<�2SSBM6D�P=:f1D3�;6Z>B28M=A<�2D=S86DR�=:D6:<�M<<>6DR�2AD�2BB�=856:�2DWMAM<8:28MN6�2?8M=A<�82i6A�TQ�856�78286�V6S2:8W6A8�=PX>TBM?�Y62B85R�2AQ�=P�M8<�S:6D6?6<<=:<R�=:�M8<�DM:6?8=:R�S>:<>2A8�8=�856�2>85=:M8M6<�A=O�N6<86D�MA�856�78286�9286:;6<=>:?6<�@=A8:=B�C=2:D��EFGFH�IJGKL��2AD�MA�6PP6?8�MWW6DM286BQ�S:6?6DMAZ�856�=S6:28MN6�D286�=P�85M<�<6?8M=A�<52BB:6W2MA�MA�6PP6?8�2AD�2:6�P>BBQ�6AP=:?62TB6�>AB6<<�2AD�>A8MB�:62D=S86DR�2W6AD6DR�=:�:6S62B6DR�=:�>A8MB�856Q�6rSM:6TQ�856M:�=OA�86:W<f�;6Z>B28M=A<�MA�856�S:=?6<<�=P�2D=S8M=A�S>:<>2A8�8=�856�2>85=:M8M6<�N6<86D�MA�856�78286�9286:;6<=>:?6<�@=A8:=B�C=2:D��EFGFH�IJGKL��<52BB�?=A8MA>6�>AD6:�856�2>85=:M8Q�=P�856�78286�9286:�;6<=>:?6<�@=A8:=BC=2:D��EFGFH�IJGKL��>AB6<<�2AD�>A8MB�856�78286�9286:�;6<=>:?6<�@=A8:=B�C=2:D��EFGFH�IJGKL��D686:WMA6<=856:OM<6f�_AQ�=856:�2DWMAM<8:28MN6�2?8M=A�2D=S86DR�S:6<?:MT6DR�82i6AR�=:�S6:P=:W6D�TQR�=:�=A�T652BP�=PR�85678286�V6S2:8W6A8�=P�X>TBM?�Y62B85R�=:�M8<�DM:6?8=:R�MA�856�2DWMAM<8:28M=A�=P�2�S:=Z:2W�=:�856�S6:P=:W2A?6�=P�2D>8QR�:6<S=A<MTMBM8QR�=:�2>85=:Mq28M=A�8:2A<P6::6D�8=�856�78286�9286:�;6<=>:?6<�@=A8:=B�C=2:D��EFGFH�IJGKL��<52BB:6W2MA�MA�6PP6?8�2AD�<52BB�T6�D66W6D�8=�T6�2A�2?8M=A�=P�856�78286�9286:�;6<=>:?6<�@=A8:=B�C=2:D��EFGFH�IJGKL�>AB6<<�2AD�>A8MB�856�78286�9286:�;6<=>:?6<�@=A8:=B�C=2:D��EFGFH�IJGKL��D686:WMA6<�=856:OM<6f163�X6:WM8<R�BM?6A<6<R�2??:6DM828M=A<R�?6:8MPM?286<R�2AD�=856:�P=:W2B�2SS:=N2B<�2AD�2>85=:Mq28M=A<�M<<>6D�TQ�85678286�V6S2:8W6A8�=P�X>TBM?�Y62B85R�2AQ�=P�M8<�S:6D6?6<<=:<R�=:�M8<�DM:6?8=:�S>:<>2A8�8=�2>85=:M8M6<�N6<86D�MA�85678286�9286:�;6<=>:?6<�@=A8:=B�C=2:D��EFGFH�IJGKL��S>:<>2A8�8=�85M<�<6?8M=A�2:6�A=8�2PP6?86D�TQ�856�8:2A<P6:�2AD:6W2MA�MA�6PP6?8R�<>TU6?8�8=�2BB�2SSBM?2TB6�B2O<�2AD�:6Z>B28M=A<R�>AB6<<�2AD�>A8MB�:6A6O6DR�:6M<<>6DR�:6NM<6DR2W6AD6DR�<><S6AD6DR�=:�:6N=i6D�TQ�856�78286�9286:�;6<=>:?6<�@=A8:=B�C=2:D��EFGFH�IJGKL��=:�M8<�D6S>8QDM:6?8=:R�2<�2>85=:Mq6D�S>:<>2A8�8=�<>TDMNM<M=A�1i3f



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( ����+

,-.�/01�234560�67�876399:50;�<1�67�2;250=4�4>9�?4249�@98274A904�6-�BC<D53�E92D4>F�503DC:50;�201�6--5397�679A8D6199�6-�4>9�?4249�@98274A904�6-�BC<D53�E92D4>�02A9:�50�20�6--5352D�32823541F�67�201�6-�54=�879:939==67=F897425050;�46�A24497=�G9=49:�50�4>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:��LMNMO�PQNRS��<1�4>5=�=934560�=>2DD�0642<249F�<C4�=>2DD�360450C9�50�4>9�02A9�6-�4>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:T�U>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=J60476D�K627:��LMNMO�PQNRSV�WXO�LMNMO�PQNRS��=>2DD�<9�=C<=454C49:�-67�4>9�?4249�@98274A904�6-�BC<D53�E92D4>F503DC:50;�201�6--5397�67�9A8D6199�6-�4>9�?4249�@98274A904�6-�BC<D53�E92D4>�02A9:�50�20�6--5352D�32823541F�20:�2016-�54=�879:939==67=F�<1�4>9�36C74�67�2;9031�Y>979�4>9�234560�67�876399:50;�5=�890:50;T�U>9�=C<=454C4560�=>2DD�06450�201�Y21�2--934�4>9�75;>4=�6-�4>9�827459=�46�4>9�234560�67�876399:50;T,;.�Z0�20:�2-497�4>9�6897245G9�:249�6-�4>5=�=934560F�4>9�C09[890:9:�<2D2039�6-�2DD�-C0:=�2G25D2<D9�-67�C=9�<1�4>9?4249�@98274A904�6-�BC<D53�E92D4>�67�201�6-�54=�879:939==67=�50�3277150;�6C4�201�-C034560=�4720=-9779:�46�4>9?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:��LMNMO�PQNRS��279�2G25D2<D9�-67�C=9�<1�4>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476DK627:T�LMNMO�PQNRSV�,>.�K66\=F�:63CA904=F�:242F�79367:=F�20:�87689741�6-�4>9�?4249�@98274A904�6-�BC<D53�E92D4>�897425050;�46-C034560=�4720=-9779:�46�4>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:��LMNMO�PQNRS��=>2DD�<9�4720=-9779:�46�4>9�?4249H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:T��LMNMO�PQNRSV��U>5=�=C<:5G5=560�:69=�064�4720=-97�201�8274�6-�87689741�36AA60D1\06Y0�2=�4>9�I53>A60:�J2A8C=�4>24�5=�6Y09:�<1�4>9�?4249�BC<D53�H67\=�K627:T,5.�/�36047234F�D92=9F�D5390=9F�67�201�64>97�2;799A904F�503DC:50;�D632D�875A231�2;799A904=F�2=�:9=375<9:�50?934560�]]̂ __̀ F�46�Y>53>�4>9�?4249�@98274A904�6-�BC<D53�E92D4>F�201�6-�54=�879:939==67=F�54=�:5793467F�67�4>9572;904=F�5=�2�82741F�279�064�G65:�67�G65:2<D9�<1�792=60�6-�4>5=�=934560F�<C4�=>2DD�360450C9�50�-CDD�-6739�20:�9--934FY54>�4>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:��LMNMO�PQNRS��2==CA50;�2DD�6-�4>9�75;>4=F�6<D5;24560=F�D52<5D5459=F�20::C459=�6-�4>9�?4249�@98274A904�6-�BC<D53�E92D4>�20:�201�6-�54=�879:939==67=�2=�54�79D249=�46�4>9�:C459=F�86Y97=F8C786=9=F�79=860=5<5D5459=F�20:�aC75=:534560�G9=49:�50�4>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:��LMNMO�PQNRS�8C7=C204�46�4>5=�=934560T�U>5=�2==CA84560�:69=�064�2--934�4>9�75;>4=�6-�4>9�827459=�46�4>9�36047234F�D92=9F�D5390=9F67�2;799A904T,a.�b-�4>9�@98274A904�6-�H2497�I9=6C739=�904979:�5046�2;799A904=�60�<9>2D-�6-�4>9�?4249�@98274A904�6-�BC<D53E92D4>�67�54=�879:939==67F�4>9�?4249�@98274A904�6-�E92D4>�?97G539=F�8C7=C204�46�J>28497�cTd�,36AA90350;�Y54>?934560�]]̂ ê .̀F�4>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:��LMNMO�PQNRS��=>2DD�2D=6�=C3399:�4>9�@98274A904�6-H2497�I9=6C739=�2=�2�82741�46�4>6=9�2;799A904=�20:�46�2DD�79D249:�=93C7541�50=47CA904=F�503DC:50;F�<C4�064D5A549:�46F�-5=32D�=97G539=�2;799A904=F�:99:=�6-�47C=4F�;C2720499=F�D94497=�6-�379:54F�20:�:986=54�360476D2;799A904=T,\.�,].�U>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:��LMNMO�PQNRS��=>2DD�2886504�2�:98C41�:5793467�Y>6�798674=�46�4>99[93C45G9�:5793467�46�6G97=99�4>9�5==C2039�20:�90-6739A904�6-�8C<D53�Y2497�=1=49A�897A54=�20:�64>97�:C459=�2=28876875249T�U>9�:98C41�:5793467�=>2DD�>2G9�8C<D53�>92D4>�9[89745=9T,f.�U>9�:98C41�:5793467�5=�:9D9;249:�4>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:g=��LMNMO�PQNRShL��2C4>67541�46876G5:9�064539F�28876G9�064539�3604904F�28876G9�9A97;9031�0645-5324560�8D20=F�20:�42\9�64>97�234560�8C7=C204�46/7453D9�d�,36AA90350;�Y54>�?934560�]]̂ cd̀ .F�46�5==C9F�7909YF�795==C9F�79G5=9F�2A90:F�67�:901�201�8C<D53�Y2497=1=49A�897A54=�8C7=C204�46�/7453D9�e�,36AA90350;�Y54>�?934560�]]̂ dfd.F�46�=C=890:�67�79G6\9�201�8C<D53�Y2497=1=49A�897A54�8C7=C204�46�/7453D9�i�,36AA90350;�Y54>�?934560�]]̂ f̂d.F�20:�46�5==C9�35424560=F�2==9==�8902D459=F67�5==C9�67:97=�8C7=C204�46�/7453D9�j�,36AA90350;�Y54>�?934560�]]̂ d̂̀ .T�@935=560=�20:�234560=�6-�4>9�:98C41:5793467�42\90�8C7=C204�46�/7453D9�d�,36AA90350;�Y54>�?934560�]]̂ cd̀ .�67�/7453D9�e�,36AA90350;�Y54>�?934560]]̂ dfd.�279�:99A9:�:935=560=�20:�234560=�42\90F��MNkOl�Pm�MXO�LMNMO�PQNRSn��<C4�279�064�=C<a934�4679360=5:9724560F�<1�4>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:T��ROoQlLpSORNMpQl�Pm�MXO�LMNMO�PQNRS�OqoOrM�NLrRQspSOS�pl�tOoMpQl�uuvwxyV��@935=560=�20:�234560=�6-�4>9�:98C41�:5793467�42\90�8C7=C204�46�/7453D9�i,36AA90350;�Y54>�?934560�]]̂ f̂d.�20:�/7453D9�j�,36AA90350;�Y54>�?934560�]]̂ d̂̀ .�279�:99A9:�:935=560=�20:234560=�42\90�<1�4>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:F��LMNMO�PQNRSn��<C4�201�2;;759G9:�897=60�A21�894545604>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:��LMNMO�PQNRS��-67�79360=5:9724560�6-�4>9�:935=560�67�234560T�U>5==C<:5G5=560�5=�064�2�D5A5424560�60�4>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:g=��LMNMO�PQNRShL��2C4>67541�46�:9D9;249201�64>97�86Y97=�20:�:C459=T,_.�U>9�?4249�H2497�I9=6C739=�J60476D�K627:��LMNMO�PQNRS��=>2DD�064�:9D9;249�201�2C4>67541F�:C41F�86Y97F8C786=9F�-C034560F�67�79=860=5<5D541�=8935-59:�50�4>5=�=934560F�503DC:50;F�<C4�064�D5A549:�46F�5==C2039�20:90-6739A904�6-�8C<D53�Y2497�=1=49A�897A54=F�46�4>9�79;5602D�Y2497�zC2D541�360476D�<627:=T,D.�U>5=�=934560�=>2DD�<936A9�6897245G9�60�{CD1�]F�f̀ ]cT|}~������?934560�]]̂ cfd�6-�4>9�E92D4>�20:�?2-941�J6:9�5=�2A90:9:�46�792:�



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( ����+

,,-./01�234�567�8793:;<7=;��>?@?A�BC@DE��<3F�7G7<9;�3=F�@��9HIJKL�M3;7:�NFN;7<�O:P<�3=F�@��<3GK<H<LP=;3<K=3=;�J7Q7J�P:�;:73;<7=;�;7L6=KRH7�:7RHK:7<7=;�KO�K;�OK=8N�3JJ�;67�OPJJPMK=ST2U4�567�9HIJKL�M3;7:�NFN;7<�M3N�K=�P97:3;KP=V�P:�638�399JK78�OP:�3�97:<K;�;P�P97:3;7V�P=�;67�7OO7L;KQ7�83;7�PO�;67<3GK<H<�LP=;3<K=3=;�J7Q7J�P:�;:73;<7=;�;7L6=KRH7�:7RHK:7<7=;W2X4�YH7�;P�LP<97JJK=S�O3L;P:NV�M6KL6�<3F�K=LJH87�7K;67:�PO�;67�OPJJPMK=S�O3L;P:NV�;67�9HIJKL�M3;7:�NFN;7<�KNH=3IJ7�;P�LP<9JF�MK;6�;67�<3GK<H<�LP=;3<K=3=;�J7Q7J�P:�;:73;<7=;�;7L6=KRH7�:7RHK:7<7=;�P:�;P�K<9J7<7=;<73NH:7N�;P�87Q7JP9�3=�3J;7:=3;KQ7�M3;7:�NH99JFT2Z4�[LP=P<KL�O3L;P:NW2\4�567�7=;K:7�N7:QKL7�3:73�PO�;67�9HIJKL�M3;7:�NFN;7<�LP=NKN;N�PO�3�8KN38Q3=;3S78�LP<<H=K;FV�3N�87OK=78�H=87:]7L;KP=�Û _X284�PO�;67�O787:3J�]3O7�Y:K=̀K=S�a3;7:�ZL;�2̂X�bW]WcW�]7LW�deeSf_4V�3=8�<77;N�;67�3OOP:83IKJK;FL:K;7:K3�7N;3IJKN678�IF�;67�8793:;<7=;V�3O;7:�:7QK7M�3=8�9HIJKL�673:K=SW2d4�567�S:3=;K=S�PO�;67�7G7<9;KP=�MKJJ�=P;�:7NHJ;�K=�3=�H=:73NP=3IJ7�:KǸ�;P�673J;6W2̂4�g3=3S7<7=;�P:�:7N;:HL;H:K=S�L63=S7NV�P:�IP;6V�L3==P;�:73NP=3IJF�I7�<387�;63;�MKJJ�:7NHJ;�K=�LP<9JK3=L7MK;6�;6KN�L639;7:�P:V�KO�LP<9JK3=L7�L3==P;�I7�3L6K7Q78V�K<9:PQ7�;67�RH3JK;F�PO�;67�8:K=̀K=S�M3;7:W2I4�hO�;67�8793:;<7=;��>?@?A�BC@DE��S:3=;N�3�9HIJKL�M3;7:�NFN;7<�3=�7G7<9;KP=�OP:�3�9:K<3:F�8:K=̀K=S�M3;7:N;3=83:8�H=87:�NHI8KQKNKP=�234V�;67�8793:;<7=;��>?@?A�BC@DE��N63JJ�9:7NL:KI7V�3;�;67�;K<7�3=�?iA��7G7<9;KP=�KNS:3=;78V�3�NL678HJ7�OP:�IP;6�PO�;67�OPJJPMK=ST2U4�cP<9JK3=L7�IF�;67�9HIJKL�M3;7:�NFN;7<�MK;6�73L6�LP=;3<K=3=;�J7Q7J�P:�;:73;<7=;�;7L6=KRH7�:7RHK:7<7=;�OP:M6KL6�;67�7G7<9;KP=�M3N�S:3=;78W2X4�h<9J7<7=;3;KP=�IF�;67�9HIJKL�M3;7:�NFN;7<�PO�K=;7:K<�LP=;:PJ�<73NH:7N�;67�8793:;<7=;��>?@?A�BC@DE��<3F:7RHK:7�OP:�73L6�LP=;3<K=3=;�P:�;:73;<7=;�;7L6=KRH7�:7RHK:7<7=;�OP:�M6KL6�;67�7G7<9;KP=�M3N�S:3=;78W2L4�Z=F�NL678HJ7�9:7NL:KI78�IF�;67�8793:;<7=;��>?@?A�BC@DE��9H:NH3=;�;P�;6KN�N7L;KP=�N63JJ�:7RHK:7�LP<9JK3=L7�IF;67�9HIJKL�M3;7:�NFN;7<�MK;6�73L6�LP=;3<K=3=;�J7Q7J�P:�;:73;<7=;�;7L6=KRH7�:7RHK:7<7=;�OP:�M6KL6�;677G7<9;KP=�M3N�S:3=;78�MK;6K=�UX�<P=;6N�O:P<�;67�S:3=;K=S�PO�;67�7G7<9;KP=W284�567�OK=3J�83;7�OP:�LP<9JK3=L7�MK;6�3=F�NL678HJ7�KNNH78�9H:NH3=;�;P�;6KN�N7L;KP=�<3F�I7�7G;7=878�IF�;678793:;<7=;��>?@?A�BC@DE��OP:�3�97:KP8�=P;�;P�7GL778�;6:77�F73:N�O:P<�;67�83;7�PO�;67�S:3=;K=S�PO�;67�7G7<9;KP=�KO;67�8793:;<7=;��>?@?A�BC@DE��OK=8N�3JJ�PO�;67�OPJJPMK=ST2U4�567�NFN;7<�L3==P;�<77;�;67�N;3=83:8�MK;6PH;�L39K;3J�K<9:PQ7<7=;N�;63;�L3==P;�I7�LP<9J7;78�9:KP:�;P�BAjCDA��;67�83;7�7N;3IJKN678�9H:NH3=;�;P�]7L;KP=�Û UX2I42U4�PO�;67�O787:3J�]3O7�Y:K=̀K=S�a3;7:�ZL;�2̂X�bW]WcWdeeSf2I42U44W2X4�h=�;67�L3N7�PO�3�NFN;7<�;63;�=778N�OK=3=LK3J�3NNKN;3=L7�OP:�;67�=7L7NN3:F�K<9:PQ7<7=;NV�;67�NFN;7<�63N7=;7:78�K=;P�3=�3S:77<7=;�;P�PI;3K=�;67�OK=3=LK3J�3NNKN;3=L7�P:�;67�NFN;7<�63N�7=;7:78�K=;P�3=�7=OP:L73IJ73S:77<7=;�;P�I7LP<7�93:;�PO�3�:7SKP=3J�9HIJKL�M3;7:�NFN;7<W2d4�567�NFN;7<�KN�;3̀K=S�3JJ�9:3L;KL3IJ7�N;79N�;P�<77;�;67�N;3=83:8W274�h=�;67�L3N7�PO�3�NFN;7<�;63;�8P7N�=P;�N7:Q7�<P:7�;63=�3�9P9HJ3;KP=�PO�dVdee�3=8�;63;�=778N�OK=3=LK3J3NNKN;3=L7�OP:�;67�=7L7NN3:F�K<9:PQ7<7=;NV�3=�7G7<9;KP=�S:3=;78�9H:NH3=;�;P�93:3S:396�2X4�PO�NHI8KQKNKP=�284N63JJ�=P;�7GL778�3�;P;3J�PO�NKG�F73:NW2O4�k:KP:�;P�;67�S:3=;K=S�PO�3=�7G7<9;KP=�9H:NH3=;�;P�;6KN�N7L;KP=V�;67�8793:;<7=;��>?@?A�BC@DE��N63JJ�9:PQK87=P;KL7�3=8�3=�P99P:;H=K;F�OP:�3�9HIJKL�673:K=SW�lP;KL7�PO�3=F�9HIJKL�673:K=S�67J8�9H:NH3=;�;P�;6KN�N7L;KP=�N63JJ�I7SKQ7=�IF�;67�8793:;<7=;��>?@?A�BC@DE��K=�M:K;K=S�;P�;67�9HIJKL�M3;7:�NFN;7<�N77̀K=S�;67�7G7<9;KP=�3=8�;P�;679HIJKL�3N�9:PQK878�K=�]7L;KP=�memU�PO�;67�nPQ7:=<7=;�cP87W�Z�9HIJKL�673:K=S�9:PQK878�9H:NH3=;�;P�;6KNNHI8KQKNKP=�KN�=P;�3=�38oH8KL3;KQ7�673:K=S�3=8�KN�=P;�:7RHK:78�;P�LP<9JF�MK;6�]7L;KP=�UeeUpUW2S4�Z�9HIJKL�M3;7:�NFN;7<�<3F�>i@qq��=P;�:7L7KQ7�3=�7G7<9;KP=�H=87:�;6KN�N7L;KP=�KO�;67�NFN;7<�KN�S:3=;78�3Q3:K3=L7�9H:NH3=;�;P�]7L;KP=�UUm̂ deW264�b=J7NN�;67�8793:;<7=;��>?@?A�BC@DE��63N�3J:738F�S:3=;78�3=�7G7<9;KP=�9H:NH3=;�;P�NHI8KQKNKP=�234V�;678793:;<7=;��>?@?A�BC@DE��<3F�7G7<9;�3�9HIJKL�M3;7:�NFN;7<�O:P<�LP<9JK3=L7�MK;6�3�<3GK<H<



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( �*��+

,-./01.23./�456789:6867��;3<3;�-=�/=30/23./�/3,>.1?@3�=3?@1=323./�A-=�@B�/-�/C-�D30=E�1A�/>3�F3B0=/23./��G787HI58JK��A1.FEL�0.F�,-./1.@3E�/-�A1.FL�/>0/�0�B;0.�E@M21//3F�MD�/>3�C0/3=�EDE/32�20D�=30E-.0M;D�M3�3NB3,/3F�/-M=1.O�/>3�C0/3=�EDE/32�1./-�,-2B;10.,3�MD�0.D�-A�/>3�A-;;-C1.O�230.EPQRS�T>3�B>DE1,0;�,-.E-;1F0/1-.�-A�/>3�EDE/32�C1/>�-.3�-=�2-=3�-/>3=�EDE/32EUQVS�T>3�,-.E-;1F0/1-.�-A�E1O.1A1,0./�20.0O323./�0.F�0F21.1E/=0/1<3�A@.,/1-.E�-A�/>3�EDE/32�C1/>�-.3�-=�2-=3-/>3=�EDE/32EUQWS�T>3�/=0.EA3=�-A�-C.3=E>1B�-A�/>3�EDE/32UXYZ[�\][�̂3,/1-.�RR_̀ ab�-A�/>3�c30;/>�0.F�̂0A3/D�d-F3�1E�023.F3F�/-�=30FPeefghi[�Q0S�j-;;-C1.O�,-2B;3/1-.�-A�/>3�1.<3E/1O0/1-.�0.F�E0/1EA0,/1-.�-A�/>3�=3?@1=323./E�-A�B0=0O=0B>E�QRS�0.FQVSL�/>3�E/0/3�M-0=F�E>0;;�1EE@3�-=�F3.D�/>3�B3=21/U�T>3�E/0/3�M-0=F�20D�12B-E3�B3=21/�,-.F1/1-.EL�=3?@1=323./EA-=�EDE/32�12B=-<323./EL�/3,>.1,0;L�A1.0.,10;L�-=�20.0O3=10;�=3?@1=323./EL�0.F�/123�E,>3F@;3E�0E�1/�F332E.3,3EE0=D�/-�3.E@=3�0�=3;10M;3�0.F�0F3?@0/3�E@BB;D�-A�C0/3=�0/�0;;�/123E�/>0/�1E�B@=3L�C>-;3E-23L�B-/0M;3L�0.FF-3E�.-/�3.F0.O3=�/>3�>30;/>�-A�,-.E@23=EUQRS�k�B@M;1,�C0/3=�EDE/32�/>0/�C0E�.-/�1.�3N1E/3.,3�-.�l0.@0=D�RL�RmmnL�E>0;;�.-/�M3�O=0./3F�0�B3=21/�@.;3EE�/>3B@M;1,�C0/3=�EDE/32�F32-.E/=0/3E�/-�/>3�E/0/3�M-0=F�/>0/�/>3�C0/3=�E@BB;13=�B-EE3EE3E�0F3?@0/3�A1.0.,10;L20.0O3=10;L�0.F�/3,>.1,0;�,0B0M1;1/D�/-�3.E@=3�/>3�F3;1<3=D�-A�B@=3L�C>-;3E-23L�0.F�B-/0M;3�F=1.o1.O�C0/3=U�T>1EE3,/1-.�E>0;;�0;E-�0BB;D�/-�0.D�,>0.O3�-A�-C.3=E>1B�-A�0�B@M;1,�C0/3=�EDE/32UQVS�k�B3=21/�@.F3=�/>1E�,>0B/3=�E>0;;�.-/�M3�1EE@3F�/-�0.�0EE-,10/1-.�-=O0.1p3F�@.F3=�T1/;3�W�Q,-223.,1.O�C1/>3̂,/1-.�RnbbbS�-A�/>3�d-=B-=0/1-.E�d-F3U�T>1E�E3,/1-.�E>0;;�.-/�0BB;D�/-�@.1.,-=B-=0/3F�0EE-,10/1-.E�/>0/L�0E�-Aq3,32M3=�WRL�RmmbL�0=3�>-;F3=E�-A�0�B3=21/�1EE@3F�@.F3=�/>1E�,>0B/3=UQMS�r-/C1/>E/0.F1.O�̂3,/1-.�RR_WWbL�0�;-,0;�B=120,D�0O3.,D�E>0;;�.-/�1EE@3�0�B3=21/�@.F3=�/>1E�0=/1,;3�C1/>-@//>3�,-.,@==3.,3�-A�/>3�E/0/3�M-0=FUQ,S�s.�,-.E1F3=1.O�C>3/>3=�/-�0BB=-<3�0�B=-B-E3F�.3C�B@M;1,�C0/3=�EDE/32L�/>3�E/0/3�M-0=F�E>0;;�,-.E1F3=�/>3E@E/01.0M1;1/D�-A�/>3�B=-B-E3F�.3C�B@M;1,�C0/3=�EDE/32�0.F�1/E�C0/3=�E@BB;D�1.�/>3�=30E-.0M;D�A-=3E330M;3�A@/@=3L1.�<13C�-A�O;-M0;�,;120/3�,>0.O3L�B-/3./10;�21O=0/1-.�-A�O=-@.FC0/3=�,-./021.0/1-.�0.F�-/>3=�B-/3./10;�/=30/23./.33FEL�0.F�-/>3=�A0,/-=E�/>0/�,0.�E1O.1A1,0./;D�3=-F3�0�EDE/32tE�,0B0,1/DUQFS�sA�/>3�E/0/3�M-0=F�F3/3=21.3E�/>0/�1/�1E�A30E1M;3�A-=�/>3�E3=<1,3�0=30�-A�/>3�B@M;1,�C0/3=�EDE/32�0FF=3EE3F�MD0.�0BB;1,0/1-.�@.F3=�/>1E�0=/1,;3�/-�M3�E3=<3F�MD�-.3�-=�2-=3�B3=21//3F�B@M;1,�C0/3=�EDE/32E�1F3./1A13F�B@=E@0.//-�B0=0O=0B>�QRS�-A�E@MF1<1E1-.�Q,S�-A�̂3,/1-.�RR_̀ VuL�/>3�E/0/3�M-0=F�20D�F3.D�/>3�B3=21/�-A�0�B=-B-E3F�.3CB@M;1,�C0/3=�EDE/32�1A�1/�F3/3=21.3EL�M0E3F�-.�1/E�0EE3EE23./�-A�/>3�B=3;121.0=D�/3,>.1,0;�=3B-=/�E@M21//3FB@=E@0./�/-�̂3,/1-.�RR_̀ VuL�/>3�B3=21/�0BB;1,0/1-.L�0.F�-/>3=�=3;3<0./L�E@ME/0./10;�3<1F3.,3�E@M21//3FL�/>0/�1/�1E=30E-.0M;D�A-=3E330M;3�/>0/�/>3�B=-B-E3F�.3C�B@M;1,�C0/3=�EDE/32�C1;;�M3�@.0M;3�/-�B=-<1F3�0AA-=F0M;3L�E0A3F=1.o1.O�C0/3=�1.�/>3�=30E-.0M;D�A-=3E330M;3�A@/@=3UQ3S�k.�0BB;1,0./�20D�0BB30;�F3,1E1-.E�0.F�0,/1-.E�-A��vH7:7:56�7wH�G787H�I58JK�x5J�JH456G:KHJ87:56�5x�8�KH4:G:56�5x847:56�5x��/>3�F3B@/D�F1=3,/-=�/0o3.�B@=E@0./�/-�/>1E�E3,/1-.�/-�/>3�E/0/3�M-0=FU�GH47:56y�XYZ[�\z[�̂3,/1-.�RR__V̀ �-A�/>3�c30;/>�0.F�̂0A3/D�d-F3�1E�023.F3F�/-�=30FPeeff\g[�Q0S�T>3�F3B0=/23./L�0A/3=�0�>30=1.O�.-/1,3F�0.F�,-.F@,/3F�0E�B=-<1F3F�1.�̂3,/1-.�RbbRuRL�G787H�I58JK{8x7HJ�vJ5|:K:6}�657:4H�75�7wH�vHJ9:77HH�86K�5vv5J7~6:7��x5J�8�wH8J:6}{��20D�E@EB3.F�-=�=3<-o3�0.D�B3=21/�1EE@3FB@=E@0./�/-�/>1E�,>0B/3=�1A�/>3�F3B0=/23./��G787H�I58JK��F3/3=21.3E�B@=E@0./�/-�/>3�>30=1.O�/>0/�/>3�B3=21//33�1E.-/�,-2B;D1.O�C1/>�/>3�B3=21/L�/>1E�,>0B/3=L�-=�0.D�=3O@;0/1-.L�E/0.F0=FL�-=�-=F3=�1EE@3F�-=�0F-B/3F�/>3=3@.F3=L-=�/>0/�/>3�B3=21//33�>0E�20F3�0�A0;E3�E/0/323./�-=�=3B=3E3./0/1-.�-.�0.D�0BB;1,0/1-.L�=3,-=FL�-=�=3B-=/201./01.3F�-=�E@M21//3F�A-=�B@=B-E3E�-A�,-2B;10.,3�C1/>�/>1E�,>0B/3=U�sA�/>3�B3=21/��vHJ9:77HH�K5HG�657�JH�~HG78�wH8J:6}��:7w:6�7wH�vHJ:5K�GvH4:x:HK�:6�7wH�657:4H{�7wH�G787H�I58JK�98��G~GvH6K�5J�JH|5�H�7wH�vHJ9:7��:7w5~7�8wH8J:6}y��x�7wH�vHJ9:77HH�G~I9:7G�8�7:9H���JH�~HG7�x5J�8�wH8J:6}{�7wH�wH8J:6}�Gw8���IH�IHx5JH�7wH�G787H�I58JK�5J�89H9IHJ�5x�7wH�G787H�I58JK{�:6�8445JK864H��:7w��H47:56�����5x�7wH��87HJ��5KH�86K�7wH�J~�HG�x5J�8K�~K:487:|HvJ54HHK:6}G�8K5v7HK�~6KHJ��H47:56�����5x�7wH��87HJ��5KHy��x�7wH�vHJ9:7��0/�1EE@3�>0E�M33.�/32B-=0=1;DE@EB3.F3F�B@=E@0./�/-�E@MF1<1E1-.�Q,SL��I�{��/>3�0,,@E0/1-.�E>0;;�M3�E3=<3F�0.F�.-/1,3�-A�/>3�>30=1.O�F0/3�O1<3.�657:4H�Gw8���IH�vJ5|:KHK��C1/>1.�R̀ �F0DE�-A�/>3�3AA3,/1<3�F0/3�-A�/>3�/32B-=0=D�E@EB3.E1-.�-=F3=U�T>3,-223.,323./�-A�/>3�>30=1.O�~6KHJ�7w:G�G~IK:|:G:56��E>0;;�M3�0E�E--.�0E�B=0,/1,0M;3L�M@/�1.��.-�,0E3��;0/3=�/>0.



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( �+��,

-.�/012�03456�475�5335849:5�/045�;3�475�45<=;6061�2>2=5?29;?�;6/56@��ABCDBE�FGHDII�JKD�IJLJD�MALBC�NBLGJI�LGDOJDGIPAG�AQ�JKD�RS�CLT�UDBPAC�FUAG�BDVFDIJ�AQ�JKD�UDBWPJJDDX�YZ[��\75�=56<94455�<01�39]5�̂947�475�2>=569;6�8;>64�0�=54949;?�3;6�0�̂694�;3�<0?/045�3;6�65:95̂ �;3�0?1�/58929;?�;3475�/5=064<5?4�<0/5�=>62>0?4�4;�2>Z/9:929;?�Y0[@�_09]>65�4;�39]5�0�=54949;?�270]]�?;4�=658]>/5�0�=0641�36;<870]]5?̀9?̀ �475�6502;?0Z]5?522�;6�:0]9/941�;3�0�/58929;?�;3�475�/5=064<5?4�9?�0?1�a>/9890]�=6;855/9?̀�4;�5?3;685475�/58929;?�;6�36;<�=>62>9?̀�0?1�65<5/1�0>47;69b5/�Z1�4792�870=456@Y8[��cMd��\75�/5=064<5?4��IJLJD�MALBC��<01�45<=;6069]1�2>2=5?/�0?1�=56<94�922>5/�=>62>0?4�4;�4792�870=456�=69;64;��MDQABD��0?1�75069?̀ �̂75?�475�0849;?�92�?58522061�4;�=65:5?4�0?�9<<9?5?4�;6�2>Z240?490]�/0?̀56�4;�750]47@�\75/96584;6��IJLJD�MALBC��270]]�?;4931�475�=56<94455�;3�475�45<=;6061�2>2=5?29;?�0?/�475�5335849:5�/045�47565;3��AQJKD�JDWUABLBT�IFIUDGIPAG��0?/e�04�475�20<5�49<5e�?;4931�475�=56<94455�4704�0�75069?̀�702�Z55?�2875/>]5/@�\7575069?̀�270]]�Z5�75]/�02�2;;?�02�=;229Z]5e�Z>4�?;4�]0456�470?�fg�/012�03456�475�5335849:5�/045�;3�475�45<=;60612>2=5?29;?�FGHDII�JKD�IJLJD�MALBC�NBLGJI�LG�DOJDGIPAG�AQ�JKD�hi�CLT�UDBPAC�FUAG�BDVFDIJ�AQ�JKD�UDBWPJJDDE��0?/270]]�/50]�;?]1�̂ 947�475�922>5�;3�̂ 754756�475�45<=;6061�2>2=5?29;?�270]]�65<09?�9?�=]085�=5?/9?̀�0�75069?̀�;?475�<56942@��FGCDB�IFMCPjPIPAG�cLdX�kKD�KDLBPGN�IKLHH�MD�lAGCFlJDC�FGCDB�JKD�BFHDI�QAB�LCmFCPlLJPjD�UBAlDDCPGNILCAUJDC�MT�JKD�IJLJD�MALBC�FGCDB�nDlJPAG�hoi�AQ�JKD�pLJDB�qACDX��\75�45<=;6061�2>2=5?29;?�270]]�65<09?�9?533584�>?49]�475�75069?̀�FGCDB�JKPI�IFMCPjPIPAG��92�8;<=]545/�0?/�475�/96584;6��IJLJD�MALBC��702�<0/5�0�39?0]/5456<9?049;?�;?�475�45<=;6061�2>2=5?29;?e�4704�9?�0?1�5:5?4��rKPlK��270]]�Z5�<0/5�̂ 9479?�fg�/012�03456�4758;<=]549;?�;3�475�75069?̀@��KDLBPGN�FGHDII�JKD�IJLJD�MALBC�NBLGJI�LG�DOJDGIPAG�AQ�JKD�hi�CLT�UDBPAC�FUAG�BDVFDIJAQ�JKD�UDBWPJJDDX��s3�475�/5456<9?049;?�92�?;4�460?2<9445/�̂9479?�fg�/012�03456�475�75069?̀�92�8;<=]545/e�475��ABLGT�DOJDGIPAG�AQ�JKPI�UDBPAC�BDVFDIJDC�MT�JKD�UDBWPJJDDE�JKD��45<=;6061�2>2=5?29;?�270]]�Z5�;3�?;�3>64756�533584@t922;]>49;?�;3�475�45<=;6061�2>2=5?29;?�/;52�?;4�/5=69:5�475�/5=064<5?4��IJLJD�MALBC��;3�a>692/9849;?�4;�=6;855/9̂47�0�75069?̀�;?�475�<56942�>?/56�2>Z/9:929;?�Y0[@uvwx�yzx�{5849;?�ff-|..�;3�475�}50]47�0?/�{03541�~;/5�92�0<5?/5/�4;�650/�����zzx�Y0[��9479?��.�/012�03456�256:985�;3�0�8;=1�;3�0?��L�CDlPIPAG�AB��;6/56�922>5/�Z1�475�24045�Z;06/e�0?0̀ 6̀95:5/�=0641�<01�39]5�̂ 947�475�2>=569;6�8;>64�0�=54949;?�3;6�0�̂ 694�;3�<0?/045�3;6�65:95̂ �;3�475�CDlPIPAG�AB�;6/56@YZ[�s?�5:561�8025e�475�8;>64�270]]�5�568925�942�9?/5=5?/5?4�a>/̀<5?4�;?�475�5:9/5?85@Y8[���85=4�02�;4756̂925�=6;:9/5/�9?�4792�25849;?e�2>Z/9:929;?2�Y5[�0?/�Y3[�;3�{5849;?�f.��@g�;3�475�~;/5�;3�~9:9]�6;85/>65�270]]�̀;:56?�=6;855/9?̀2�=>62>0?4�4;�4792�25849;?@Y/[�s3�?;�0̀ 6̀95:5/�=0641�=54949;?2�3;6�0�̂694�;3�<0?/045�̂9479?�475�49<5�=6;:9/5/�Z1�4792�25849;?e�475�/58929;?�;6;6/56�;3�475�24045�Z;06/�92�?;4�2>Za584�4;�65:95̂ �Z1�0?1�8;>64@uvwx�y�x�{5849;?�ff-|.f�;3�475�}50]47�0?/�{03541�~;/5�92�0<5?/5/�4;�650/�����z�x�Y0[�chd���9479?��.�/012�;3�922>0?85�;3�0?�;6/56�;6�/58929;?�922>5/�Z1�475�/5=>41�/96584;6�FGCDB�LFJKABPJTCDHDNLJDC�JA�LG�AQQPlDB�AB�DWUHATDD�AQ�JKD�IJLJD�MALBC��>?/56��6498]5���Y8;<<5?89?̀ �̂ 947�{5849;?�ff--�g[�;6�6498]5���Y8;<<5?89?̀� 9̂47�{5849;?�ff--g.[e�0?�0̀ 6̀95:5/�=562;?�<01�=54949;?�475�24045�Z;06/�3;6658;?29/56049;?@��7565�475�;6/56�;6�/58929;?�;3�475�/5=>41�/96584;6�92�922>5/�03456�0�75069?̀�>?/56�~70=456�gY8;<<5?89?̀ �̂ 947�{5849;?�ffg..[�;3��064�f�;3�t9:929;?���;3�\94]5���;3�475��;:56?<5?4�~;/5e�4792�25849;?�270]]0==]1�9?2450/�;3�{5849;?�ffg�f�;3�475��;:56?<5?4�~;/5@�c�d�pPJKPG��S�CLTI�AQ�PIIFLGlD�AQ�LG�ABCDB�AB�CDlPIPAG�FGCDB�LFJKABPJT�CDHDNLJDC�JA�LG�AQQPlDB�AB�DWUHATDD�AQ�JKDIJLJD�MALBC�FGCDB�nDlJPAG�hhRi�SE�JKD�LUUHPlLGJ�WLT�UDJPJPAG�JKD�IJLJD�MALBC�QAB�BDlAGIPCDBLJPAGXc�d�pPJKPG��S�CLTI�AQ�QPGLH�LlJPAG�MT�LG�AQQPlDB�AB�DWUHATDD�AQ�JKD�IJLJD�MALBC�LlJPGN�FGCDB�CDHDNLJDC�LFJKABPJTEJKD�ArGDB�AQ�L�HLMABLJABT�JKLJ�rLI�JKD�IFMmDlJ�AQ�JKD�QPGLH�LlJPAG�WLT�UDJPJPAG�JKD�IJLJD�MALBC�QAB�BDlAGIPCDBLJPAGAQ�LGT�AQ�JKD�QAHHArPGN�LlJPAGI�c�d��DGPLH�AQ�LG�LUUHPlLJPAG�QAB�lDBJPQPlLJPAG�AB�LllBDCPJLJPAG�FGCDB�nDlJPAG�hSSoiiXc�d��IIFLGlD�AQ�LG�ABCDB�CPBDlJPGN�lAWUHPLGlD�FGCDB�nDlJPAG�hSSo�iXcqd��IIFLGlD�AQ�L�lPJLJPAG�FGCDB�nDlJPAG�hSSooSXc�d��IIDIIWDGJ�AQ�L�UDGLHJT�FGCDB�IFMCPjPIPAG�cDd�AQ�nDlJPAG�hSSooSX



���������� ��	
����
��������	�	

��������������������
����� 
���!��
 ��"���#���
��#������$����%"���&�	'�������(��)�*�( �+��+

,-.�/01�21343456�70899�46:9;<1�301�68=1�86<�8<<>177�5?�301�213434561>@�8�:52A�5?�301�5><1>�5>�<1:47456�?5>�B04:0301�213434561>�711C7�>1:5674<1>83456@�4<1634?4:83456�5?�301�>18756�301�213434561>�8991D17�301�477;86:1�5?�301�5><1>EF�GHIJKJEL��B87�46822>52>4831�5>�4=2>521>@�301�721:4?4:�8:3456�301�213434561>�>1M;1737@�86<�5301>�46?5>=83456�87301�73831�-58><�=8A�2>17:>4-1N�/01�21343456�70899�-1�8::5=28641<�-A�8�73831=163�5?�254637�86<�8;305>43417�5?�30191D89�477;17�>8471<�-A�301�21343456N,:.�/01�1O4<16:1�-1?5>1�301�73831�-58><�70899�:567473�5?�301�>1:5><�-1?5>1�301�<12;3A�<4>1:35>��EPPJIHF�EFHQRSETHH�UVE�JKKWHG�XVH�EFGHF�EF�GHIJKJEL��86<�86A�5301>�>191O863�1O4<16:1�3083@�46�301�Y;<D=163�5?�301�73831-58><@�705;9<�-1�:5674<1>1<�35�4=291=163�301�2594:417�5?�3047�:08231>N�/01�73831�-58><�=8A@�46�437�<47:>13456@�059<8�018>46D�?5>�>1:1423�5?�8<<4345689�1O4<16:1N,<.�/01�73831�-58><�=8A�>1?;71�35�>1:5674<1>�301�5><1>�5>�<1:47456�4?�301�21343456�?8497�35�>8471�7;-73863489�477;173083�8>1�822>52>4831�?5>�>1O41B@�=8A�<16A�301�21343456�;256�8�<131>=4683456�3083�301�477;86:1�5?�301�5><1>�5><1:47456�B87�822>52>4831�86<�2>521>@�=8A�713�874<1�5>�=5<4?A�301�5><1>�5>�<1:47456@�5>�38C1�5301>�822>52>48318:3456N�/01�73831�-58><Z7�8:3456�2;>7;863�35�3047�7;-<4O47456�70899�:567343;31�301�73831�-58><Z7�:5=2913456�5?�437>1:5674<1>83456N,1.�/01�73831�-58><@�;256�6534:1�86<�018>46D@�4?�8�018>46D�47�019<@�=8A�738A�46�B0591�5>�46�28>3�301�1??1:3�5?�3015><1>�5>�<1:47456�5?�301�<12;3A�<4>1:35>N�KW[\HIX�XE�XVH�RHXJXJEL�PEF�FHIELKJGHF]XJEL̂�,?.�_?�86�5><1>�5?�301�<12;3A�<4>1:35>��EF�GHIJKJEL��47�7;-Y1:3�35�>1:5674<1>83456�;6<1>�3047�71:3456@�301�?4946D�5?�821343456�?5>�>1:5674<1>83456�47�86�8<=46473>834O1�>1=1<A�3083�=;73�-1�1̀08;731<�-1?5>1�?4946D�8�21343456�?5>�B>43�5?=86<831�;6<1>�a1:3456�bbccde�fgghiĝj��5>�bbckllNmnop�qrp�a1:3456�dblslNdc�5?�301�t;-94:�u175;>:17�v5<1�47�8=16<1<�35�>18<wrxyzypr{p�/047�<4O47456�<517�653�8229A�35�=465>�8931>834567�35�;34943417�=8<1�?5>�301�2;>25717�5?�:5=29A46D�B430a1:34567�|ldcNk�ff}~fg��86<�|ldcNs�ff}~fj��5?�301��18930�86<�a8?13A�v5<1�5>�>1D;9834567�8<5231<�301>1;6<1>N����������E�FHJQ[WFKHQHLX�JK�FH�WJFHG�[T�XVJK�]IX�RWFKW]LX�XE��HIXJEL�}�EP��FXJISH��������EP�XVH��]SJPEFLJ]�ELKXJXWXJEL�[HI]WKH�XVH�ELST�IEKXK�XV]X�Q]T�[H�JLIWFFHG�[T�]�SEI]S�]�HLIT�EF�KIVEES�GJKXFJIX�UJSS�[H�JLIWFFHG[HI]WKH�XVJK�]IX�IFH]XHK�]�LHU�IFJQH�EF�JLPF]IXJEL��HSJQJL]XHK�]�IFJQH�EF�JLPF]IXJEL��EF�IV]L�HK�XVH�RHL]SXT�PEF�]IFJQH�EF�JLPF]IXJEL��UJXVJL�XVH�QH]LJL��EP��HIXJEL�f�jj}�EP�XVH��E�HFLQHLX��EGH��EF�IV]L�HK�XVH�GHPJLJXJEL�EP�]IFJQH�UJXVJL�XVH�QH]LJL��EP��HIXJEL�}�EP��FXJISH��������EP�XVH��]SJPEFLJ]��ELKXJXWXJEL̂



REGULATIONS UPDATE

27



Revised Timeline

 We’ve extended our regulations timeline

 Resource constraints have necessitated this adjustment

 ELTAC’s role remains unchanged

 We’ll ask for your comments first at a future meeting

28



Comments on Preliminary Draft Text

 We accepted public comments on the preliminary draft text from

July 24th-Sept 7th

 Our preliminary plan is to incorporate approximately 85% of the

comments received

 A majority suggested clarification on ambiguous language

 The remaining comments are on policy decisions

 These are still under consideration

 Thank you to all who provided input

29



Quarterly Reporting

 We heard your concerns

 And have taken them to heart

 We have proposed a compromise to the State Agency Partners Committee

 Laboratories would submit their annual internal audit instead

 Agency Partners seem amenable

 As long as ELAP defines what is expected in the internal audits

 The intent is to help labs proactively improve
 

30



FIELDS OF ACCREDITATION
Jacob Oaxaca, ELAP

31



New Fields of Accreditation

 The Fields of Accreditation are not included in the draft regulation text

 Leaving them out allows us more flexibility to change them as needed

 We’re proposing to reorganize them based on method + technology

 Draft FOTs are in your meeting materials

 Thank you to Andy Eaton for his help in drafting these

 We’re looking for ELTAC’s feedback

32



MICROBIOLOGY
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1100

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology

DW 101.090 001 Chromocult Total Coliform, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.090 002 Chromocult E. Coli, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.100 001 Colitag Total Coliform, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.100 002 Colitag E. Coli, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.060 001 E*Colite Total Coliform, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.060 002 E*Colite E. Coli, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.170 001 Enterolert Enterococci Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.160 001 EPA 1600 Enterococci Membrane Filter
DW 101.190 001 EPA 1601 Coliphage, P/A Membrane Filter
DW 101.200 001 EPA 1602 Coliphage, P/A Membrane Filter
DW 101.120 001 EPA 1603 E. Coli, Enumeration Membrane Filter
DW 101.130 001 EPA 1604 Total Coliform, P/A Membrane Filter
DW 101.130 002 EPA 1604 E. Coli, P/A Membrane Filter
DW 101.130 003 EPA 1604 Total Coliform, Enumeration Membrane Filter
DW 101.130 004 EPA 1604 E. Coli, Enumeration Membrane Filter
DW 101.210 001 Fast Phage Coliphage, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.070 001 m-ColiBlue24 Total Coliform, P/A Membrane Filter
DW 101.070 002 m-ColiBlue24 E. Coli, P/A Membrane Filter
DW 101.070 003 m-ColiBlue24 Total Coliform, Enumeration Membrane Filter
DW 101.070 004 m-ColiBlue24 E. Coli, Enumeration Membrane Filter
DW 101.080 001 ReadyCult Total Coliform, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.080 002 ReadyCult E. Coli, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.020 004 SM 9221 B,C Total Coliform, Enumeration Multiple Tube Fermentation
DW 101.020 002 SM 9221 B,E Fecal Coliform, P/A Multiple Tube Fermentation
DW 101.020 005 SM 9221 B,E Fecal Coliform, Enumeration Multiple Tube Fermentation
DW 101.020 003 SM 9221 B,F E. Coli, P/A Multiple Tube Fermentation
DW 101.020 006 SM 9221 B,F E. Coli, Enumeration Multiple Tube Fermentation
DW 101.030 001 SM 9221 D Total Coliform, P/A Presence-Absence
DW 101.030 002 SM 9221 D,E Fecal Coliform, P/A Presence-Absence
DW 101.030 003 SM 9221 D,F E. Coli, P/A Presence-Absence
DW 101.040 001 SM 9222 B Total Coliform, P/A Membrane Filter
DW 101.040 005 SM 9222 B Total Coliform, Enumeration Membrane Filter
DW 101.040 003 SM 9222 C Total Coliform, P/A Membrane Filter, Delayed
DW 101.040 007 SM 9222 C Total Coliform, Enumeration Membrane Filter, Delayed
DW 101.040 002 SM 9222 D Fecal Coliform, P/A Membrane Filter
DW 101.040 006 SM 9222 D Fecal Coliform, Enumeration Membrane Filter
DW 101.040 004 SM 9222 G E. Coli, P/A Membrane Filter, Two Step
DW 101.040 008 SM 9222 G E. Coli, Enumeration Membrane Filter, Two Step

Drinking Water

Page 1 of 3



MICROBIOLOGY
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1100

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 101.050 001 SM 9223 B Colilert Total Coliform, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.050 002 SM 9223 B Colilert E. Coli, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.050 003 SM 9223 B Colilert Total Coliform, Enumeration Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.050 004 SM 9223 B Colilert E. Coli, Enumeration Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.050 005 SM 9223 B Colilert 18 Total Coliform, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.050 006 SM 9223 B Colilert 18 E. Coli, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.050 007 SM 9223 B Colilert 18 Total Coliform, Enumeration Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.050 008 SM 9223 B Colilert 18 E. Coli, Enumeration Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.050 009 SM 9223 B Colisure Total Coliform, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.050 010 SM 9223 B Colisure E. Coli, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.050 011 SM 9223 B Colisure Total Coliform, Enumeration Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.050 012 SM 9223 B Colisure E. Coli, Enumeration Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.140 001 SM 9230 B Enterococci Multiple Tube Fermentation
DW 101.150 001 SM 9230 C Enterococci Membrane Filter
DW 101.180 001 Tecta EC/TC Total Coliform, P/A Enzyme Substrate
DW 101.180 002 Tecta EC/TC E. Coli, P/A Enzyme Substrate

WW 107.247 001 9221B.1-2006/9221F-2006 E. Coli MTF/EC-Mug
WW 107.242 001 Enterolert Enterococci Enterolert/Idexx
WW 107.244 001 EPA 1600 Enterococci MF/mEI
WW 107.246 001 EPA 1603 E. Coli MF/modified mTEC
WW 107.248 001 EPA 1680 Fecal Coliform MTF/LTB & EC media
WW 107.249 001 EPA 1681 Fecal Coliform MTF/A-1 media
WW 107.120 001 EPA 600/8-78-017, p108 Total Coliform MF
WW 107.130 001 EPA 600/8-78-017, p111 Total Coliform with Chlorine Present MF
WW 107.160 001 EPA 600/8-78-017, p114 Total Coliform MTF
WW 107.170 001 EPA 600/8-78-017, p114 Total Coliform with Chlorine Present MTF
WW 107.140 001 EPA 600/8-78-017, p124 Fecal Coliform MF
WW 107.150 001 EPA 600/8-78-017, p124 Fecal Coliform with Chlorine Present MF
WW 107.180 001 EPA 600/8-78-017, p132 Fecal Coliform MTF
WW 107.190 001 EPA 600/8-78-017, p132 Fecal Coliform with Chlorine Present MTF
WW 107.200 001 EPA 600/8-78-017, p136 Fecal Streptococci MF
WW 107.210 001 EPA 600/8-78-017, p139 Fecal Streptococci MTF
WW 107.220 001 EPA 600/8-78-017, p143 Fecal Streptococci Plate Count
WW 107.230 001 EPA 600/8-78-017, p143 Enterococci Plate Count
WW 107.250 001 mColiBlue-24 E. Coli MF
WW 107.010 001 SM9215B Heterotrophic Bacteria HPC
WW 107.020 002 SM9221B-2006 Total Coliform MTF
WW 107.030 002 SM9221B-2006 Total Coliform with Chlorine Present MTF

Wastewater

Page 2 of 3



MICROBIOLOGY
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1100

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 107.040 002 SM9221C,E-2006 Fecal Coliform MTF
WW 107.050 002 SM9221C,E-2006 Fecal Coliform with Chlorine Present MTF
WW 107.070 002 SM9222B + B.5c-1997 Total Coliform with Chlorine Present MF
WW 107.060 002 SM9222B-1997 Total Coliform MF
WW 107.080 002 SM9222D-1997 Fecal Coliform MF
WW 107.090 002 SM9222D-1997 Fecal Coliform with Chlorine Present MF
WW 107.245 002 SM9223B-2004 E. coli Colilert/Idexx
WW 107.245 003 SM9223B-2004 E. coli Colisure/Idexx
WW 107.100 002 SM9230B-2007 Fecal Streptococci MTF
WW 107.110 002 SM9230C-2007 Fecal Streptococci MF
WW 107.110 003 SM9230C-2007 Enterococci MF

HW 126.080 001 Enterolert Enterococci Idexx
HW 116.020 030 EPA 8015B Nonhalogenated Volatiles
HW 126.010 001 SM9221B-2006 Total Coliform (Enumeration) MTF
HW 126.030 001 SM9221C,E-2006 Fecal Coliform (Enumeration) MTF
HW 126.020 001 SM9222B-1997 Total Coliform (Enumeration) MF
HW 126.040 001 SM9222D-1997 Fecal Coliform (Enumeration) MF
HW 126.050 001 SM9223B-2004 Total Coliform (Enumeration) Colilert/Idexx 
HW 126.050 002 SM9223B-2004 E. coli (Enumeration) Colilert/Idexx 
HW 126.060 001 SM9230B Enterococci MF
HW 126.070 001 SM9230C Enterococci MF

Recreational Water

Page 3 of 3



PHYSICAL AND INORGANIC
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1110

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology

DW 102.015 001 EPA 150.1 Hydrogen Ion (pH) Electrometric
DW 102.016 001 EPA 150.2 Hydrogen Ion (pH) Electrometric (Continous)
DW 102.020 001 EPA 180.1 Turbidity Nephelometric
DW 102.053 002 EPA 327.0 Chlorine Dioxide Spectrophotometric
DW 102.056 001 EPA 334.0 Chlorine, Free Available Chlorine Analyzer
DW 102.056 002 EPA 334.0 Chlorine, Combined Chlorine Analyzer
DW 102.056 003 EPA 334.0 Chlorine, Total Residual Chlorine Analyzer
DW 102.095 001 SM 2130B-2001 Turbidity Nephelometric
DW 102.100 001 SM 2320 B-1997 Alkalinity Titrimeteric 
DW 102.130 001 SM 2510 B-1997 Conductivity Conductivity Meter
DW 102.140 001 SM 2540 C-1997 Residue, Filterable TDS Gravimetric
DW 102.172 001 SM 4500-Cl D-2000 Chlorine, Combined Titrimetric 
DW 102.172 002 SM 4500-Cl D-2000 Chlorine, Free Available Titrimetric 
DW 102.172 003 SM 4500-Cl D-2000 Chlorine, Total Residual Titrimetric 
DW 102.173 001 SM 4500-Cl E-2000 Chlorine, Free Available Amperometeric
DW 102.174 001 SM 4500-Cl F-2000 Chlorine, Free Available DPD-FAS
DW 102.174 002 SM 4500-Cl F-2000 Chlorine, Total Residual DPD-FAS
DW 102.175 001 SM 4500-Cl G-2000 Chlorine, Free Available Spectrophotometric
DW 102.175 002 SM 4500-Cl G-2000 Chlorine, Total Residual Spectrophotometric
DW 102.180 001 SM 4500-ClO2 D-2000 Chlorine Dioxide DPD
DW 102.182 002 SM 4500-ClO2 E-2000 Chlorine Dioxide Potentiometric
DW 102.203 001 SM 4500-H\+\ B-2000 Hydrogen Ion (pH) Electrometric
DW 102.173 002 SM 4500-Cl E-2000 Chlorine, Total Residual Amperometeric

WW 108.020 001 EPA 120.1 Rev. 1982 Conductivity Conductivity Meter
WW 108.051 001 EPA 150.2 (Dec. 1982) Hydrogen Ion (pH) Automated Electrode
WW 108.090 001 EPA 160.4 (Issued 1971) Residue, Volatile Gravimetric at 550°
WW 108.110 001 EPA 180.1 Rev. 2.0 (1993) Turbidity Nephelometric
WW 108.385 001 SM 2120B-2001 Color Visual Comparison
WW 108.390 001 SM 2130B-2001 Turbidity Nephelometric
WW 108.400 001 SM 2310 B-1997 Acidity Titrimeteric 
WW 108.410 001 SM 2320 B-1997 Alkalinity Titrimeteric 
WW 108.430 001 SM 2510 B-1997 Conductivity Conductivity Meter
WW 108.440 001 SM 2540 B-1997 Residue, Total Gravimetric
WW 108.441 001 SM 2540 C-1997 Residue, Filterable TDS Gravimetric
WW 108.442 001 SM 2540 D-1997 Residue, Non-filterable TSS Gravimetric
WW 108.439 001 SM 2540 E-1997 Reidue, Volatile Gravimetric
WW 108.443 001 SM 2540 F-1997 Residue, Settleable Volumetric

Drinking Water

Wastewater

Page 1 of 2



PHYSICAL AND INORGANIC
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1110

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 108.444 001 SM 2550 B-2000 Temperature Thermometric
WW 108.460 001 SM 4500-Cl B-2000 Chlorine, Total residual Iodometric direct
WW 108.461 001 SM 4500-Cl C-2000 Chlorine, Total residual Back titration
WW 108.462 001 SM 4500-Cl D-2000 Chlorine, Total residual Amperometric
WW 108.462 002 SM 4500-Cl D-2000 Chlorine, Free Available Amperometric
WW 108.463 001 SM 4500-Cl E-2000 Chlorine, Total residual Amperometric, low level
WW 108.463 002 SM 4500-Cl E-2000 Chlorine, Free Available Amperometric, low level
WW 108.464 001 SM 4500-Cl F-2000 Chlorine, Total residual DPD-FAS
WW 108.464 002 SM 4500-Cl F-2000 Chlorine, Free Available DPD-FAS
WW 108.465 001 SM 4500-Cl G-2000 Chlorine, Total residual Spectrophotometric
WW 108.465 002 SM 4500-Cl G-2000 Chlorine, Free Available Spectrophotometric
WW 108.141 001 EPA 310.2 (Rev. 1974) Alkalinity Automated Colorimetric

Page 2 of 2



INORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1120

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology

DW 102.025 001 EPA 200.5 Calcium ICP-AES
DW 102.025 002 EPA 200.5 Magnesium ICP-AES
DW 102.025 003 EPA 200.5 Silica ICP-AES
DW 102.025 004 EPA 200.5 Sodium ICP-AES
DW 102.026 001 EPA 200.7 Calcium ICP-AES
DW 102.026 002 EPA 200.7 Magnesium ICP-AES
DW 102.026 003 EPA 200.7 Potassium ICP-AES
DW 102.026 004 EPA 200.7 Silica ICP-AES
DW 102.026 005 EPA 200.7 Sodium ICP-AES
DW 102.026 006 EPA 200.7 Hardness (Calculation) ICP-AES
DW 102.030 001 EPA 300.0 Bromide Ion Chromatography
DW 102.030 002 EPA 300.0 Chlorate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.030 003 EPA 300.0 Chloride Ion Chromatography
DW 102.030 004 EPA 300.0 Chlorite Ion Chromatography
DW 102.030 005 EPA 300.0 Fluoride Ion Chromatography
DW 102.030 006 EPA 300.0 Nitrate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.030 007 EPA 300.0 Nitrite Ion Chromatography
DW 102.030 008 EPA 300.0 Phosphate, Ortho Ion Chromatography
DW 102.030 009 EPA 300.0 Sulfate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.040 001 EPA 300.1 Bromide Ion Chromatography
DW 102.040 002 EPA 300.1 Chlorite Ion Chromatography
DW 102.040 003 EPA 300.1 Chlorate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.040 004 EPA 300.1 Bromate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.040 005 EPA 300.1 Chloride Ion Chromatography
DW 102.040 006 EPA 300.1 Fluoride Ion Chromatography
DW 102.040 007 EPA 300.1 Nitrate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.040 008 EPA 300.1 Nitrite Ion Chromatography
DW 102.040 009 EPA 300.1 Phosphate, Ortho Ion Chromatography
DW 102.040 010 EPA 300.1 Sulfate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.041 001 EPA 302.0 Bromate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.044 001 EPA 317.0 Bromate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.044 002 EPA 317.0 Bromide Ion Chromatography
DW 102.044 003 EPA 317.0 Chlorite Ion Chromatography
DW 102.045 001 EPA 314.0 Perchlorate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.046 001 EPA 314.1 Perchlorate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.050 001 EPA 335.4 Cyanide Semi Auto Colorimetric
DW 102.051 001 EPA 321.8 Bromate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.052 001 EPA 326.0 Bromate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.052 002 EPA 326.0 Bromide Ion Chromatography
DW 102.052 003 EPA 326.0 Chlorite Ion Chromatography
DW 102.053 001 EPA 327.0 Chlorite Spectrophotometric

Drinking Water

Page 1 of 14



INORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1120

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 102.060 001 EPA 353.2 Nitrate (Calculation) Automated Colorimetric
DW 102.061 001 EPA 353.2 Nitrite Automated Colorimetric
DW 102.070 001 EPA 365.1 Phosphate, Ortho Semi Auto Colorimetric
DW 102.080 001 EPA 375.2 Sulfate Automated Colorimetric
DW 102.085 001 EPA 415.3 Rev. 1.1 Dissolved Organic Carbon DOC Spectrophotometric
DW 102.085 002 EPA 415.3 Rev. 1.1 Specific UV Absorbance SUVA Spectrophotometric
DW 102.085 003 EPA 415.3 Rev. 1.1 Total Organic Carbon TOC Spectrophotometric
DW 102.085 004 EPA 415.3 Rev. 1.1 UV254 Spectrophotometric
DW 102.086 001 EPA 415.3 Rev. 1.2 Dissolved Organic Carbon DOC Spectrophotometric
DW 102.086 002 EPA 415.3 Rev. 1.2 Specific UV Absorbance SUVA Spectrophotometric
DW 102.086 003 EPA 415.3 Rev. 1.2 Total Organic Carbon TOC Spectrophotometric
DW 102.086 004 EPA 415.3 Rev. 1.2 UV254 Spectrophotometric
DW 102.120 001 SM 2340 B-1997 Hardness (Calculation) AA or ICP
DW 102.121 001 SM 2340 C-1997 Hardness Titrimeteric 
DW 102.146 001 SM 3111 B-1999 Calcium AA Direct Aspiration
DW 102.146 002 SM 3111 B-1999 Magnesium AA Direct Aspiration
DW 102.146 003 SM 3111 B-1999 Potassium AA Direct Aspiration
DW 102.146 004 SM 3111 B-1999 Sodium AA Direct Aspiration
DW 102.146 005 SM 3111 B-1999 Hardness (Calculation) AA Direct Aspiration
DW 102.147 001 SM 3120 B-1999 Calcium ICP-AES
DW 102.147 002 SM 3120 B-1999 Magnesium ICP-AES
DW 102.147 003 SM 3120 B-1999 Potassium ICP-AES
DW 102.147 004 SM 3120 B-1999 Silica ICP-AES
DW 102.147 006 SM 3120 B-1999 Hardness (Calculation) ICP-AES
DW 102.148 001 SM 3500-Ca B-1997 Calcium Titrimetric 
DW 102.149 001 SM 3500-Mg B-1997 Magnesium Calculation
DW 102.150 001 SM 4110B-2000 Chloride Ion Chromatography
DW 102.150 002 SM 4110B-2000 Fluoride Ion Chromatography
DW 102.150 003 SM 4110B-2000 Nitrate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.150 004 SM 4110B-2000 Nitrite Ion Chromatography
DW 102.150 005 SM 4110B-2000 Phosphate, Ortho Ion Chromatography
DW 102.150 006 SM 4110B-2000 Sulfate Ion Chromatography
DW 102.170 001 SM 4500-Cl- B-1997 Chloride Titrimeteric 
DW 102.171 001 SM 4500-Cl- D-1997 Chloride Potentiometric
DW 102.182 001 SM 4500-ClO2 E-2000 Chlorite Amperometeric
DW 102.190 001 SM 4500-CN E-2000 Cyanide, Total Spectrophotometric
DW 102.191 001 SM 4500-CN F-1999 Cyanide, Total Electrode
DW 102.192 001 SM 4500-CN G-1999 Cyanide, amenable Spectrophotometric
DW 102.200 001 SM 4500-F C-1997 Fluoride Electrode
DW 102.201 001 SM 4500-F B,D-1997 Fluoride Colorimetric
DW 102.202 001 SM 4500-F E-1997 Fluoride Colorimetric
DW 102.220 001 SM 4500-NO2 B-2000 Nitrite Spectrophotometric

Page 2 of 14



INORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1120

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 102.230 001 SM 4500-NO3-D-2000 Nitrate Electrode
DW 102.232 001 SM 4500-NO3 E-2000 Nitrite Cd Reduction Manual
DW 102.232 002 SM 4500-NO3 E-2000 Nitrate Cd Reduction Manual
DW 102.234 001 SM 4500-NO3 F-2000 Nitrite Cd Reduction Auto
DW 102.234 002 SM 4500-NO3 F-2000 Nitrate Cd Reduction Auto
DW 102.240 001 SM 4500-P E-1999 Phosphate, Ortho Colorimetric
DW 102.241 001 SM 4500-P F -1999 Phosphate, Ortho Colorimetric
DW 102.242 001 SM 4500-SiO2 C-1997 Silica Colorimetric
DW 102.243 001 SM 4500-SiO2 D-1997 Silica Colorimetric
DW 102.244 001 SM 4500-SiO2 E-1997 Silica Auto Colorimetric
DW 102.250 001 SM 4500-SO4 C,D-1997 Sulfate Gravimetric
DW 102.251 001 SM 4500-SO4 E-1997 Sulfate Turbidimetric
DW 102.252 001 SM 4500-SO4 F -1997 Sulfate Auto Colorimetric
DW 102.260 001 SM 5310 B-2000 Organic carbon-Total (TOC) Combustion
DW 102.261 001 SM 5310 B-2000 Organic carbon-Dissolved (DOC) Combustion
DW 102.262 001 SM 5310C-2000 Organic carbon-Total (TOC) Oxidation
DW 102.263 001 SM 5310C-2000 Organic carbon-Dissolved (DOC) Oxidation
DW 102.264 001 SM 5310D-2000 Organic carbon-Total (TOC) Oxidation
DW 102.265 001 SM 5310D-2000 Organic carbon-Dissolved (DOC) Oxidation
DW 102.270 001 SM 5540C-2000 Surfactants Colorimetric
DW 102.280 001 SM 5910B-2011 UV254 Spectrophotometric
DW 102.300 001 Hach 10206 Nitrate Hach
DW 102.564 001 Kelada-01 Revision 1.2 Cyanide Auto Colorimetric
DW 102.565 001 Quickchem 10-204-00-1-X Cyanide Auto Colorimetric
DW 102.570 001 OIA-1677, DW Cyanide FIA
DW 103.010 002 SM3111B Copper AA Furnace
DW 103.010 003 SM3111B Iron AA Furnace
DW 103.010 005 SM3111B Manganese AA Furnace
DW 103.010 006 SM3111B Nickel AA Furnace
DW 103.010 008 SM3111B Silver AA Furnace
DW 103.010 010 SM3111B Zinc AA Furnace
DW 103.020 001 SM3111D Aluminum AA Furnace
DW 103.020 002 SM3111D Barium AA Furnace
DW 103.030 001 SM3112B Mercury Cold Vapor AA
DW 103.040 001 SM3113B Aluminum AA Furnace
DW 103.040 002 SM3113B Antimony AA Furnace
DW 103.040 003 SM3113B Arsenic AA Furnace
DW 103.040 004 SM3113B Barium AA Furnace
DW 103.040 005 SM3113B Beryllium AA Furnace
DW 103.040 006 SM3113B Cadmium AA Furnace
DW 103.040 007 SM3113B Chromium AA Furnace
DW 103.040 008 SM3113B Copper AA Furnace

Page 3 of 14



INORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1120

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 103.040 009 SM3113B Iron AA Furnace
DW 103.040 010 SM3113B Lead AA Furnace
DW 103.040 011 SM3113B Manganese AA Furnace
DW 103.040 012 SM3113B Nickel AA Furnace
DW 103.040 013 SM3113B Selenium AA Furnace
DW 103.040 014 SM3113B Silver AA Furnace
DW 103.050 001 SM3114B Arsenic AA Manual Hydride
DW 103.050 002 SM3114B Selenium AA Manual Hydride
DW 103.060 001 SM3120B Aluminum ICP-AES
DW 103.060 003 SM3120B Barium ICP-AES
DW 103.060 004 SM3120B Beryllium ICP-AES
DW 103.060 007 SM3120B Chromium ICP-AES
DW 103.060 008 SM3120B Copper ICP-AES
DW 103.060 009 SM3120B Iron ICP-AES
DW 103.060 011 SM3120B Manganese ICP-AES
DW 103.060 012 SM3120B Nickel ICP-AES
DW 103.060 015 SM3120B Silver ICP-AES
DW 103.060 017 SM3120B Zinc ICP-AES
DW 103.125 001 EPA 200.5 Aluminum ICP-AES
DW 103.125 002 EPA 200.5 Antimony ICP-AES
DW 103.125 003 EPA 200.5 Arsenic ICP-AES
DW 103.125 004 EPA 200.5 Barium ICP-AES
DW 103.125 005 EPA 200.5 Beryllium ICP-AES
DW 103.125 006 EPA 200.5 Cadmium ICP-AES
DW 103.125 007 EPA 200.5 Chromium ICP-AES
DW 103.125 008 EPA 200.5 Copper ICP-AES
DW 103.125 009 EPA 200.5 Iron ICP-AES
DW 103.125 010 EPA 200.5 Lead ICP-AES
DW 103.125 011 EPA 200.5 Manganese ICP-AES
DW 103.125 012 EPA 200.5 Nickel ICP-AES
DW 103.125 013 EPA 200.5 Selenium ICP-AES
DW 103.125 014 EPA 200.5 Silver ICP-AES
DW 103.125 015 EPA 200.5 Zinc ICP-AES
DW 103.130 001 EPA 200.7 Aluminum ICP-AES
DW 103.130 003 EPA 200.7 Barium ICP-AES
DW 103.130 004 EPA 200.7 Beryllium ICP-AES
DW 103.130 005 EPA 200.7 Cadmium ICP-AES
DW 103.130 007 EPA 200.7 Chromium ICP-AES
DW 103.130 008 EPA 200.7 Copper ICP-AES
DW 103.130 009 EPA 200.7 Iron ICP-AES
DW 103.130 011 EPA 200.7 Manganese ICP-AES
DW 103.130 012 EPA 200.7 Nickel ICP-AES

Page 4 of 14



INORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1120

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 103.130 015 EPA 200.7 Silver ICP-AES
DW 103.130 017 EPA 200.7 Zinc ICP-AES
DW 103.130 018 EPA 200.7 Boron ICP-AES
DW 103.150 001 EPA 200.9 Aluminum STGFAA
DW 103.150 002 EPA 200.9 Antimony STGFAA
DW 103.150 003 EPA 200.9 Arsenic STGFAA
DW 103.150 004 EPA 200.9 Beryllium STGFAA
DW 103.150 005 EPA 200.9 Cadmium STGFAA
DW 103.150 006 EPA 200.9 Chromium STGFAA
DW 103.150 007 EPA 200.9 Copper STGFAA
DW 103.150 008 EPA 200.9 Iron STGFAA
DW 103.150 009 EPA 200.9 Lead STGFAA
DW 103.150 010 EPA 200.9 Manganese STGFAA
DW 103.150 011 EPA 200.9 Nickel STGFAA
DW 103.150 012 EPA 200.9 Selenium STGFAA
DW 103.150 013 EPA 200.9 Silver STGFAA
DW 103.150 014 EPA 200.9 Thallium STGFAA
DW 103.150 015 EPA 200.9 Vanadium STGFAA
DW 103.160 001 EPA 245.1 Mercury Cold Vapor, Manual
DW 103.161 001 EPA 245.2 Mercury Cold Vapor, Automated
DW 103.310 001 EPA 218.6 Chromium (VI) Ion Chromatography
DW 103.311 001 EPA 218.7 Chromium (VI) Ion Chromatography

WW 108.030 001 EPA 130.1 (Issued 1971) Hardness Automated Colorimetric
WW 108.111 001 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Boron ICP-AES
WW 108.111 002 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Calcium ICP-AES
WW 108.111 003 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Magnesium ICP-AES
WW 108.111 004 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Silica, Dissolved ICP-AES
WW 108.111 005 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Sodium ICP-AES
WW 108.112 001 EPA 200.7, Rev. 4.4 (1994) Boron ICP-AES
WW 108.112 002 EPA 200.7, Rev. 4.4 (1994) Calcium ICP-AES
WW 108.112 003 EPA 200.7, Rev. 4.4 (1994) Hardness (Calculation) ICP-AES
WW 108.112 004 EPA 200.7, Rev. 4.4 (1994) Magnesium ICP-AES
WW 108.112 005 EPA 200.7, Rev. 4.4 (1994) Potassium ICP-AES
WW 108.112 006 EPA 200.7, Rev. 4.4 (1994) Silica, Dissolved ICP-AES
WW 108.112 007 EPA 200.7, Rev. 4.4 (1994) Sodium ICP-AES
WW 108.112 008 EPA 200.7, Rev. 4.4 (1994) Phosphorous, Total ICP-AES
WW 108.120 001 EPA 300.0, Rev 2.1 (1993) Bromide Ion Chromatography
WW 108.120 002 EPA 300.0, Rev 2.1 (1993) Chloride Ion Chromatography
WW 108.120 003 EPA 300.0, Rev 2.1 (1993) Fluoride Ion Chromatography
WW 108.120 008 EPA 300.0, Rev 2.1 (1993) Sulfate (as SO4) Ion Chromatography
WW 108.120 012 EPA 300.0, Rev 2.1 (1993) Nitrate (as N) Ion Chromatography

Wastewater

Page 5 of 14



INORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1120

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 108.120 013 EPA 300.0, Rev 2.1 (1993) Nitrate-nitrite (as N) Ion Chromatography
WW 108.120 014 EPA 300.0, Rev 2.1 (1993) Nitrite (as N) Ion Chromatography
WW 108.120 015 EPA 300.0, Rev 2.1 (1993) Phosphate, Ortho(as P) Ion Chromatography
WW 108.121 001 EPA 300.1, Rev 1.0 (1997) Bromide Ion Chromatography
WW 108.121 002 EPA 300.1, Rev 1.0 (1997) Chloride Ion Chromatography
WW 108.121 003 EPA 300.1, Rev 1.0 (1997) Fluoride Ion Chromatography
WW 108.121 008 EPA 300.1, Rev 1.0 (1997) Sulfate (as SO4) Ion Chromatography
WW 108.121 009 EPA 300.1, Rev 1.0 (1997) Nitrate (as N) Ion Chromatography
WW 108.121 010 EPA 300.1, Rev 1.0 (1997) Nitrate-nitrite (as N) Ion Chromatography
WW 108.121 011 EPA 300.1, Rev 1.0 (1997) Nitrite (as N) Ion Chromatography
WW 108.121 012 EPA 300.1, Rev 1.0 (1997) Phosphate, Ortho(as P) Ion Chromatography
WW 108.183 001 EPA 335.4, Rev. 1.0 (1993) Cyanide, Total Semi Auto Colorimetric
WW 108.209 001 EPA 350.1, Rev. 2.0 (1993) Ammonia (as N) Semi Auto Colorimetric
WW 108.209 002 EPA 350.1 Rev 2.0 1993 Kjeldahl Nitrogen,Total (as N) Auto Color no distill 
WW 108.210 002 EPA 351.1 Rev. 1978 Kjeldahl Nitrogen,Total (as N) Semi Auto Color no distill
WW 108.211 002 EPA 351.2 Rev 2.0 1993 Kjeldahl Nitrogen,Total (as N) Semi Auto Color no distill
WW 108.220 002 EPA 352.1 (Issued1971) Nitrate (as N) Colorimetric
WW 108.232 003 EPA 353.2 Rev. 2.0 (1993) Nitrate-nitrite (as N) Colorimetric
WW 108.232 004 EPA 353.2 Rev. 2.0 (1993) Nitrite (as N) Automated Reduction
WW 108.260 001 EPA 365.1 Rev. 2.0 (1993) Phosphate, Ortho Auto Ascorbic acid
WW 108.261 001 EPA 365.1 Rev. 2.0 (1993) Phosphorus, Total Auto Ascorbic acid
WW 108.264 001 EPA 365.3 (Issued 1978) Phosphate, Ortho Manual two reagent
WW 108.265 001 EPA 365.3 (Issued 1978) Phosphorus, Total Manual Ascorbic acid
WW 108.266 001 EPA 365.4  (Issued 1974) Phosphorus, Total Semi Auto Colorimetric
WW 108.267 001 EPA 200.7, Rev. 4.4 (1994) Phosphorus, Total ICP-AES
WW 108.283 001 EPA 375.2, Rev. 2.0 (1993) Sulfate (as SO4) Automated Colorimetric
WW 108.322 001 EPA 410.3 (Issued 1978) Chemical Oxygen Demand Titrimeteric 
WW 108.323 001 EPA 410.4, Rev. 2.0 (1993) Chemical Oxygen Demand Spectrophotometric
WW 108.360 001 EPA 420.1\1\(Rev. 1978) Phenols, Total Manual Colorimetric
WW 108.362 001 EPA 420.4 Rev. 1.0 (1993) Phenols, Total Automated Colorimetric
WW 108.379 001 EPA 1627 Acid mine Drainage
WW 108.381 001 EPA 1664  A Oil and Grease, Total Recoverable Gravimetric
WW 108.381 002 EPA 1664 Revision B Oil and Grease, Total Recoverable Gravimetric
WW 108.420 001 SM 2340 B-1997 Hardness (calculation) AA or ICP
WW 108.421 001 SM 2340 C-1997 Hardness Titrimetric 
WW 108.445 001 SM 3111 B-1999 Calcium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 108.445 002 SM 3111 B-1999 Hardness (calculation) AA Direct Aspiration
WW 108.445 003 SM 3111 B-1999 Magnesium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 108.445 004 SM 3111 B-1999 Potassium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 108.445 005 SM 3111 B-1999 Sodium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 108.447 001 SM 3120 B-1999 Boron ICP-AES
WW 108.447 002 SM 3120 B-1999 Calcium ICP-AES

Page 6 of 14



INORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1120

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 108.447 003 SM 3120 B-1999 Hardness (calulation) ICP-AES
WW 108.447 004 SM 3120 B-1999 Magnesium ICP-AES
WW 108.447 005 SM 3120 B-1999 Potassium ICP-AES
WW 108.447 006 SM 3120 B-1999 Silica, Dissolved ICP-AES
WW 108.447 007 SM 3120 B-1999 Sodium ICP-AES
WW 108.447 008 SM 3120 B-1999 Phosphorus, Total ICP-AES
WW 108.448 001 SM 4110 B, C, D-2000 Bromide Ion Chromatography
WW 108.448 002 SM 4110 B or C-2000 Chloride Ion Chromatography
WW 108.448 003 SM 4110 B or C-2000 Fluoride Ion Chromatography
WW 108.448 004 SM 4110 B or C-2000 Nitrate (as N) Ion Chromatography
WW 108.448 005 SM 4110 B or C-2000 Nitrite (as N) Ion Chromatography
WW 108.448 006 SM 4110 B or C-2000 Nitrate-nitrite (as N) Ion Chromatography
WW 108.448 007 SM 4110 B or C-2000 Phosphate, Ortho (as P) Ion Chromatography
WW 108.448 008 SM 4110 B or C-2000 Sulfate (as SO4) Ion Chromatography
WW 108.449 001 SM 3500-Ca B-1997 Calcium Titrimetric 
WW 108.449 002 SM 3500-K B-1997 Potassium Flame Photomteric
WW 108.449 003 SM 3500-K C-1997 Potassium Electrode
WW 108.449 004 SM 3500-Na B-1997 Sodium Flame Photomteric
WW 108.450 001 SM 4500-Cl- B-1997 Chloride Titrimeteric 
WW 108.451 001 SM 4500-Cl- C-1997 Chloride Titrimeteric 
WW 108.452 001 SM 4500-Cl- E-1997 Chloride Colorimetric
WW 108.453 001 SM 4500-Cl- D-1997 Chloride Potentiometric
WW 108.454 001 SM 4140 B-1997 Bromide CIE/UV
WW 108.454 002 SM 4140 B-1997 Chloride CIE/UV
WW 108.454 003 SM 4140 B-1997 Nitrate (as N) CIE/UV
WW 108.454 004 SM 4140 B-1997 Nitrate-nitrite (as N) CIE/UV
WW 108.454 005 SM 4140 B-1997 Nitrite (as N) CIE/UV
WW 108.454 006 SM 4140 B-1997 Phosphate, Ortho (as P) CIE/UV
WW 108.454 007 SM 4140 B-1997 Sulfate (as SO4) CIE/UV
WW 108.454 008 SM 4140 B-1997 Sulfide (as S) CIE/UV
WW 108.466 001 SM 4500-B B-2000 Boron Colorimetric
WW 108.470 001 SM 4500-CN B or C-1999 Cyanide, Total Manual Distillation
WW 108.471 001 SM 4500-CN D-1999 Cyanide, Total Titrimetric 
WW 108.472 001 SM 4500-CN E-1999 Cyanide, Total Spectrophotometric
WW 108.473 001 SM 4500-CN G-1999 Cyanide, Available Spectrophotometric
WW 108.474 001 SM 4500-CN F-1999 Cyanide, Total Electrode
WW 108.480 001 SM 4500-F B,C-1997 Fluoride Electrode
WW 108.481 001 SM 4500-F B,D-1997 Fluoride Colorimetric
WW 108.482 001 SM 4500-F E-1997 Fluoride Colorimetric
WW 108.490 001 SM 4500-H\+\ B-2000 Hydrogen Ion (pH) Electrometric
WW 108.500 002 SM 4500-NH3 B,C-1997 Ammonia (as N) Titrimetric 
WW 108.501 002 SM 4500-NH3 B,C-1997 Kjeldahl Nitrogen,Total (as N) Titrimetric 

Page 7 of 14



INORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1120

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 108.502 002 SM 4500-NH3 B,D or B, E-1997 Ammonia (as N) Electrode
WW 108.503 002 SM 4500-NH3 B,D or B, E-1997 Kjeldahl Nitrogen,Total (as N) Electrode
WW 108.504 002 SM 4500-NH3 F-1997 Ammonia (as N) Phenate Manual 
WW 108.505 002 SM 4500-NH3 F-1997 Kjeldahl Nitrogen,Total (as N) Phenate Manual 
WW 108.506 002 SM 4500-NH3 G-1997 Ammonia (as N) Phenate Automated  
WW 108.507 002 SM 4500-NH3 G-1997 Kjeldahl Nitrogen,Total (as N) Phenate Automated 
WW 108.508 002 SM 4500-NH3 H-1997 Ammonia (as N) FIA
WW 108.509 001 SM 4500-NH3 H-1997 Kjeldahl Nitrogen,Total (as N) FIA
WW 108.511 001 SM-4500-Norg B-1997 Kjeldahl Nitrogen,Total (as N) Macro kjeldahl
WW 108.512 001 SM-4500-Norg C-1997 Kjeldahl Nitrogen,Total (as N) Micro kjeldahl
WW 108.513 001 SM-4500-Norg D-1997 Kjeldahl Nitrogen,Total (as N) Digestion & FIA
WW 108.514 001 SM 4500-NO2 B-2000 Nitrite (as N) Spectrophotometric
WW 108.527 001 SM 4500-NO3-D-2000 Nitrate (as N) Electrode
WW 108.528 001 SM 4500-NO3 E-2000 Nitrate-nitrite (as N) Cd Reduction Manual
WW 108.528 002 SM 4500-NO3 E-2000 Nitrite (as N) Cd Reduction Manual
WW 109.009 001 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Aluminum ICP-AES
WW 109.009 002 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Antimony ICP-AES
WW 109.009 003 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Arsenic ICP-AES
WW 109.009 004 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Barium ICP-AES
WW 109.009 005 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Beryllium ICP-AES
WW 109.009 006 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Cadmium ICP-AES
WW 109.009 007 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Chromium ICP-AES
WW 109.009 008 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Cobalt ICP-AES
WW 109.009 009 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Copper ICP-AES
WW 109.009 010 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Iron ICP-AES
WW 109.009 011 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Lead ICP-AES
WW 109.009 012 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Manganese ICP-AES
WW 109.009 013 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Molybdenum ICP-AES
WW 109.009 014 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Nickel ICP-AES
WW 109.009 015 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Selenium ICP-AES
WW 109.009 016 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Silver ICP-AES
WW 109.009 017 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Thallium ICP-AES
WW 109.009 018 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Tin ICP-AES
WW 109.009 019 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Vanadium ICP-AES
WW 109.009 020 EPA 200.5, Rev. 4.2 (2003) Zinc ICP-AES
WW 109.010 001 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Aluminum ICP-AES
WW 109.010 002 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Antimony ICP-AES
WW 109.010 003 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Arsenic ICP-AES
WW 109.010 004 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Barium ICP-AES
WW 109.010 005 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Beryllium ICP-AES
WW 109.010 006 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Boron ICP-AES
WW 109.010 007 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Cadmium ICP-AES

Page 8 of 14



INORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1120

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 109.010 009 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Chromium ICP-AES
WW 109.010 010 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Cobalt ICP-AES
WW 109.010 011 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Copper ICP-AES
WW 109.010 012 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Iron ICP-AES
WW 109.010 013 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Lead ICP-AES
WW 109.010 015 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Manganese ICP-AES
WW 109.010 016 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Molybdenum ICP-AES
WW 109.010 017 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Nickel ICP-AES
WW 109.010 019 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Selenium ICP-AES
WW 109.010 021 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Silver ICP-AES
WW 109.010 023 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Thallium ICP-AES
WW 109.010 024 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Tin ICP-AES
WW 109.010 025 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Titanium ICP-AES
WW 109.010 026 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Vanadium ICP-AES
WW 109.010 027 EPA 200.7 Rev. 4.4 (1994) Zinc ICP-AES
WW 109.025 001 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Aluminum STGFAA
WW 109.025 002 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Antimony STGFAA
WW 109.025 003 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Arsenic STGFAA
WW 109.025 004 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Beryllium STGFAA
WW 109.025 005 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Cadmium STGFAA
WW 109.025 006 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Chromium STGFAA
WW 109.025 007 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Cobalt STGFAA
WW 109.025 008 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Copper STGFAA
WW 109.025 009 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Iron STGFAA
WW 109.025 010 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Lead STGFAA
WW 109.025 011 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Manganese STGFAA
WW 109.025 012 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Nickel STGFAA
WW 109.025 013 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Selenium STGFAA
WW 109.025 014 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Silver STGFAA
WW 109.025 015 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Thallium STGFAA
WW 109.025 016 EPA 200.9 Rev. 2.2 (1994) Tin STGFAA
WW 109.104 001 EPA 218.6, Rev. 3.3 (1994) Chromium VI Ion Chromatography
WW 109.131 001 EPA 231.2 (Issued 1978) Gold AA Furnace
WW 109.141 001 EPA 235.2 (Issued 1978) Iridium AA Furnace
WW 109.190 001 EPA 245.1 Rev 3.0 (1994) Mercury Cold Vapor, Manual
WW 109.191 001 EPA 245.2 (Issued 1974) Mercury Cold Vapor, Automated
WW 109.192 001 EPA 245.7 Rev 2.0 (2005) Mercury CVAFS
WW 109.221 001 EPA 252.2 (Issued 1978) Osmium AA Furnace
WW 109.231 001 EPA 253.2(Issued 1978) Palladium AA Furnace
WW 109.241 001 EPA 255.2 (Issued 1978) Platinum AA Furnace
WW 109.261 001 EPA 265.2 (Issued 1978) Rhodium AA Furnace
WW 109.271 001 EPA 267.2 Ruthenium AA Furnace

Page 9 of 14



INORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1120

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 109.311 001 EPA 279.2  (Issued 1978) Thallium AA Furnace
WW 109.331 001 EPA 283.2 (Issued 1978) Titanium AA Furnace
WW 109.351 001 EPA 289.2 (Issued 1978) Zinc AA Furnace
WW 109.361 001 EPA 1631E Mercury Purge & Trap CVAFS
WW 109.370 001 SM 3111 B-1999 Antimony AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 002 SM 3111 B -1999 Cadmium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 004 SM 3111 B -1999 Chromium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 005 SM 3111 B -1999 Cobalt AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 006 SM 3111 B -1999 Copper AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 007 SM 3111 B-1999 Gold AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 008 SM 3111 B-1999 Iridium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 009 SM 3111 B -1999 Iron AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 010 SM 3111 B-1999 Lead AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 011 SM 3111 B -1999 Arsenic AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 012 SM 3111 B-1999 Manganese AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 013 SM 3111 B-1999 Nickel AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 014 SM 3111 B -1999 Palladium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 015 SM 3111 B-1999 Platinum AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 017 SM 3111 B-1999 Rhodium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 018 SM 3111 B-1999 Ruthenium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 019 SM 3111 B-1999 Silver AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 021 SM 3111 B -1999 Thallium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 022 SM 3111 B -1999 Tin AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 023 SM 3111 B -1999 Zinc AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.370 025 SM 3111 B -1999 Arsenic AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.380 001 SM 3111  D-1999 Aluminum AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.380 001 SM 3111 C -1999 Cadmium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.380 002 SM 3111  C-1999 Chromium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.380 003 SM 3111  C-1999 Chromium VI dissolved AA Chelation
WW 109.380 004 SM 3111 C-1999 Cobalt AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.380 005 SM 3111  C-1999 Copper AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.380 006 SM 3111  C-1999 Iron AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.380 007 SM 3111  C-1999 Lead AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.380 008 SM 3111  C-1999 Nickel AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.380 009 SM 3111 C-2009 Silver AA gaseous hydride
WW 109.380 010 SM 3111  C-1999 Zinc AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.390 001 SM 3111 D-1999 Aluminum AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.390 002 SM 3111 D  -1999 Barium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.390 003 SM 3111 D-1999 Beryllium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.390 004 SM 3111 D  -1999 Molybdenum AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.390 005 SM 3111 D-1999 Osmium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.390 006 SM 3111 D-1999 Titanium AA Direct Aspiration

Page 10 of 14



INORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1120

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 109.390 007 SM 3111 D-1999 Vanadium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.391 001 SM 3111 E-1999 Aluminum AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.391 002 SM 3111  E -1999 Beryllium AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.391 003 SM 3111  E -1999 Mercury AA Direct Aspiration
WW 109.400 001 SM 3112 B-2009 Mercury Cold Vapor, Manual
WW 109.410 001 SM 3113 B-2004 Aluminum AA Furnace
WW 109.410 001 SM 3113 B-2004 Arsenic AA Furnace
WW 109.410 002 SM 3113 B-2004 Antimony AA Furnace
WW 109.410 003 SM 3113 B-2004 Arsenic AA Furnace
WW 109.410 004 SM 3113 B-2004 Barium AA Furnace
WW 109.410 005 SM 3113 B-2004 Beryllium AA Furnace
WW 109.410 006 SM 3113 B-2004 Cadmium AA Furnace
WW 109.410 007 SM 3113 B-2004 Chromium AA Furnace
WW 109.410 008 SM 3113 B-2004 Cobalt AA Furnace
WW 109.410 009 SM 3113 B-2004 Copper AA Furnace
WW 109.410 010 SM 3113 B-2004 Iron AA Furnace
WW 109.410 011 SM 3113 B-2004 Lead AA Furnace
WW 109.410 012 SM 3113 B-2004 Manganese AA Furnace
WW 109.410 013 SM 3113 B-2004 Molybdenum AA Furnace
WW 109.410 014 SM 3113 B-2004 Nickel AA Furnace
WW 109.410 015 SM 3113 B-2004 Selenium AA Furnace
WW 109.410 016 SM 3113 B-2004 Silver AA Furnace
WW 109.410 017 SM 3113 B-2004 Tin AA Furnace
WW 109.410 018 SM 3113 B-2004 Vanadium AA Furnace
WW 109.410 019 SM 3113 B-2004 Gold AA Furnace
WW 109.410 020 SM 3113 B-2004 Thallium AA Furnace
WW 109.420 001 SM 3114 B -2009 Arsenic AA Manual Hydride
WW 109.420 002 SM 3114 B-2009 Selenium AA Manual Hydride
WW 109.421 001 SM 3114  C-2009 Aluminum AA Continuous Hydride
WW 109.421 002 SM 3114  C-2009 Selenium AA Continuous Hydride
WW 109.430 001 SM 3120 B-1999 Aluminum ICP-AES
WW 109.430 001 SM 3125 B-1999 Aluminum ICP-AES
WW 109.430 002 SM 3120 B-1999 Antimony ICP-AES
WW 109.430 003 SM 3120 B-1999 Arsenic ICP-AES
WW 109.430 004 SM 3120 B-1999 Barium ICP-AES
WW 109.430 005 SM 3120 B-1999 Beryllium ICP-AES
WW 109.430 006 SM 3120 B-1999 Boron ICP-AES
WW 109.430 007 SM 3120 B-1999 Cadmium ICP-AES
WW 109.430 009 SM 3120 B-1999 Chromium ICP-AES
WW 109.430 010 SM 3120 B-1999 Cobalt ICP-AES
WW 109.430 011 SM 3120 B-1999 Copper ICP-AES
WW 109.430 012 SM 3120 B-1999 Iron ICP-AES

Page 11 of 14



INORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1120

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 109.430 013 SM 3120 B-1999 Lead ICP-AES
WW 109.430 015 SM 3120 B-1999 Manganese ICP-AES
WW 109.430 016 SM 3120 B-1999 Molybdenum ICP-AES
WW 109.430 017 SM 3120 B-1999 Nickel ICP-AES
WW 109.430 019 SM 3120 B-1999 Selenium ICP-AES
WW 109.430 021 SM 3120 B-1999 Silver ICP-AES
WW 109.430 023 SM 3120 B-1999 Thallium ICP-AES
WW 109.430 024 SM 3120 B-1999 Vanadium ICP-AES
WW 109.430 025 SM 3120 B-1999 Zinc ICP-AES
WW 109.441 001 SM 3500-Al B-2001 Aluminum Colorimetric
WW 109.442 001 SM 3500-As B-2001 Arsenic Colorimetric
WW 109.443 001 SM 3500-Cd B-2001 Cadmium Colorimetric
WW 109.445 001 SM 3500-Cr B-2009 Chromium Colorimetric
WW 109.445 002 SM 3500-Cr B-2009 Chromium VI Colorimetric
WW 109.446 001 SM 3500-Cr C-2009 Chromium VI IC
WW 109.447 001 SM 3500-Cu B-2009 Copper Colorimetric
WW 109.448 001 SM 3500-Cu C-2009 Copper Colorimetric
WW 109.449 001 SM 3500-Fe B- 1997 Iron Colorimetric
WW 109.451 001 SM 3500-Pb B-1997 Lead Colorimetric
WW 109.452 001 SM 3500-Mn B-1999 Manganese Colorimetric
WW 109.456 001 SM 3500-V B-1997 Vanadium Colorimetric
WW 109.457 001 SM 3500-Zn B-1997 Zinc Colorimetric
Hazardous Waste
HW 114.010 001 EPA 6010B Antimony
HW 114.010 002 EPA 6010B Arsenic
HW 114.010 003 EPA 6010B Barium
HW 114.010 004 EPA 6010B Beryllium
HW 114.010 005 EPA 6010B Cadmium
HW 114.010 006 EPA 6010B Chromium
HW 114.010 007 EPA 6010B Cobalt
HW 114.010 008 EPA 6010B Copper
HW 114.010 009 EPA 6010B Lead
HW 114.010 010 EPA 6010B Molybdenum
HW 114.010 011 EPA 6010B Nickel
HW 114.010 012 EPA 6010B Selenium
HW 114.010 013 EPA 6010B Silver
HW 114.010 014 EPA 6010B Thallium
HW 114.010 015 EPA 6010B Vanadium
HW 114.010 016 EPA 6010B Zinc
HW 114.030 001 EPA 7040 Antimony
HW 114.031 001 EPA 7041 Antimony
HW 114.040 001 EPA 7060A Arsenic

Page 12 of 14



INORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1120

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
HW 114.041 001 EPA 7061A Arsenic
HW 114.050 001 EPA 7062 Antimony
HW 114.051 001 EPA 7062 Arsenic
HW 114.060 001 EPA 7080A Barium
HW 114.061 001 EPA 7081 Barium
HW 114.070 001 EPA 7090 Beryllium
HW 114.071 001 EPA 7091 Beryllium
HW 114.080 001 EPA 7130 Cadmium
HW 114.081 001 EPA 7131A Cadmium
HW 114.090 001 EPA 7190 Chromium
HW 114.091 001 EPA 7191 Chromium
HW 114.102 001 EPA 7195 Chromium (VI)
HW 114.103 001 EPA 7196A Chromium (VI)
HW 114.104 001 EPA 7197 Chromium (VI)
HW 114.105 001 EPA 7198 Chromium (VI)
HW 114.106 001 EPA 7199 Chromium (VI)
HW 114.110 001 EPA 7200 Cobalt
HW 114.111 001 EPA 7201 Cobalt
HW 114.120 001 EPA 7210 Copper
HW 114.121 001 EPA 7211 Copper
HW 114.130 001 EPA 7420 Lead
HW 114.131 001 EPA 7421 Lead
HW 114.140 001 EPA 7470A Mercury
HW 114.141 001 EPA 7471A Mercury
HW 114.150 001 EPA 7480 Molybdenum
HW 114.151 001 EPA 7481 Molybdenum
HW 114.160 001 EPA 7520 Nickel
HW 114.161 001 EPA 7521 Nickel
HW 114.170 001 EPA 7740 Selenium
HW 114.171 001 EPA 7741A Selenium
HW 114.172 001 EPA 7742 Selenium
HW 114.180 001 EPA 7760A Silver
HW 114.181 001 EPA 7761 Silver
HW 114.190 001 EPA 7840 Thallium
HW 114.191 001 EPA 7841 Thallium
HW 114.200 001 EPA 7910 Vanadium
HW 114.201 001 EPA 7911 Vanadium
HW 114.210 001 EPA 7950 Zinc
HW 114.211 001 EPA 7951 Zinc
HW 114.221 001 EPA 9012A Cyanide, Total
HW 114.222 001 EPA 9014 Cyanide
HW 114.230 001 EPA 9034 Sulfides, Total

Page 13 of 14



INORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1120

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
HW 114.231 001 EPA 9215 Sulfide
HW 114.240 001 EPA 9040B Corrosivity - pH Determination
HW 114.241 001 EPA 9045C Corrosivity - pH Determination
HW 114.250 001 EPA 9056 Fluoride
HW 114.260 001 EPA 9213 Cyanide
HW 114.270 001 EPA 9214 Fluoride
HW 114.280 001 HML 939-M Organic Lead
HW 114.281 001 HML 938-M Organic Lead
HW 120.010 001 EPA 1010 Ignitability
HW 120.020 001 EPA 1020A Ignitability
HW 120.022 001 EPA 1030 Ignitability
HW 120.030 001 EPA 1110 Corrosivity
HW 120.040 001 Section 7.3 SW-846 Reactive Cyanide
HW 120.050 001 Section 7.3 SW-846 Reactive Sulfide
HW 120.070 001 EPA 9040B Corrosivity - pH Determination
HW 120.080 001 EPA 9045C Corrosivity - pH Determination

Page 14 of 14



ORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1130

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology

DW 104.010 000 EPA 502.2 Volatile Organic Compounds GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 001 EPA 502.2 Benzene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 007 EPA 502.2 n-Butylbenzene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 008 EPA 502.2 sec-Butylbenzene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 009 EPA 502.2 tert-Butylbenzene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 010 EPA 502.2 Carbon Tetrachloride GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 011 EPA 502.2 Chlorobenzene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 015 EPA 502.2 2-Chlorotoluene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 016 EPA 502.2 4-Chlorotoluene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 019 EPA 502.2 1,3-Dichlorobenzene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 020 EPA 502.2 1,2-Dichlorobenzene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 021 EPA 502.2 1,4-Dichlorobenzene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 022 EPA 502.2 Dichlorodifluoromethane GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 023 EPA 502.2 1,1-Dichloroethane GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 024 EPA 502.2 1,2-Dichloroethane GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 025 EPA 502.2 1,1-Dichloroethene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 026 EPA 502.2 cis-1,2-Dichloroethene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 027 EPA 502.2 trans-1,2-Dichloroethene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 028 EPA 502.2 Dichloromethane GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 029 EPA 502.2 1,2-Dichloropropane GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 033 EPA 502.2 cis-1,3-Dichloropropene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 034 EPA 502.2 trans-1,3-Dichloropropene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 035 EPA 502.2 Ethylbenzene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 037 EPA 502.2 Isopropylbenzene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 039 EPA 502.2 Naphthalene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 040 EPA 502.2 N-propylbenzene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 041 EPA 502.2 Styrene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 043 EPA 502.2 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 044 EPA 502.2 Tetrachloroethene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 045 EPA 502.2 Toluene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 047 EPA 502.2 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 048 EPA 502.2 1,1,1-Trichloroethane GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 049 EPA 502.2 1,1,2-Trichloroethane GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 050 EPA 502.2 Trichloroethene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 051 EPA 502.2 Trichlorofluoromethane GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 053 EPA 502.2 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 054 EPA 502.2 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 055 EPA 502.2 Vinyl Chloride GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.010 056 EPA 502.2 Xylenes, Total GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.015 000 EPA 502.2 Trihalomethanes, Total GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.015 001 EPA 502.2 Bromodichloromethane GC-ELCD/PID

Drinking Water

Page 1 of 8



ORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1130

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 104.015 002 EPA 502.2 Bromoform GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.015 003 EPA 502.2 Chloroform GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.015 004 EPA 502.2 Dibromochloromethane GC-ELCD/PID
DW 104.030 001 EPA 504.1 1,2-Dibromoethane GC-ECD
DW 104.030 002 EPA 504.1 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane GC-ECD
DW 104.030 003 EPA 504.1 1,2,3-Trichloropropane GC-ECD
DW 105.010 000 EPA 505 Organhalide Pesticides & PCB GC-ECD
DW 105.010 002 EPA 505 Alachlor GC-ECD
DW 105.010 003 EPA 505 Atrazine GC-ECD
DW 105.010 004 EPA 505 Chlordane GC-ECD
DW 105.010 006 EPA 505 Endrin GC-ECD
DW 105.010 007 EPA 505 Heptachlor GC-ECD
DW 105.010 008 EPA 505 Heptachlor Epoxide GC-ECD
DW 105.010 009 EPA 505 Hexachlorobenzene GC-ECD
DW 105.010 010 EPA 505 Hexachlorocyclopentadiene GC-ECD
DW 105.010 011 EPA 505 Lindane GC-ECD
DW 105.010 012 EPA 505 Methoxychlor GC-ECD
DW 105.010 013 EPA 505 Simazine GC-ECD
DW 105.010 014 EPA 505 Toxaphene GC-ECD
DW 105.010 015 EPA 505 PCBs as Aroclors (screen) GC-ECD
DW 105.020 000 EPA 506 Phthalate & Adipate Esters GC-ECD
DW 105.020 001 EPA 506 Di(2-ethylhexyl) Adipate GC-ECD
DW 105.020 002 EPA 506 Di(2-ethylhexyl) Phthalate GC-ECD
DW 105.030 000 EPA 507 Nitrogen & Phosphorous- Pesticides GC-NPD
DW 105.030 001 EPA 507 Alachlor GC-NPD
DW 105.030 002 EPA 507 Atrazine GC-NPD
DW 105.030 003 EPA 507 Butachlor GC-NPD
DW 105.030 005 EPA 507 Metolachlor GC-NPD
DW 105.030 006 EPA 507 Metribuzine GC-NPD
DW 105.030 007 EPA 507 Molinate GC-NPD
DW 105.030 008 EPA 507 Prometryn GC-NPD
DW 105.030 009 EPA 507 Simazine GC-NPD
DW 105.035 000 EPA 508 Chlorinated Pesticides & PCBs GC-ECD
DW 105.035 001 EPA 508 Aldrin GC-ECD
DW 105.035 002 EPA 508 Endosulfan I GC-ECD
DW 105.035 003 EPA 508 Endosulfan II GC-ECD
DW 105.035 004 EPA 508 Endosulfan Sulfate GC-ECD
DW 105.035 005 EPA 508 Endrin GC-ECD
DW 105.035 006 EPA 508 Endrin Aldehyde GC-ECD
DW 105.035 007 EPA 508 Heptachlor GC-ECD
DW 105.035 008 EPA 508 Heptachlor Epoxide GC-ECD
DW 105.035 009 EPA 508 Hexachlorobenzene GC-ECD

Page 2 of 8



ORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1130

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 105.035 010 EPA 508 Lindane (HCH-gamma) GC-ECD
DW 105.035 011 EPA 508 Methoxychlor GC-ECD
DW 105.035 012 EPA 508 Propachlor GC-ECD
DW 105.035 013 EPA 508 Chlordane GC-ECD
DW 105.035 014 EPA 508 Toxaphene GC-ECD
DW 105.035 015 EPA 508 PCBs as Aroclors (Screening) GC-ECD
DW 105.035 016 EPA 508 Arochlor 1016 GC-ECD
DW 105.035 017 EPA 508 Arochlor 1221 GC-ECD
DW 105.035 018 EPA 508 Arochlor 1232 GC-ECD
DW 105.035 019 EPA 508 Arochlor 1242 GC-ECD
DW 105.035 020 EPA 508 Arochlor 1248 GC-ECD
DW 105.035 021 EPA 508 Arochlor 1254 GC-ECD
DW 105.035 022 EPA 508 Arochlor 1260 GC-ECD
DW 105.050 000 EPA 508.1 Chlorinated Pesticides, Herbicides,& PCBs GC-ECD
DW 105.050 001 EPA 508.1 Alachlor GC-ECD
DW 105.050 003 EPA 508.1 Atrazine GC-ECD
DW 105.050 005 EPA 508.1 Chlordane (total) GC-ECD
DW 105.050 010 EPA 508.1 Endrin GC-ECD
DW 105.050 011 EPA 508.1 Heptachlor GC-ECD
DW 105.050 012 EPA 508.1 Heptachlor Epoxide GC-ECD
DW 105.050 013 EPA 508.1 Hexachlorobenzene GC-ECD
DW 105.050 014 EPA 508.1 Hexachlorocyclopentadiene GC-ECD
DW 105.050 015 EPA 508.1 Lindane GC-ECD
DW 105.050 016 EPA 508.1 Methoxychlor GC-ECD
DW 105.050 017 EPA 508.1 Metoachlor GC-ECD
DW 105.050 018 EPA 508.1 Metribuzin GC-ECD
DW 105.050 019 EPA 508.1 Propachlor GC-ECD
DW 105.050 020 EPA 508.1 Simazine GC-ECD
DW 105.050 021 EPA 508.1 Arochlor 1016 GC-ECD
DW 105.050 022 EPA 508.1 Arochlor 1221 GC-ECD
DW 105.050 023 EPA 508.1 Arochlor 1232 GC-ECD
DW 105.050 024 EPA 508.1 Arochlor 1242 GC-ECD
DW 105.050 025 EPA 508.1 Arochlor 1248 GC-ECD
DW 105.050 026 EPA 508.1 Arochlor 1254 GC-ECD
DW 105.050 027 EPA 508.1 Arochlor 1260 GC-ECD
DW 105.050 028 EPA 508.1 PCBs as Aroclors (Screening) GC-ECD
DW 105.050 029 EPA 508.1 Toxaphene GC-ECD
DW 105.060 001 EPA 508A PCBs as Decachlorobiphenyl GC-ECD
DW 105.070 000 EPA 515.1 Chlorinated Acids GC-ECD
DW 105.070 001 EPA 515.1 Bentazon GC-ECD
DW 105.070 002 EPA 515.1 2,4-D GC-ECD
DW 105.070 003 EPA 515.1 Dalapon GC-ECD

Page 3 of 8



ORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1130

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 105.070 004 EPA 515.1 Dicamba GC-ECD
DW 105.070 005 EPA 515.1 Dinoseb GC-ECD
DW 105.070 006 EPA 515.1 Pentachlorophenol GC-ECD
DW 105.070 007 EPA 515.1 Picloram GC-ECD
DW 105.070 008 EPA 515.1 2,4,5-TP GC-ECD
DW 105.080 000 EPA 515.2 Chlorinated Acids GC-ECD
DW 105.080 001 EPA 515.2 2,4-D GC-ECD
DW 105.080 002 EPA 515.2 Dicamba GC-ECD
DW 105.080 003 EPA 515.2 Dinoseb GC-ECD
DW 105.080 004 EPA 515.2 Pentachlorophenol GC-ECD
DW 105.080 005 EPA 515.2 Picloram GC-ECD
DW 105.080 006 EPA 515.2 2,4,5-TP GC-ECD
DW 105.080 007 EPA 515.2 Bentazon GC-ECD
DW 105.082 000 EPA 515.3 Chlorinated Acids GC-ECD
DW 105.082 001 EPA 515.3 2,4-D GC-ECD
DW 105.082 002 EPA 515.3 Dinoseb GC-ECD
DW 105.082 003 EPA 515.3 Pentachlorophenol GC-ECD
DW 105.082 004 EPA 515.3 Picloram GC-ECD
DW 105.082 005 EPA 515.3 2,4,5-TP GC-ECD
DW 105.082 006 EPA 515.3 Bentazon GC-ECD
DW 105.082 007 EPA 515.3 Dalapon GC-ECD
DW 105.082 008 EPA 515.3 Dicamba GC-ECD
DW 105.083 000 EPA 515.4 Chlorinated Acids GC-ECD
DW 105.083 001 EPA 515.4 2,4-D GC-ECD
DW 105.083 002 EPA 515.4 Dinoseb GC-ECD
DW 105.083 003 EPA 515.4 Pentachlorophenol GC-ECD
DW 105.083 004 EPA 515.4 Picloram GC-ECD
DW 105.083 005 EPA 515.4 2,4,5-TP GC-ECD
DW 105.083 006 EPA 515.4 Dalapon GC-ECD
DW 105.083 007 EPA 515.4 Bentazon GC-ECD
DW 105.083 008 EPA 515.4 Dicamba GC-ECD
DW 105.100 000 EPA 531.1 Carbamates HPLC
DW 105.100 001 EPA 531.1 Aldicarb HPLC
DW 105.100 002 EPA 531.1 Aldicarb Sulfone HPLC
DW 105.100 003 EPA 531.1 Aldicarb Sulfoxide HPLC
DW 105.100 004 EPA 531.1 Carbaryl HPLC
DW 105.100 005 EPA 531.1 Carbofuran HPLC
DW 105.100 006 EPA 531.1 3-Hydroxycarbofuran HPLC
DW 105.100 007 EPA 531.1 Methomyl HPLC
DW 105.100 008 EPA 531.1 Oxamyl HPLC
DW 105.101 000 EPA 531.2 Carbamates HPLC
DW 105.101 001 EPA 531.2 Carbofuran HPLC

Page 4 of 8



ORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1130

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 105.101 002 EPA 531.2 Oxamyl HPLC
DW 105.101 003 EPA 531.2 Aldicarb HPLC
DW 105.101 004 EPA 531.2 Aldicarb Sulfone HPLC
DW 105.101 005 EPA 531.2 Aldicarb Sulfoxide HPLC
DW 105.101 006 EPA 531.2 Carbaryl HPLC
DW 105.101 007 EPA 531.2 3-Hydroxycarbofuran HPLC
DW 105.101 008 EPA 531.2 Methomyl HPLC
DW 105.110 000 SM6610 Carbamates HPLC
DW 105.110 005 SM6610 Carbofuran HPLC
DW 105.110 008 SM6610 Oxamyl HPLC
DW 105.120 001 EPA 547 Glyphosate HPLC
DW 105.130 001 SM6651 Glyphosate HPLC
DW 105.150 001 EPA 549.2 Diquat HPLC
DW 105.160 000 EPA 550 Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons HPLC
DW 105.160 001 EPA 550 Benzo(a)pyrene HPLC
DW 105.161 000 EPA 550.1 Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons HPLC
DW 105.161 001 EPA 550.1 Benzo(a)pyrene HPLC
DW 105.170 004 EPA 551.1 Carbon Tetrachloride GC-ECD
DW 105.170 010 EPA 551.1 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane GC-ECD
DW 105.170 011 EPA 551.1 1,2-Dibromoethane GC-ECD
DW 105.170 014 EPA 551.1 Tetrachloroethene GC-ECD
DW 105.170 016 EPA 551.1 1,1,1-Trichloroethane GC-ECD
DW 105.170 017 EPA 551.1 Trichloroethene GC-ECD
DW 105.170 020 EPA 551.1 1,1,2-Trichloroethane GC-ECD
DW 105.170 021 EPA 551.1 Alachlor GC-ECD
DW 105.170 022 EPA 551.1 Atrazine GC-ECD
DW 105.170 023 EPA 551.1 Endrin GC-ECD
DW 105.170 024 EPA 551.1 Heptachlor GC-ECD
DW 105.170 025 EPA 551.1 Heptachlor Epoxide GC-ECD
DW 105.170 026 EPA 551.1 Hexachlorobenzene GC-ECD
DW 105.170 027 EPA 551.1 Hexachlorocyclopentadiene GC-ECD
DW 105.170 028 EPA 551.1 Lindane GC-ECD
DW 105.170 029 EPA 551.1 Methoxychlor GC-ECD
DW 105.170 030 EPA 551.1 Simazine GC-ECD
DW 105.170 031 EPA 551.1 Disinfection Byproducts GC-ECD
DW 105.170 032 EPA 551.1 Chlorinated Solvents GC-ECD
DW 105.170 033 EPA 551.1 Halogenated Pesticides GC-ECD
DW 105.170 034 EPA 551.1 Halogenated Herbicides GC-ECD
DW 105.175 001 EPA 551.1 Bromodichloromethane GC-ECD
DW 105.175 002 EPA 551.1 Bromoform GC-ECD
DW 105.175 003 EPA 551.1 Chloroform GC-ECD
DW 105.175 004 EPA 551.1 Dibromochloromethane GC-ECD

Page 5 of 8



ORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1130

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 105.175 005 EPA 551.1 Trihalomethanes GC-ECD
DW 105.180 001 EPA 552.1 Bromoacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.180 003 EPA 552.1 Chloroacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.180 004 EPA 552.1 Dalapon GC-ECD
DW 105.180 005 EPA 552.1 Dibromoacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.180 006 EPA 552.1 Dichloroacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.180 007 EPA 552.1 Trichloroacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.180 008 EPA 552.1 Haloacetic Acids (HAA5) GC-ECD
DW 105.190 001 SM6251B Bromoacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.190 003 SM6251B Chloroacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.190 005 SM6251B Dibromoacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.190 006 SM6251B Dichloroacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.190 007 SM6251B Trichloroacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.190 008 SM6251B Haloacetic Acids (HAA5) GC-ECD
DW 105.190 010 SM6251B Chlorinated Herbicides GC-ECD
DW 105.191 001 SM6251B Haloacetic Acids (HAA5) GC-ECD
DW 105.200 001 EPA 552.2 Bromoacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.200 003 EPA 552.2 Chloroacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.200 004 EPA 552.2 Dalapon GC-ECD
DW 105.200 005 EPA 552.2 Dibromoacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.200 006 EPA 552.2 Dichloroacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.200 007 EPA 552.2 Trichloroacetic Acid GC-ECD
DW 105.200 008 EPA 552.2 Haloacetic Acids (HAA5) GC-ECD
DW 105.201 001 EPA 552.3 Haloacetic Acids (HAA5) GC-ECD
DW 105.201 002 EPA 552.3 Dalapon GC-ECD
DW 105.210 002 EPA 555 2,4-D HPLC
DW 105.210 004 EPA 555 Dinoseb HPLC
DW 105.210 005 EPA 555 Pentachlorophenol HPLC
DW 105.210 006 EPA 555 Picloram HPLC
DW 105.210 007 EPA 555 2,4,5-TP HPLC
DW 105.210 008 EPA 555 Bentazon HPLC

WW 110.010 000 EPA 601 Purgeable Halocarbons GC-ELCD 
WW 110.020 000 EPA 602 Purgeable Aromatics GC-PID
WW 110.030 000 EPA 603 Acrolein, Acrylonitrile GC-FID
WW 110.052 000 SM 6200C-1997 Volatile Organic Compounds GC-ELCD 
WW 111.010 000 EPA 604 Phenols GC-ECD/FID
WW 111.020 000 EPA 605 Benzidines HPLC
WW 111.030 000 EPA 606 Phthalate Esters GC-ECD
WW 111.040 000 EPA 607 Nitrosamines GC-NPD
WW 111.050 000 EPA 609 Nitroaromatics & Cyclic ketones GC-FID/ECD
WW 111.060 000 EPA 610 Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons HPLC or GC

Wastewater

Page 6 of 8



ORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1130

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 111.070 000 EPA 611 Haloethers GC-ELCD
WW 111.080 000 EPA 612 Chlorinated Hydrocarbons GC-ECD
WW 111.090 001 EPA 613 2,3,7,8-tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin (TCDD) GC-MS
WW 111.091 000 EPA 614 Organophosphorous Pesticides GC-FPD
WW 111.092 000 EPA 614.1 Organophosphorous Pesticides GC-NPD
WW 111.093 000 EPA 615 Chlorinated Herbicides GC-ECD
WW 111.123 001 EPA 1650 Adsorbable Organic Halides Adsorption and Coulometric Titration
WW 111.124 001 EPA 1653 Chlorinated Phenolics GC
WW 111.125 000 EPA 1656 Organo Halide Pesticides GC-ECD/ELCD
WW 111.126 000 EPA 1657 Organophosphorous Pesticides GC-FPD
WW 111.140 000 SM 6420 B-2000 Phenols GC-ECD/FID
WW 111.150 000 SM 6440 B-2000 Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons HPLC or GC
WW 111.170 000 EPA 608 Organochlorine Pesticides & PCBs GC-ECD
WW 111.180 000 EPA 617 Organochlorine Pesticides & PCBs GC-ECD
WW 111.190 000 EPA 619 Organophosphorous Pesticides GC
WW 111.210 000 EPA 632 Carbamate & Urea Pesticides HPLC
WW 111.230 000 SM 6630 B -2000 Organochlorine Pesticides & PCBs GC-ECD
WW 111.240 000 SM 6630 C -2000 Organochlorine Pesticides & PCBs GC-ECD
Hazardous Waste
HW 116.020 031 EPA 8015B Ethanol and Methanol
HW 116.030 001 EPA 8015B Gasoline-range Organics
HW 116.040 041 EPA 8021B Methyl tert-butyl Ether (MTBE)
HW 116.040 060 EPA 8021B Halogenated Volatiles
HW 116.040 061 EPA 8021B Aromatic Volatiles
HW 116.040 062 EPA 8021B BTEX
HW 116.050 001 EPA 8031 Acrylonitrile
HW 116.060 001 EPA 8032A Acrylamide
HW 116.090 000 EPA 8316 Acrylamide, Acrylonitrile, Acrolein
HW 117.010 001 EPA 8015B Diesel-range Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons
HW 117.017 001 EPA 418.1 TRPH Screening
HW 117.020 000 EPA 8041 Phenols
HW 117.030 000 EPA 8061A Phthalate Esters
HW 117.040 000 EPA 8070A Nitrosoamines
HW 117.050 000 EPA 8091 Nitroaromatics and Cyclic Ketones
HW 117.060 000 EPA 8100 Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons
HW 117.070 000 EPA 8111 Haloethers
HW 117.080 000 EPA 8120A Chlorinated Hydrocarbons
HW 117.090 000 EPA 8121 Chlorinated Hydrocarbons
HW 117.140 000 EPA 8310 Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons
HW 117.150 000 EPA 8315A Carbonyl Compounds
HW 117.170 000 EPA 8330 Nitroaromatics and Nitramines
HW 117.171 000 EPA 8330A Nitroaromatics and Nitramines

Page 7 of 8



ORGANIC (NON MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1130

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
HW 117.180 001 EPA 8331 Tetrazene
HW 117.200 000 EPA 8410 Semi-volatile Organics
HW 117.210 000 EPA 8081A Organochlorine Pesticides
HW 117.220 000 EPA 8082 PCBs
HW 117.240 000 EPA 8141A Organophosphorus Pesticides
HW 117.250 000 EPA 8151A Chlorinated Herbicides
HW 117.270 000 EPA 8318 Carbamates, N-methylcarbamates

Page 8 of 8



INORGANIC (MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1140

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology

DW 102.047 001 EPA 331.0 Perchlorate LC-MS
DW 102.048 001 EPA 332.0 Perchlorate IC-MS
DW 102.090 001 EPA 557.0 Bromate IC-ESI-MS/MS
DW 103.140 001 EPA 200.8 Aluminum ICP-MS
DW 103.140 002 EPA 200.8 Antimony ICP-MS
DW 103.140 003 EPA 200.8 Arsenic ICP-MS
DW 103.140 004 EPA 200.8 Barium ICP-MS
DW 103.140 005 EPA 200.8 Beryllium ICP-MS
DW 103.140 006 EPA 200.8 Cadmium ICP-MS
DW 103.140 007 EPA 200.8 Chromium ICP-MS
DW 103.140 008 EPA 200.8 Copper ICP-MS
DW 103.140 009 EPA 200.8 Lead ICP-MS
DW 103.140 010 EPA 200.8 Manganese ICP-MS
DW 103.140 011 EPA 200.8 Mercury ICP-MS
DW 103.140 012 EPA 200.8 Nickel ICP-MS
DW 103.140 013 EPA 200.8 Selenium ICP-MS
DW 103.140 014 EPA 200.8 Silver ICP-MS
DW 103.140 015 EPA 200.8 Thallium ICP-MS
DW 103.140 016 EPA 200.8 Zinc ICP-MS
DW 103.140 017 EPA 200.8 Boron ICP-MS
DW 103.140 018 EPA 200.8 Vanadium ICP-MS

WW 108.113 001 EPA 200.8, Rev. 5.4 (1994) Boron ICP-MS
WW 108.113 002 EPA 200.8, Rev. 5.4 (1994) Calcium ICP-MS
WW 108.113 003 EPA 200.8, Rev. 5.4 (1994) Magnesium ICP-MS
WW 108.113 004 EPA 200.8, Rev. 5.4 (1994) Potassium ICP-MS
WW 108.113 005 EPA 200.8, Rev. 5.4 (1994) Silica, Dissolved ICP-MS
WW 108.113 006 EPA 200.8, Rev. 5.4 (1994) Sodium ICP-MS
WW 108.438 001 SM 3125 B-2009 Boron ICP-MS
WW 108.438 002 SM 3125 B-2009 Calcium ICP-MS
WW 108.438 003 SM 3125 B-2009 Magnesium ICP-MS
WW 108.438 004 SM 3125 B-2009 Potassium ICP-MS
WW 108.438 005 SM 3125 B-2009 Silica, Dissolved ICP-MS
WW 108.438 006 SM 3125 B-2009 Sodium ICP-MS
WW 108.438 007 SM 3125 B-2009 Hardness (calculation) ICP-MS
WW 109.020 001 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Aluminum ICP-MS
WW 109.020 002 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Antimony ICP-MS
WW 109.020 003 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Arsenic ICP-MS

Drinking Water

Wastewater

Page 1 of 3



INORGANIC (MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1140

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 109.020 004 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Barium ICP-MS
WW 109.020 005 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Beryllium ICP-MS
WW 109.020 006 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Cadmium ICP-MS
WW 109.020 007 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Chromium ICP-MS
WW 109.020 008 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Cobalt ICP-MS
WW 109.020 009 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Copper ICP-MS
WW 109.020 010 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Lead ICP-MS
WW 109.020 011 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Manganese ICP-MS
WW 109.020 012 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Molybdenum ICP-MS
WW 109.020 013 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Nickel ICP-MS
WW 109.020 014 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Selenium ICP-MS
WW 109.020 015 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Silver ICP-MS
WW 109.020 016 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Thallium ICP-MS
WW 109.020 017 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Vanadium ICP-MS
WW 109.020 018 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Zinc ICP-MS
WW 109.020 020 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Gold ICP-MS
WW 109.020 021 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Iron ICP-MS
WW 109.020 022 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Tin ICP-MS
WW 109.020 023 EPA 200.8 Rev. 5.4 (1994) Titanium ICP-MS
WW 109.431 002 SM 3125 B-2009 Antimony ICP-MS
WW 109.431 003 SM 3125 B-2009 Arsenic ICP-MS
WW 109.431 004 SM 3125 B-2009 Barium ICP-MS
WW 109.431 005 SM 3125 B-2009 Beryllium ICP-MS
WW 109.431 006 SM 3125 B-2009 Cadmium ICP-MS
WW 109.431 008 SM 3125 B-2009 Chromium ICP-MS
WW 109.431 009 SM 3125 B-2009 Cobalt ICP-MS
WW 109.431 010 SM 3125 B-2009 Copper ICP-MS
WW 109.431 011 SM 3125 B-2009 Gold ICP-MS
WW 109.431 012 SM 3125 B-2009 Iridium ICP-MS
WW 109.431 013 SM 3125 B-2009 Iron ICP-MS
WW 109.431 014 SM 3125 B-2009 Lead ICP-MS
WW 109.431 016 SM 3125 B-2009 Manganese ICP-MS
WW 109.431 017 SM 3125 B-2009 Molybdenum ICP-MS
WW 109.431 018 SM 3125 B-2009 Nickel ICP-MS
WW 109.431 019 SM 3125 B-2009 Palladium ICP-MS
WW 109.431 020 SM 3125 B-2009 Platinum ICP-MS
WW 109.431 022 SM 3125 B-2009 Rhodium ICP-MS
WW 109.431 023 SM 3125 B-2009 Ruthenium ICP-MS
WW 109.431 024 SM 3125 B-2009 Selenium ICP-MS

Page 2 of 3



INORGANIC (MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1140

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 109.431 026 SM 3125 B-2009 Silver ICP-MS
WW 109.431 028 SM 3125 B-2009 Thallium ICP-MS
WW 109.431 029 SM 3125 B-2009 Tin ICP-MS
WW 109.431 030 SM 3125 B-2009 Titanium ICP-MS
WW 109.431 031 SM 3125 B-2009 Vanadium ICP-MS
WW 109.431 032 SM 3125 B-2009 Zinc ICP-MS
Hazardous Waste
HW 114.020 001 EPA 6020 Antimony
HW 114.020 002 EPA 6020 Arsenic
HW 114.020 003 EPA 6020 Barium
HW 114.020 004 EPA 6020 Beryllium
HW 114.020 005 EPA 6020 Cadmium
HW 114.020 006 EPA 6020 Chromium
HW 114.020 007 EPA 6020 Cobalt
HW 114.020 008 EPA 6020 Copper
HW 114.020 009 EPA 6020 Lead
HW 114.020 010 EPA 6020 Molybdenum
HW 114.020 011 EPA 6020 Nickel
HW 114.020 012 EPA 6020 Selenium
HW 114.020 013 EPA 6020 Silver
HW 114.020 014 EPA 6020 Thallium
HW 114.020 015 EPA 6020 Vanadium
HW 114.020 016 EPA 6020 Zinc
HW 114.025 001 EPA 6020A Mercury

Page 3 of 3



ORGANIC (MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1150

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology

DW 104.035 001 SRL 524M-TCP 1,2,3-Trichloropropane GC-MS
DW 104.036 001 SRL 525M-TCP 1,2,3-Trichloropropane GC-MS
DW 104.040 000 EPA 524.2 Volatile Organic Compounds GC-MS
DW 104.040 001 EPA 524.2 Benzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 007 EPA 524.2 n-Butylbenzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 008 EPA 524.2 sec-Butylbenzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 009 EPA 524.2 tert-Butylbenzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 010 EPA 524.2 Carbon Tetrachloride GC-MS
DW 104.040 011 EPA 524.2 Chlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 015 EPA 524.2 2-Chlorotoluene GC-MS
DW 104.040 016 EPA 524.2 4-Chlorotoluene GC-MS
DW 104.040 019 EPA 524.2 1,3-Dichlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 020 EPA 524.2 1,2-Dichlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 021 EPA 524.2 1,4-Dichlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 022 EPA 524.2 Dichlorodifluoromethane GC-MS
DW 104.040 023 EPA 524.2 1,1-Dichloroethane GC-MS
DW 104.040 024 EPA 524.2 1,2-Dichloroethane GC-MS
DW 104.040 025 EPA 524.2 1,1-Dichloroethene GC-MS
DW 104.040 026 EPA 524.2 cis-1,2-Dichloroethene GC-MS
DW 104.040 027 EPA 524.2 trans-1,2-Dichloroethene GC-MS
DW 104.040 028 EPA 524.2 Dichloromethane GC-MS
DW 104.040 029 EPA 524.2 1,2-Dichloropropane GC-MS
DW 104.040 033 EPA 524.2 cis-1,3-Dichloropropene GC-MS
DW 104.040 034 EPA 524.2 trans-1,3-Dichloropropene GC-MS
DW 104.040 035 EPA 524.2 Ethylbenzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 037 EPA 524.2 Isopropylbenzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 039 EPA 524.2 Naphthalene GC-MS
DW 104.040 041 EPA 524.2 N-propylbenzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 042 EPA 524.2 Styrene GC-MS
DW 104.040 043 EPA 524.2 1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane GC-MS
DW 104.040 044 EPA 524.2 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane GC-MS
DW 104.040 045 EPA 524.2 Tetrachloroethene GC-MS
DW 104.040 046 EPA 524.2 Toluene GC-MS
DW 104.040 047 EPA 524.2 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 048 EPA 524.2 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 049 EPA 524.2 1,1,1-Trichloroethane GC-MS
DW 104.040 050 EPA 524.2 1,1,2-Trichloroethane GC-MS
DW 104.040 051 EPA 524.2 Trichloroethene GC-MS

Drinking Water

Page 1 of 6



ORGANIC (MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1150

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 104.040 052 EPA 524.2 Trichlorofluoromethane GC-MS
DW 104.040 054 EPA 524.2 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 055 EPA 524.2 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene GC-MS
DW 104.040 056 EPA 524.2 Vinyl Chloride GC-MS
DW 104.040 057 EPA 524.2 Xylenes, Total GC-MS
DW 104.040 061 EPA 524.2 Carbon Disulfide GC-MS
DW 104.040 062 EPA 524.2 Methyl Isobutyl Ketone GC-MS
DW 104.045 000 EPA 524.2 Trihalomethanes, Total GC-MS
DW 104.045 001 EPA 524.2 Bromodichloromethane GC-MS
DW 104.045 002 EPA 524.2 Bromoform GC-MS
DW 104.045 003 EPA 524.2 Chloroform GC-MS
DW 104.045 004 EPA 524.2 Dibromochloromethane GC-MS
DW 104.050 000 EPA 524.2 Gasoline Additives GC-MS
DW 104.050 002 EPA 524.2 Methyl tert-butyl Ether (MTBE) GC-MS
DW 104.050 003 EPA 524.2 tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME) GC-MS
DW 104.050 004 EPA 524.2 Ethyl tert-butyl Ether (ETBE) GC-MS
DW 104.050 005 EPA 524.2 Trichlorotrifluoroethane GC-MS
DW 104.050 006 EPA 524.2 tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA) GC-MS
DW 104.055 000 EPA 524.3 Volatile Organic compounds GC-MS
DW 104.055 001 EPA 524.3 Benzene GC-MS
DW 104.055 002 EPA 524.3 Carbon Tetrachloride GC-MS
DW 104.055 003 EPA 524.3 Chlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 104.055 004 EPA 524.3 1,2-Dichlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 104.055 005 EPA 524.3 1,4-Dichlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 104.055 006 EPA 524.3 1,2-Dichloroethane GC-MS
DW 104.055 007 EPA 524.3 cis-1,2-Dichloroethene GC-MS
DW 104.055 008 EPA 524.3 trans-1,2-Dichloroethene GC-MS
DW 104.055 009 EPA 524.3 Dichloromethane GC-MS
DW 104.055 010 EPA 524.3 1,2-Dichloropropane GC-MS
DW 104.055 011 EPA 524.3 Ethylbenzene GC-MS
DW 104.055 012 EPA 524.3 Styrene GC-MS
DW 104.055 013 EPA 524.3 Tetrachloroethene GC-MS
DW 104.055 014 EPA 524.3 1,1,1-Trichloroethane GC-MS
DW 104.055 015 EPA 524.3 Trichloroethene GC-MS
DW 104.055 016 EPA 524.3 Toluene GC-MS
DW 104.055 017 EPA 524.3 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 104.055 018 EPA 524.3 1,1-Dichloroethene GC-MS
DW 104.055 019 EPA 524.3 1,1,2-Trichloroethane GC-MS
DW 104.055 020 EPA 524.3 Vinyl Chloride GC-MS

Page 2 of 6



ORGANIC (MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1150

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 104.055 021 EPA 524.3 Xylenes, Total GC-MS
DW 104.055 022 EPA 524.3 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane GC-MS
DW 104.055 023 EPA 524.3 1,2-Dibromoethane GC-MS
DW 104.056 000 EPA 524.3 Trihalomethanes, Total GC-MS
DW 104.056 001 EPA 524.3 Bromodichloromethane GC-MS
DW 104.056 002 EPA 524.3 Bromoform GC-MS
DW 104.056 003 EPA 524.3 Chloroform GC-MS
DW 104.056 004 EPA 524.3 Dibromochloromethane GC-MS
DW 104.057 000 EPA 524.3 Gasoline Additives GC-MS
DW 104.057 001 EPA 524.3 Diisoprpyl ether (DIPE) GC-MS
DW 104.057 002 EPA 524.3 Methyl tert-butyl Ether (MTBE) GC-MS
DW 104.057 003 EPA 524.3 tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME) GC-MS
DW 104.057 004 EPA 524.3 Ethyl tert-butyl Ether (ETBE) GC-MS
DW 104.057 005 EPA 524.3 Trichlorotrifluoroethane GC-MS
DW 104.057 006 EPA 524.3 tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA) GC-MS
DW 104.057 007 EPA 524.3 Trichlorotrifluoroethane GC-MS
DW 104.058 000 EPA 524.4 Volatile Organic compounds GC-MS
DW 104.058 001 EPA 524.4 Benzene GC-MS
DW 104.058 002 EPA 524.4 Carbon Tetrachloride GC-MS
DW 104.058 003 EPA 524.4 Chlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 104.058 004 EPA 524.4 1,2-Dichlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 104.058 005 EPA 524.4 1,4-Dichlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 104.058 006 EPA 524.4 1,2-Dichloroethane GC-MS
DW 104.058 007 EPA 524.4 cis-1,2-Dichloroethene GC-MS
DW 104.058 008 EPA 524.4 trans-1,2-Dichloroethene GC-MS
DW 104.058 009 EPA 524.4 Dichloromethane GC-MS
DW 104.058 010 EPA 524.4 1,2-Dichloropropane GC-MS
DW 104.058 011 EPA 524.4 Ethylbenzene GC-MS
DW 104.058 012 EPA 524.4 Styrene GC-MS
DW 104.058 013 EPA 524.4 Tetrachloroethene GC-MS
DW 104.058 014 EPA 524.4 1,1,1-Trichloroethane GC-MS
DW 104.058 015 EPA 524.4 Trichloroethene GC-MS
DW 104.058 016 EPA 524.4 Toluene GC-MS
DW 104.058 017 EPA 524.4 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 104.058 018 EPA 524.4 1,1-Dichloroethene GC-MS
DW 104.058 019 EPA 524.4 1,1,2-Trichloroethane GC-MS
DW 104.058 020 EPA 524.4 Vinyl Chloride GC-MS
DW 104.058 021 EPA 524.4 Xylenes, Total GC-MS
DW 104.058 022 EPA 524.4 1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane GC-MS

Page 3 of 6



ORGANIC (MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1150

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 104.058 023 EPA 524.4 1,2-Dibromoethane GC-MS
DW 104.059 000 EPA 524.4 Trihalomethanes, Total GC-MS
DW 104.059 001 EPA 524.4 Bromodichloromethane GC-MS
DW 104.059 002 EPA 524.4 Bromoform GC-MS
DW 104.059 003 EPA 524.4 Chloroform GC-MS
DW 104.059 004 EPA 524.4 Dibromochloromethane GC-MS
DW 104.061 000 EPA 524.4 Gasoline Additives GC-MS
DW 104.061 001 EPA 524.4 Diisoprpyl ether (DIPE) GC-MS
DW 104.061 003 EPA 524.4 tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME) GC-MS
DW 104.061 004 EPA 524.4 Ethyl tert-butyl Ether (ETBE) GC-MS
DW 104.061 005 EPA 524.4 Trichlorotrifluoroethane GC-MS
DW 104.061 006 EPA 524.4 tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA) GC-MS
DW 104.061 007 EPA 524.4 Trichlorotrifluoroethane GC-MS
DW 105.090 000 EPA 525.2 Organic Compounds GC-MS
DW 105.090 001 EPA 525.2 Alachlor GC-MS
DW 105.090 002 EPA 525.2 Aldrin GC-MS
DW 105.090 003 EPA 525.2 Atrazine GC-MS
DW 105.090 004 EPA 525.2 Benzo(a)pyrene GC-MS
DW 105.090 005 EPA 525.2 Butachlor GC-MS
DW 105.090 006 EPA 525.2 Chlordane GC-MS
DW 105.090 007 EPA 525.2 Dieldrin GC-MS
DW 105.090 008 EPA 525.2 Di(2-ethylhexyl) Adipate GC-MS
DW 105.090 009 EPA 525.2 Di(2-ethylhexyl) Phthalate GC-MS
DW 105.090 013 EPA 525.2 Endrin GC-MS
DW 105.090 014 EPA 525.2 Heptachlor GC-MS
DW 105.090 015 EPA 525.2 Heptachlor Epoxide GC-MS
DW 105.090 016 EPA 525.2 Hexachlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 105.090 017 EPA 525.2 Hexachlorocyclopentadiene GC-MS
DW 105.090 018 EPA 525.2 Lindane GC-MS
DW 105.090 019 EPA 525.2 Methoxychlor GC-MS
DW 105.090 022 EPA 525.2 Molinate GC-MS
DW 105.090 023 EPA 525.2 Pentachlorophenol GC-MS
DW 105.090 025 EPA 525.2 Simazine GC-MS
DW 105.090 026 EPA 525.2 Toxaphene GC-MS
DW 105.090 027 EPA 525.2 PCBs as Aroclors GC-MS
DW 105.091 000 EPA 525.3 Organic Compounds GC-MS
DW 105.091 001 EPA 525.3 Alachlor GC-MS
DW 105.0910 002 EPA 525.3 Aldrin GC-MS
DW 105.091 003 EPA 525.3 Atrazine GC-MS

Page 4 of 6



ORGANIC (MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1150

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 105.091 004 EPA 525.3 Bromacil GC-MS
DW 105.091 005 EPA 525.3 Butachlor GC-MS
DW 105.091 006 EPA 525.3 Chlordane GC-MS
DW 105.091 007 EPA 525.3 Diazinon GC-MS
DW 105.091 008 EPA 525.3 Di(2-ethylhexyl) Adipate GC-MS
DW 105.091 009 EPA 525.3 Dieldrin GC-MS
DW 105.091 010 EPA 525.3 Endrin GC-MS
DW 105.091 011 EPA 525.3 Heptachlor GC-MS
DW 105.091 012 EPA 525.3 Heptachlor Epoxide GC-MS
DW 105.091 013 EPA 525.3 Hexachlorobenzene GC-MS
DW 105.091 014 EPA 525.3 Hexachlorocyclopentadiene GC-MS
DW 105.091 015 EPA 525.3 Lindane (gamma-BHC) GC-MS
DW 105.091 016 EPA 525.3 Methoxychlor GC-MS
DW 105.091 017 EPA 525.3 Metolachlor GC-MS
DW 105.091 018 EPA 525.3 Metribuzin GC-MS
DW 105.091 019 EPA 525.3 Molinate (Ordram) GC-MS
DW 105.091 020 EPA 525.3 Pentachlorophenol GC-MS
DW 105.091 021 EPA 525.3 Propachlor GC-MS
DW 105.091 022 EPA 525.3 Simazine GC-MS
DW 105.091 023 EPA 525.3 Thiobencarb GC-MS
DW 105.091 024 EPA 525.3 Toxaphene GC-MS
DW 105.091 025 EPA 525.3 PCBs as Aroclors GC-MS
DW 105.091 EPA 525.3 Benzo(a)pyrene GC-MS
DW 105.140 001 EPA 548.1 Endothall GC-MS
DW 105.215 001 EPA 557 Haloacetic Acids IC-MS-MS
DW 105.215 002 EPA 557 Dalapon IC-MS-MS
DW 105.230 000 EPA 1613 Dioxins HRGC-HRMS

DW 105.230 001 EPA 1613
2,3,7,8-Tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin 
(TCDD) HRGC-HRMS

DW 105.230 002 EPA 1613
2,3,7,8-Tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin 
(TCDD) Screening Only HRGC-HRMS

WW 110.031 000 EPA 611 Haloethers GC-MS
WW 110.040 000 EPA 624 Purgeable Organic Compounds GC-MS
WW 110.050 000 EPA 1624B Volatile Organic Compounds GC-MS
WW 110.051 000 SM 6200B-1997 Volatile Organic Compounds GC-MS
WW 111.100 000 EPA 625 Base/Neutral & Acid Organics GC-MS
WW 111.101 000 EPA 625 Organochlorine Pesticides & PCBs GC-MS

Wastewater

Page 5 of 6



ORGANIC (MS)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1150

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology

WW 111.102 001 EPA 625
2,3,7,8-tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin 
(TCDD) Screening Only GC-MS

WW 111.103 000 EPA 625 Nitrosamines GC-MS
WW 111.111 000 EPA 1613B Dioxins & Furans GC-MS

WW 111.120 000 EPA 1625B
Semivolatile Organics by Isotope 
dilution GC-MS

WW 111.130 000 SM 6410 B-2000 Base/Neutral & Acid Organics GC-MS
WW 111.131 000 SM 6410 B-2000 Organochlorine Pesticides & PCBs GC-MS
Hazardous Waste
HW 116.010 000 EPA 8011 EDB and DBCP
HW 116.080 000 EPA 8260B Volatile Organic Compounds
HW 116.080 120 EPA 8260B Oxygenates

HW 116.100 001 LUFT GC/MS
Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons - 
Gasoline

HW 116.100 010 LUFT GC/MS BTEX and MTBE

HW 116.110 001 LUFT
Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons - 
Gasoline

HW 117.015 001 LUFT GC/MS
Diesel-range Total Petroleum 
Hydrocarbons

HW 117.016 001 LUFT
Diesel-range Total Petroleum 
Hydrocarbons

HW 117.110 000 EPA 8270C Extractable Organics
HW 117.111 070 EPA 8270C PCBs
HW 117.111 071 EPA 8270C Pesticides
HW 117.120 000 EPA 8280A Dioxins and Dibenzofurans
HW 117.130 000 EPA 8290 Dioxins and Dibenzofurans
HW 117.280 000 EPA 8321A Carbamates

Page 6 of 6



RADIOCHEMISTRY
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1160

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology

DW 106.010 001 EPA 900.0 Gross Alpha
DW 106.010 002 EPA 900.0 Gross Beta
DW 106.020 001 EPA 901.0 Radioactive Cesium
DW 106.030 001 EPA 901.1 Radioactive Cesium
DW 106.030 002 EPA 901.1 Radioactive Iodine
DW 106.030 003 EPA 901.1 Gamma Emitters
DW 106.040 001 EPA 902.0 Radioactive Iodine
DW 106.050 001 EPA 903.0 Total Alpha Radium
DW 106.050 002 EPA 903.0 Radium-226
DW 106.051 001 EPA 903.1 Radium-226
DW 106.060 001 EPA 904.0 Radium-228
DW 106.070 001 EPA 905.0 Strontium-89, 90
DW 106.070 002 EPA 905.0 Strontium-89
DW 106.070 003 EPA 905.0 Strontium-90
DW 106.080 001 EPA 906.0 Tritium
DW 106.090 001 EPA 908.0 Uranium
DW 106.091 001 EPA 908.1 Uranium
DW 106.092 001 EPA 200.8 Uranium
DW 106.100 001 EPA 600/4-75-008, p1 Gross Alpha
DW 106.100 002 EPA 600/4-75-008, p1 Gross Beta
DW 106.100 003 EPA 600/4-75-008, p4 Radioactive Cesium
DW 106.100 004 EPA 600/4-75-008, p6 Radioactive Iodine
DW 106.100 005 EPA 600/4-75-008, p13 Total Alpha Radium
DW 106.100 007 EPA 600/4-75-008, p16 Radium-226
DW 106.100 008 EPA 600/4-75-008, p24 Radium-228
DW 106.100 009 EPA 600/4-75-008, p29 Strontium-89, 90
DW 106.100 010 EPA 600/4-75-008, p29 Strontium-89
DW 106.100 011 EPA 600/4-75-008, p29 Strontium-90
DW 106.100 012 EPA 600/4-75-008, p34 Tritium
DW 106.100 013 EPA 600/4-75-008, p9 Radioactive Iodine
DW 106.110 001 EPA 00-01 Gross Alpha
DW 106.110 002 EPA 00-01 Gross Beta
DW 106.120 001 EPA 00-02 Gross Alpha
DW 106.130 001 EPA 00-07 Uranium
DW 106.140 001 EPA H-02 Tritium
DW 106.150 002 EPA Ra-03 Radium-226
DW 106.160 001 EPA Ra-04 Radium-226
DW 106.170 001 EPA Ra-05 Radium-228

Drinking Water

Page 1 of 6



RADIOCHEMISTRY
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1160

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 106.180 001 EPA Sr-04 Strontium-89, 90
DW 106.180 002 EPA Sr-04 Strontium-89
DW 106.180 003 EPA Sr-04 Strontium-90
DW 106.190 001 EPA (March, 1979), p1 Gross Alpha
DW 106.190 002 EPA (March, 1979), p1 Gross Beta
DW 106.190 003 EPA (March, 1979), p19 Radium-226
DW 106.190 004 EPA (March, 1979), p19 Radium-228
DW 106.190 005 EPA (March, 1979), p33 Uranium
DW 106.190 006 EPA (March, 1979), p65 Strontium-89, 90
DW 106.190 007 EPA (March, 1979), p65 Strontium-89
DW 106.190 008 EPA (March, 1979), p65 Strontium-90
DW 106.190 009 EPA (March, 1979), p87 Tritium
DW 106.190 010 EPA (March, 1979), p92 Radioactive Cesium
DW 106.190 011 EPA (March, 1979), p92 Radioactive Iodine
DW 106.190 012 EPA (March, 1979), p92 Gamma Emitters
DW 106.200 001 DOE Ra-05 Radium-226
DW 106.210 001 DOE Sr-01 Strontium-89, 90
DW 106.220 001 DOE Sr-02 Strontium-89, 90
DW 106.230 001 DOE U-02 Uranium
DW 106.240 001 DOE U-04 Uranium
DW 106.250 001 DOE 4.5.2.3 Radioactive Cesium
DW 106.250 002 DOE 4.5.2.3 Radioactive Iodine
DW 106.250 003 DOE 4.5.2.3 Gamma Emitters
DW 106.260 001 SM7110B Gross Alpha
DW 106.260 002 SM7110B Gross Beta
DW 106.270 001 SM7110C Gross Alpha
DW 106.280 001 SM7120 Radioactive Cesium
DW 106.280 002 SM7120 Radioactive Iodine
DW 106.280 003 SM7120 Gamma Emitters
DW 106.290 001 SM7500-Cs B Radioactive Cesium
DW 106.300 001 SM7500-3H B Tritium
DW 106.310 001 SM7500-I B Radioactive Iodine
DW 106.320 001 SM7500-I C Radioactive Iodine
DW 106.340 001 SM7500-Ra B Total Alpha Radium
DW 106.340 002 SM7500-Ra B Radium-226
DW 106.350 001 SM7500-Ra C Radium-226
DW 106.360 001 SM7500-Ra D Radium-228
DW 106.370 001 SM7500-Sr B Strontium-89, 90
DW 106.370 002 SM7500-Sr B Strontium-89

Page 2 of 6



RADIOCHEMISTRY
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1160

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
DW 106.370 003 SM7500-Sr B Strontium-90
DW 106.380 001 SM7500-U B Uranium
DW 106.390 001 SM7500-U C Uranium
DW 106.391 001 SM3125 Uranium
DW 106.400 001 ASTM D2459-72 Radioactive Cesium
DW 106.410 001 ASTM D2460-90 Total Alpha Radium
DW 106.410 002 ASTM D2460-90 Radium-226
DW 106.420 001 ASTM D2907-91 Uranium
DW 106.430 001 ASTM D3454-91 Radium-226
DW 106.440 001 ASTM D3649-91 Radioactive Cesium
DW 106.440 002 ASTM D3649-91 Radioactive Iodine
DW 106.440 003 ASTM D3649-91 Gamma Emitters
DW 106.450 001 ASTM D3972-90 Uranium
DW 106.451 001 ASTM D5673-03 Uranium
DW 106.460 001 ASTM D4107-91 Tritium
DW 106.470 001 ASTM D4785-88 Radioactive Iodine
DW 106.480 001 ASTM D5174-97 Uranium
DW 106.490 001 USGS R-1110-76 Radioactive Cesium
DW 106.500 001 USGS R-1111-76 Radioactive Cesium
DW 106.510 001 USGS R-1120-76 Gross Alpha
DW 106.510 002 USGS R-1120-76 Gross Beta
DW 106.520 001 USGS R-1140-76 Radium-226
DW 106.520 002 USGS R-1140-76 Total Alpha Radium
DW 106.530 001 USGS R-1141-76 Radium-226
DW 106.540 001 USGS R-1142-76 Radium-228
DW 106.550 001 USGS R-1160-76 Strontium-89, 90
DW 106.550 002 USGS R-1160-76 Strontium-89
DW 106.550 003 USGS R-1160-76 Strontium-90
DW 106.560 001 USGS R-1171-76 Tritium
DW 106.570 001 USGS R-1180-76 Uranium
DW 106.580 001 USGS R-1181-76 Uranium
DW 106.590 001 USGS R-1182-76 Uranium
DW 106.610 001 SM7500-Rn Radon-222
DW 106.620 001 ASTM D5072-92 Radon-222
DW 106.630 001 EPA 600/2-87/082, p22 Radon-222

WW 112.010 001 EPA 900.0 Gross Alpha
WW 112.010 002 EPA 900.0 Gross Beta
WW 112.020 001 EPA 903.0 Total Alpha Radium

Wastewater

Page 3 of 6



RADIOCHEMISTRY
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1160

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 112.021 001 EPA 903.1 Radium-226
WW 112.030 001 SM7110B Gross Alpha
WW 112.030 002 SM7110B Gross Beta
WW 112.040 001 SM7500-Ra B Total Alpha Radium
WW 112.050 001 SM7500-Ra C Radium-226
WW 112.060 001 ASTM D1890-90 Gross Beta
WW 112.070 001 ASTM D1943-90 Gross Alpha
WW 112.080 001 ASTM D2460-90 Total Alpha Radium
WW 112.090 001 ASTM D3454-91 Radium-226
WW 112.100 001 USGS 76-177, p.75 & 78 Gross Alpha
WW 112.100 002 USGS 76-177, p.75 & 78 Gross Beta
WW 112.100 003 USGS 76-177, p.81 Radium-226
WW 112.110 001 EPA (1976), p24 Radium-228
WW 112.110 005 EPA (March, 1979), p19 Radium-228
WW 112.110 006 EPA (March, 1979), p33 Uranium
WW 112.110 007 EPA (March, 1979), p65 Strontium
WW 112.110 008 EPA (March, 1979), p92 Cesium
WW 112.110 009 EPA (March, 1979), p92 Iodine
WW 112.120 001 EPA 00-07 Uranium
WW 112.130 001 EPA 901.0 Cesium
WW 112.140 001 EPA 901.1 Cesium
WW 112.140 002 EPA 901.1 Gamma
WW 112.140 003 EPA 901.1 Iodine
WW 112.150 001 EPA 902.0 Iodine
WW 112.160 001 EPA 904.0 Radium-228
WW 112.170 001 EPA 905.0 Strontium
WW 112.180 001 EPA 906.0 Tritium
WW 112.190 001 EPA 908.0 Uranium
WW 112.210 001 EPA Ra-05 Radium-228
WW 112.220 001 EPA Sr-04 Strontium
WW 112.230 001 SM303 Strontium
WW 112.240 001 SM304 Radium-228
WW 112.260 001 SM7120 Gamma
WW 112.260 002 SM7120 Iodine
WW 112.260 003 SM7120 Cesium
WW 112.300 001 SM7500-I C Iodine
WW 112.350 001 SM7500-U C Uranium
WW 112.380 001 ASTM D3649-91 Cesium
WW 112.380 002 ASTM D3649-91 Gamma

Page 4 of 6



RADIOCHEMISTRY
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1160

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 112.380 003 ASTM D3649-91 Iodine
WW 112.390 001 ASTM D3972-90 Uranium
WW 112.400 001 ASTM D4785-88 Iodine
WW 112.420 001 USGS R-1110-76 Cesium
WW 112.430 001 USGS R-1111-76 Cesium
WW 112.440 001 USGS R-1142-76 Radium-228
WW 112.450 001 USGS R-1160-76 Strontium
WW 112.460 001 USGS R-1180-76 Uranium
WW 112.470 001 USGS R-1181-76 Uranium
WW 112.480 001 USGS R-1182-76 Uranium
WW 112.490 001 DOE 4.5.2.3 Cesium
WW 112.490 002 DOE 4.5.2.3 Gamma
WW 112.490 003 DOE 4.5.2.3 Iodine
WW 112.500 001 DOE Sr-01 Strontium
WW 112.510 001 DOE Sr-02 Strontium
WW 112.520 001 DOE U-02 Uranium
WW 112.530 001 DOE U-04 Uranium
Hazardous Waste
HW 118.010 001 EPA 9310 Gross Alpha
HW 118.010 002 EPA 9310 Gross Beta
HW 118.020 001 EPA 9315 Radium, Total
HW 118.030 001 EPA 9320 Radium-228
HW 118.040 001 EPA (March, 1979), p19 Radium-226
HW 118.040 002 EPA (March, 1979), p19 Radium-228
HW 118.040 003 EPA (March, 1979), p33 Plutonium
HW 118.040 004 EPA (March, 1979), p33 Uranium
HW 118.040 005 EPA (March, 1979), p65 Strontium
HW 118.040 006 EPA (March, 1979), p87 Tritium
HW 118.050 001 EPA 00-05 Thorium
HW 118.050 002 EPA 00-05 Uranium
HW 118.060 001 EPA 00-07 Thorium
HW 118.060 002 EPA 00-07 Uranium
HW 118.070 001 EPA (March, 1979), p33 Thorium
HW 118.090 001 EPA AM-01-1 Americium-241
HW 118.100 001 EPA H-01 Tritium
HW 118.110 001 EPA Pu-01 Plutonium
HW 118.120 001 EPA Ra-01 Radium-226
HW 118.130 001 EPA Ra-03 Radium-226
HW 118.140 001 EPA Ra-04 Radium-226

Page 5 of 6



RADIOCHEMISTRY
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1160

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
HW 118.150 001 EPA Ra-05 Radium-228
HW 118.160 001 EPA Sr-01 Strontium
HW 118.170 001 EPA Sr-04 Strontium
HW 118.200 001 DOE 4.5.2.3 Gamma
HW 118.210 001 DOE Am-01 Americium-241
HW 118.211 001 DOE Am-02 Americium-241
HW 118.212 001 DOE Am-03 Americium-241
HW 118.220 001 DOE H-03 Tritium
HW 118.230 001 DOE Pu-02 Plutonium
HW 118.231 001 DOE Pu-03 Plutonium
HW 118.240 001 DOE Pu-10 Plutonium
HW 118.250 001 DOE Ra-04 Radium-226
HW 118.260 001 DOE Se-01 Radium-226
HW 118.260 002 DOE Se-01 Uranium
HW 118.270 001 DOE Sr-01 Strontium
HW 118.271 001 DOE Sr-02 Strontium
HW 118.280 001 DOE Tc-01 Technetium
HW 118.290 001 DOE U-02 Uranium

Page 6 of 6



MICROSCOPY
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1170

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology

DW 103.300 001 EPA 100.1 Asbestos
DW 103.301 001 EPA 100.2 Asbestos
Hazardous Waste
HW 121.010 001 EPA 600/M4-82-020 Bulk Asbestos

Drinking Water

Page 1 of 1



AQUATIC TOXICITY BIOASSAY
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1180

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology

WW 113.010 001A EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Fathead Minnow (P. promelas)
WW 113.010 001B EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Renewal Fathead Minnow (P. promelas)
WW 113.010 001C EPA 600/4-90/027F, Continuous Flow Fathead Minnow (P. promelas)
WW 113.010 003A EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Rainbow trout (O. mykiss)
WW 113.010 003B EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Renewal Rainbow trout (O. mykiss)
WW 113.010 003C EPA 600/4-90/027F, Continuous Flow Rainbow trout (O. mykiss)
WW 113.010 004A EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Brook trout (S. fontinalis)
WW 113.010 004B EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Renewal Brook trout (S. fontinalis)
WW 113.010 004C EPA 600/4-90/027F, Continuous Flow Brook trout (S. fontinalis)
WW 113.010 005A EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Daphnid (C. dubia)
WW 113.010 005B EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Renewal Daphnid (C. dubia)
WW 113.010 005C EPA 600/4-90/027F, Continuous Flow Daphnid (C. dubia)
WW 113.010 006A EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Daphnia spp.
WW 113.010 006B EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Renewal Daphnia spp.
WW 113.010 006C EPA 600/4-90/027F, Continuous Flow Daphnia spp.
WW 113.010 007A EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Bannerfin shiner (C. leedsi)
WW 113.010 007B EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Renewal Bannerfin shiner (C. leedsi)
WW 113.010 007C EPA 600/4-90/027F, Continuous Flow Bannerfin shiner (C. leedsi)
WW 113.010 008A EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Topsmelt (A. affinis)
WW 113.010 008B EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Renewal Topsmelt (A. affinis)
WW 113.010 008C EPA 600/4-90/027F, Continuous Flow Topsmelt (A. affinis)
WW 113.010 009A EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Silverside (Menidia spp.)
WW 113.010 009B EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Renewal Silverside (Menidia spp.)
WW 113.010 009C EPA 600/4-90/027F, Continuous Flow Silverside (Menidia spp.)
WW 113.010 010A EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Sanddab (C. sitigmaeus)
WW 113.010 010B EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Renewal Sanddab (C. sitigmaeus)
WW 113.010 010C EPA 600/4-90/027F, Continuous Flow Sanddab (C. sitigmaeus)
WW 113.010 011A EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Sheepshead minnow (C. variegatus)
WW 113.010 011B EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Renewal Sheepshead minnow (C. variegatus)
WW 113.010 011C EPA 600/4-90/027F, Continuous Flow Sheepshead minnow (C. variegatus)
WW 113.010 012A EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Mysid (M. bahia)
WW 113.010 012B EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Renewal Mysid (M. bahia)
WW 113.010 012C EPA 600/4-90/027F, Continuous Flow Mysid (M. bahia)
WW 113.010 016A EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Pacific mysid (H. costata)
WW 113.010 016B EPA 600/4-90/027F, Static Renewal Pacific mysid (H. costata)
WW 113.010 016C EPA 600/4-90/027F, Continuous Flow Pacific mysid (H. costata)
WW 113.021 001A EPA 2000 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Fathead Minnow (P. promelas)
WW 113.021 001B EPA 2000 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Renewal Fathead Minnow (P. promelas)
WW 113.021 001C EPA 2000 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Continuous Flow Fathead Minnow (P. promelas)
WW 113.021 007A EPA 2000 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Bannerfin shiner (C. leedsi)
WW 113.021 007B EPA 2000 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Renewal Bannerfin shiner (C. leedsi)

Wastewater

Page 1 of 3



AQUATIC TOXICITY BIOASSAY
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1180

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 113.021 007C EPA 2000 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Continuous Flow Bannerfin shiner (C. leedsi)
WW 113.022 003A EPA 2019 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Rainbow trout (O. mykiss)
WW 113.022 003B EPA 2019 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Renewal Rainbow trout (O. mykiss)
WW 113.022 003C EPA 2019 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Continuous Flow Rainbow trout (O. mykiss)
WW 113.022 004A EPA 2019 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Brook trout (S. fontinalis)
WW 113.022 004B EPA 2019 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Renewal Brook trout (S. fontinalis)
WW 113.022 004C EPA 2019 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Continuous Flow Brook trout (S. fontinalis)
WW 113.023 005A EPA 2002 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Daphnid (C. dubia)
WW 113.023 005B EPA 2002 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Renewal Daphnid (C. dubia)
WW 113.023 005C EPA 2002 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Continuous Flow Daphnid (C. dubia)
WW 113.024 006A EPA 2021 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Daphnia spp.
WW 113.024 006B EPA 2021 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Renewal Daphnia spp.
WW 113.024 006C EPA 2021 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Continuous Flow Daphnia spp.
WW 113.025 009A EPA 2006 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Silverside (Menidia spp.)
WW 113.025 009B EPA 2006 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Renewal Silverside (Menidia spp.)
WW 113.025 009C EPA 2006 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Continuous Flow Silverside (Menidia spp.)
WW 113.026 011A EPA 2004 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Sheepshead minnow (C. variegatus)
WW 113.026 011B EPA 2004 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Renewal Sheepshead minnow (C. variegatus)
WW 113.026 011C EPA 2004 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Continuous Flow Sheepshead minnow (C. variegatus)
WW 113.027 012A EPA 2007 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Mysid (M. bahia)
WW 113.027 012B EPA 2007 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Static Renewal Mysid (M. bahia)
WW 113.027 012C EPA 2007 (EPA-821-R-02-012), Continuous Flow Mysid (M. bahia)
WW 113.028 008A EPA-821-R-02-012, Static Topsmelt (A. affinis)
WW 113.028 008B EPA-821-R-02-012, Static Renewal Topsmelt (A. affinis)
WW 113.028 008C EPA-821-R-02-012, Continuous Flow Topsmelt (A. affinis)
WW 113.028 010A EPA-821-R-02-012, Static Sanddab (C. sitigmaeus)
WW 113.028 010B EPA-821-R-02-012, Static Renewal Sanddab (C. sitigmaeus)
WW 113.028 010C EPA-821-R-02-012, Continuous Flow Sanddab (C. sitigmaeus)
WW 113.028 016A EPA-821-R-02-012, Static Pacific mysid (H. costata)
WW 113.028 016B EPA-821-R-02-012, Static Renewal Pacific mysid (H. costata)
WW 113.028 016C EPA-821-R-02-012, Continuous Flow Pacific mysid (H. costata)
WW 113.029 001A EPA-821-R-02-012, Static Hyalella spp.
WW 113.029 001B EPA-821-R-02-012, Static Renewal Hyalella spp.
WW 113.029 001C EPA-821-R-02-012, Continuous Flow Hyalella spp.
WW 113.040 001 EPA 1000 (EPA/600/4-91/002) Fathead Minnow (P. promelas)
WW 113.041 001 EPA 1000 (EPA-821-R-02-013) Fathead Minnow (P. promelas)
WW 113.050 005 EPA 1002 (EPA/600/4-91/002) Daphnid (C. dubia)
WW 113.051 005 EPA 1002 (EPA-821-R-02-013) Daphnid (C. dubia)
WW 113.060 020 EPA 1003 (EPA/600/4-91/002) Green algae (S. capricornutum)
WW 113.061 020 EPA 1003 (EPA-821-R-02-013) Green algae (S. capricornutum)
WW 113.071 020 ASTM E1218-04 Green algae (S. capricornutum)
WW 113.075 011 EPA 1004 (EPA/600/4-91/003) Sheepshead minnow (C. variegatus)

Page 2 of 3



AQUATIC TOXICITY BIOASSAY
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1180

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
WW 113.076 011 EPA 1004 (EPA-821-R-02-014) Sheepshead minnow (C. variegatus)
WW 113.080 009 EPA 1006 (EPA/600/4-91/003) Silverside (Menidia spp.)
WW 113.081 009 EPA 1006 (EPA-821-R-02-014) Silverside (Menidia spp.)
WW 113.090 012 EPA 1007 (EPA/600/4-91/003) Mysid (M. bahia)
WW 113.091 012 EPA 1007 (EPA-821-R-02-014) Mysid (M. bahia)
WW 113.100 013 EPA 1008 (EPA/600/4-91/003) Sea Urchin (A. punctulata)
WW 113.101 013 EPA 1008 (EPA-821-R-02-014) Sea Urchin (A. punctulata)
WW 113.120 008 EPA 600/R-95/136 Topsmelt (A. affinis)
WW 113.120 014 EPA 600/R-95/136 Pacific oyster (C. gigas)
WW 113.120 016 EPA 600/R-95/136 Pacific mysid (H. costata)
WW 113.120 019 EPA 600/R-95/136 Mussels (Mytilus spp.)
WW 113.120 022 EPA 600/R-95/136 Giant kelp (M. pyrifera)
WW 113.120 023 EPA 600/R-95/136 Red abalone (H. rufescens)
WW 113.120 015D EPA 600/R-95/136, Fertilization Test Sand dollar (D. excentricus)
WW 113.120 015E EPA 600/R-95/136, Development Test Sand dollar (D. excentricus)
WW 113.120 017D EPA 600/R-95/136, Fertilization Test Purple sea urchin (S. purpuratus)
WW 113.120 017E EPA 600/R-95/136, Development Test Purple sea urchin (S. purpuratus)
WW 113.141 024 ASTM E1218-04 Green algae (S. costatum)
WW 113.141 025 ASTM E1218-04 Diatom ( T. pseudonana)
WW 113.160 026 EPA 600/R-99/064, EPA 100.1 Amphipod (H. azteca)
WW 113.170 027 EPA 600/R-99/064, EPA 100.2 Midge (C. tentans)
WW 113.180 028 EPA 600/R-99/064, EPA 100.3 Oligochaete (L. variegatus)
WW 113.190 026 EPA 600/R-99/064, EPA 100.4 Amphipod (H. azteca)
WW 113.200 027 EPA 600/R-99/064, EPA 100.5 Midge (C. tentans)
WW 113.210 029 EPA 600/R-94/025, EPA 100.4 Amphipod (A. abdita)
WW 113.210 030 EPA 600/R-94/025, EPA 100.4 Amphipod (E. estuarius)
WW 113.210 031 EPA 600/R-94/025, EPA 100.4 Amphipod (L. plumulosus)
WW 113.210 032 EPA 600/R-94/025, EPA 100.4 Amphipod (R. abronius)

Page 3 of 3



MICROBIOLOGY (SPECIALTY)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1190

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology

DW 129.010 001 EPA 1622 Cryptosporidium Filtration/IMS/FA
DW 129.020 001 EPA 1623 Cryptosporidium and Giardia Filtration/IMS/FA
DW 129.030 001 EPA 1623.1 Cryptosporidium and Giardia Filtration/IMS/FA

Drinking Water

Page 1 of 1



SAMPLE PREP TECHNIQUES
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1200

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Method Analyte Technology
Hazardous Waste
HW 115.010 001 EPA 1310A Extraction Procedure Toxicity (EPTox)
HW 115.020 001 EPA 1311 Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure (TCLP)
HW 115.021 001 EPA 1311 TCLP Inorganics
HW 115.022 001 EPA 1311 TCLP Extractables
HW 115.023 001 EPA 1311 TCLP Volatiles
HW 115.030 001 CCR Chapter11, Article 5, Appendix II Waste Extraction Test (WET)
HW 115.040 001 EPA 1312 Synthetic Precipitation Leaching Procedure (SPLP)

Page 1 of 1



MICROBIOLOGY (SHELLFISH)
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1210

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology
Shellfish
Shellfish 127.010 001 APHA Shellfish Meat Total/Fecal Coliforms MPN
Shellfish 127.010 002 APHA Shellfish Meat Plate Counts SPC
Shellfish 127.030 001 APHA Shellfish Growing Waters Total/Fecal Coliforms MPN
Shellfish 127.030 002 AOAC Shellfish Growing Waters Fecal Coliforms A-1
Shellfish 127.040 001 WPCF Shellfish Growing Waters Fecal Coliforms mTEC

Page 1 of 1



PESTICIDE RESIDUE
Proposed Field of Accreditation #1220

DRAFT

Program Subgroup Code Analyte Code Method Analyte Technology

Food 124.01 001 MS Pesticide Residues           
Food 124.02 001 MS Halogenated Pesticide Residues
Food 124.03 001 MS Organophosphorus Pesticide Residues
Food 125.01 001 non-MS Pesticide Residues           
Food 125.02 001 non-MS Halogenated Pesticide Residues
Food 125.03 001 non-MS Organophosphorus Pesticide Residues
Food 125.04 001 non-MS N-methyl Carbamate Pesticide Residues

Food Residue

Page 1 of 1



LUNCH – Back at 1pm

33



FEES STAKEHOLDER WORKGROUP UPDATE
David Ceccarelli, State Water Board, Division of Administrative 

Services

34



Developing a New Fee Structure

 The current fee structure is raising sufficient revenue to meet ELAP’s

budgetary authority

 But we’ve heard the community’s requests for a new structure

 The Division of Administrative Services Fee Branch formed a Stakeholder

Fees Workgroup to develop proposals for a new structure

 Members are listed on ELAP’s website

 The workgroup has had three meetings so far

 May 30, 2017 – Welcome and goal setting

 June 29, 2017 – Presentation of preliminary proposals

 November 9, 2017 – Evaluation of revised proposals

35



Where We Are Now
 7 fee options were presented at the November 9th stakeholder meeting

 Summary of the proposed structures

 All included a base fee

 3 were built around a per method structure

 2 were built around a UOA-by-difficulty structure

 1 was built around types of technologies used

 1 was built around a per FOT structure

 2 options included assessment charges or a discount for use of third party assessors

 General consensus is to have a higher out-of-state laboratory base fee

 Stakeholders are now fine-tuning options based on feedback from the meeting

36



What’s Next

 Another workgroup meeting will be held to identify 3 or 4 options to be

presented at a State Board Public Workshop

 We anticipate the State Board Public Workshop taking place in early

2018

 Board Meeting for adoption - tentatively April 2018

37



INFORMATIONAL ITEM:

LABORATORY INTERCALIBRATION EXERCISES
Dr. Stephen Weisberg, Southern California Coastal Water 

Research Project

38



39

INFORMATIONAL ITEM:

TRANSITION TO SDWIS-PRIME
Paul Williams, Division of Drinking Water



TRANSITION TO SDWIS-PRIME
(State Drinking Water Information System)

ELTAC Update

December 2017



Current data process

EPA created SDWIS (Safe Drinking Water Information System) for states 

to maintain the following information for the public water systems they 

regulate:

• Inventory (system name, population served, contacts, etc.)

• Violations and enforcement actions, and

• Water quality data and schedules

California has not fully implemented all of the tools in SDWIS.  We 

currently use SDWIS for inventory and violation/enforcement action 

records.  We are beginning to implement water quality data reporting 

features.



Current data process

Currently, there are three ways in which laboratories transmit water quality 

data to DDW: 

1. Water Quality Management (WQM) Portal

• WQM – through LIMS or Write-On, labs transmit data using the Electronic

Deliverable Format (EDF) Version 1.2i Data Dictionary

• Data from WQM goes to the WQIr program for field office staff to query

data and set monitoring schedules



Current data process

2. Lab-to-State (LTS) Portal

• LTS is connected to SDWIS – through csv files, labs provide data using the 

electronic Drinking Water Reports (eDWR) v3.0 schema

• Data from LTS Portal goes indirectly to SDWIS. 

• LTS was rolled-out during the summer and at this time, it is only being used 

for Lead & Copper data transmittals.  

• There are currently 29 labs registered/using LTS.  Out of 1331 water systems 

that conducted Lead & Copper monitoring this summer, 486 water systems 

(~40%) used laboratories that submitted data via LTS.



Current data process

3.  Email or snail-mail

• Currently, all bacteriological samples, water distribution system data (e.g., 

chlorine residuals), and certain treatment plant data are provided either 

by email or snail-mail.



Current data process

Laboratory

DDW – District 

Office

Lead & Copper

WQM

LTS

Email

WQIr

SDWIS



Future data process

Laboratory

All Water Quality Data

CMDP SDWIS



Future data process

It is planned to role out the Compliance Monitoring Data Portal (CMDP) in one 

to two years.  This portal is a recently developed EPA tool for laboratories to 

transmit data directly to SDWIS, and in the near future, SDWIS Prime.

CMDP

• Cross-Media Electronic Reporting Rule (CROMERR) Compliant

• Pulls laboratory inventory directly from SDWIS

• Allows labs and water systems to request updates to their own profiles

• Up-to-date profiles allow CMDP to properly validate samples at the time of

data submittal

• Uses proprietary XML schema, does not support eDWR XML schema



Future data process

CMDP

• Electronic Reporting Methods
• Web Services – connecting submitter data management systems to CMDP, one-way 

services

• Upload XML files generated by CMDP excel templates

• Direct data entry using webforms

• Data Validations
• Built into SDWIS and SDWIS Prime

• Valid Lab ID – lab name and administrative contact

• Standard Method names and codes

• Analyte method pairing

• Lab – Analyte method association

• Dates of certification

• State-specific validations



Future data process

Laboratory

All Water Quality Data

CMDP SDWIS

SDWIS 

Prime

It is planned to role out SDWIS Prime in two years.

SDWIS Prime

• EPA’s recent overhaul of SDWIS, expected to be rolled-out in mid-2018.

• Cloud based architecture supported by EPA



Questions?

Betsy Lichti

Quality Assurance Section Chief

betsy.lichti@waterboards.ca.gov

Paul Williams

SDWIS Unit Manager

paul.williams@waterboards.ca.gov

mailto:betsy.lichti@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:paul.williams@waterboards.ca.gov


51

INFORMATIONAL ITEM:

PERCHOLORATE WORKGROUP
Dr. Eric Miguelino, Division of Drinking Water



Proposed Framework for State Agency Requests to ELAP for New Analytical 
Methods and Lowered Reporting Limits 

State agencies in California occasionally require new analytical methods, the analysis of new 
compounds under existing methods, or lowered reporting limits for promulgated methods, to 
achieve their regulatory goals. When new regulations are released that requires either new 
analytical methods or lower reporting limits, the regulated community must have access to 
certified laboratories that are capable of performing the methods to achieve regulatory 
compliance. As there have been occasions when new regulations have been adopted that required 
lower reporting limits prior to the capabilities being developed by California certified labs, the 
goal of this document is to provide a framework for State agencies to submit requests for new 
methods/lower reporting limits to the Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP), 
which regulates laboratory accreditation in California.  

ELAP attends various meetings to coordinate with the State Water Board’s Division of Drinking 
Water (DDW) on regulatory issues. On a weekly and monthly basis, ELAP management attends 
DDW Executive management meetings, which helps to ensure efficient, consistent, and effective 
implementation of DDW requirements and directions from upper management. The meetings 
include the DDW Deputy Director (DD) and Assistant DDs, program managers, Regional, and 
Branch Engineers. Additionally, ELAP resides under the Program Management Branch of DDW, 
which includes ELAP and the Technical Operations Section. The Regulations Unit resides within 
the Technical Operations Section that develop MCLs. Program Management Branch meetings 
are scheduled quarterly for additional coordination.  

In addition to ELAP’s engagements within the State Water Board, there are other opportunities 
for agency collaboration. Within the State and Regional Water Boards, a Roundtable is the 
coordinating body for a specific program (e.g., Surface Water Ambient Monitoring Program – 
SWAMP) within the State or Regional Water Board organization structure. It ensures 
efficient, consistent, and effective implementation of program requirements and directions from 
upper management. It consists of program managers and staff from each Water Board 
organization (Regional Water Board and State Water Board Division and/or Office) who have a 
direct role in the conduct and implementation of the program associated with the Roundtable.  

Should DDW (either Executive Management meetings or Program Management Branch), 
State/Regional Water Board Roundtables, or other State agencies need lower analytical reporting 
limits or method development for new analytes, the following process should be followed: 

1. submit their request in writing to Chief of ELAP.
2. the ELAP Chief will submit the request to the Environmental Laboratory Technical

Advisory Committee (ELTAC), which was established to assist with technical matters
that impact the laboratory community.

3. ELTAC will form a committee to evaluate the request, comprised of ELTAC members
that have expertise in the analytical method.

4. should the ELTAC committee determine that the request should be achievable by CA
certified laboratories, they will request that ELAP provide them with a list of



laboratories that are certified for the method (in the case of lower reporting limits) or for 
similar methods (in the case of methods for new analytes). 

5. the ELTAC committee will draft a letter, to be approved by the ELTAC, that will be
submitted to the labs identified by ELAP. The letter is to identify the problem,
summarize the justification from the State agency, request a determination of current
capabilities, request a timeline for the development of capabilities if they do not exist,
and establish a timeline for a return response.

6. The ELTAC committee will review the responses from the labs and prepare a summary
of the responses.

7. Should the labs be capable of achieving the State agency needs, then the summary of
capabilities will be submitted to the ELAP Chief for distribution to the State agency.

a. Labs that are capable of achieving the State agency needs are to obtain
accreditation for any new methods, which will require ELAP to add new methods
to the appropriate FOTs.

8. Should the labs not have the current capabilities to achieving the State agency needs,
then the summary identifying the current status along with a projected timeline for
capabilities development will be submitted to the ELAP Chief for distribution to the
State agency.



CLOSE – REVIEW ACTION ITEMS
Andy Eaton

52



ADJOURN

53


	FOAs.pdf
	1100
	1110
	1120
	1130
	1140
	1150
	1160
	1170
	1180
	1190
	1200
	1210
	1220




